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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, April 9, 2021 at 3:05 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND COMMUNITY
PARTNERS ANNOUNCE OPENING OF NEW CHILD CARE FACILITY IN THE
MISSION DISTRICT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, April 9, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND COMMUNITY PARTNERS

ANNOUNCE OPENING OF NEW CHILD CARE FACILITY IN
THE MISSION DISTRICT

The Mission Kids child care center will serve 100 families and is funded by more than $6
million from San Francisco’s Office of Early Care and Education, Office of Economic and
Workforce Development, and the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Mission Kids, and community partners today
announced the completion of a new child care center in San Francisco’s Mission District. The
new preschool, located at 969 Treat Avenue, will enable Mission Kids to double their
enrollment to serve 100 families and makes quality early childhood education more accessible
for families of all income levels in the Mission and surrounding neighborhoods. This facility
advances San Francisco’s broader efforts to close the early education gap for San Francisco’s
youngest children and supports San Francisco’s recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.
 
“High quality, safe early care and education helps young people and their families succeed and
thrive, and it should be available to everyone in San Francisco, regardless of where they live
or their income,” said Mayor Breed. “It’s too hard to find child care in this city and we have to
do more to support working families, especially as we get on the road to recovery. That’s why
we’re investing in facilities across the City, so that every family has a convenient and
welcoming place to access child care and other important family services.”
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*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND COMMUNITY PARTNERS 


ANNOUNCE OPENING OF NEW CHILD CARE FACILITY IN 
THE MISSION DISTRICT 


The Mission Kids child care center will serve 100 families and is funded by more than $6 million 
from San Francisco’s Office of Early Care and Education, Office of Economic and Workforce 


Development, and the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development  
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Mission Kids, and community partners today 
announced the completion of a new child care center in San Francisco’s Mission District. The 
new preschool, located at 969 Treat Avenue, will enable Mission Kids to double their enrollment 
to serve 100 families and makes quality early childhood education more accessible for families 
of all income levels in the Mission and surrounding neighborhoods. This facility advances 
San Francisco’s broader efforts to close the early education gap for San Francisco’s youngest 
children and supports San Francisco’s recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
“High quality, safe early care and education helps young people and their families succeed and 
thrive, and it should be available to everyone in San Francisco, regardless of where they live or 
their income,” said Mayor Breed. “It’s too hard to find child care in this city and we have to do 
more to support working families, especially as we get on the road to recovery. That’s why we’re 
investing in facilities across the City, so that every family has a convenient and welcoming place 
to access child care and other important family services.” 
 
Ensuring early care and education options remain available and accessible throughout San 
Francisco is essential for making sure all young people are ready for Kindergarten and success in 
school. In 2019, San Francisco’s Office of Early Care and Education found that 40% of Black 
and Latino students were not ready for Kindergarten, demonstrating the need for continued 
investments in improving outcomes for students from historically disadvantaged communities.  
 
Mission Kids serves predominately low- to moderate-income families in San Francisco and 
provides bilingual early care and education in Spanish and English. More than 75% of the 
enrolled families receive tuition subsidies. Forty percent of Mission Kids families identify as 
Hispanic/Latino, 15% as Asian American/Pacific Islander, and 15% as African-American/Black, 
and Mission Kids serves families experiencing immigration issues, homelessness, and housing 
insecurity. In addition to improving outcomes for young people, the availability of child care 
options, like the new Mission Kids preschool, will be essential for families as San Francisco 
recovers and more parents and guardians participate in and return to the workforce. 
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The construction and start-up costs for the Mission Kids preschool was funded with $2.5 million 
from the City’s Child Care Facilities Fund, in collaboration with the Office of Early Care and 
Education and the Low Income Investment Fund (LIIF). In addition to the Child Care Facilities 
Fund, OECE and LIIF committed another $2.4 million in New Markets Tax Credits. Through the 
Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative, OEWD and Community Vision awarded $675,000 in early-
stage funding and technical assistance for the project. Lastly, MOHCD committed $450,000 
through San Francisco’s Complete Neighborhoods Program to support the $9.95 million project. 
 
The Mission Kids preschool is one of more than 30 facilities whose capital costs will be covered 
by the City’s Child Care Facilities Fund in the coming years. The Fund was created to retain and 
increase licensed child care facilities in high-needs neighborhoods, and is funded by Child Care 
Developer Fees, which are collected from new construction projects in the city.  
 
The Fund is a flexible model to administer grants and loans to construct, rehabilitate and 
purchase child care facilities, specifically in high-needs neighborhoods. Funding is prioritized for 
facilities that are located in residential developments funded the by City, such as HOPE SF 
housing and affordable housing developments, and facilities that serve low- to moderate-income 
families, families who are experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness, or families who 
are enrolled in public assistance programs. The Office of Early Care and Education (OECE) 
administers the awards from the Fund. 
 
In addition to the City funding and support of LIIF, the new Mission Kids facility was made 
possible with funding from Community Vision Capital and Consulting (CVCC). The following 
organizations have supported this project: First 5 of San Francisco, Mission Economic 
Development Agency, Calle 24 (Latino Cultural District), Mission Greenway, Friends of Parque 
Niños Unidos, and Dolores Street Community Services. 
 
“The learning and opportunity gaps that we continue to see in our public schools today have deep 
roots in the unequal access to high quality early care and education programs, especially among 
our families of color,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “Child care programs like the Mission 
Kids preschool are a critical lifeline that not only prepare our youngest learners to succeed once 
they enroll in public schools, they also enable parents and caregivers to have the capacity to 
pursue educational and employment opportunities to help advance their family’s overall 
wellbeing. By investing in essential early care programs like this exciting new Mission Kids 
facility, we are signaling to the working families of the Mission and throughout San Francisco 
that we are committed to their long-term stability and success.” 
 
“We are so excited to be moving Mission Kids into a Forever Home at 969 Treat, especially 
since this means we’ll eventually be able to serve twice as many families and stay true to our 
deep roots in the Mission District,” said Heather Lubeck and Christina Maluenda Marchiel of 
Mission Kids. “Our new facility, specifically designed for young children and built from the 
ground up, is a reflection of our city partners valuing, prioritizing and investing in children and 
families. After facing displacement from our previous facility, we are thrilled to now have a 
permanent home to provide this essential service to the children and families of San Francisco 
for generations to come.” 
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"This past year we learned to work from home, to make up childcare as we went along, and to 
live inside the fear and sadness of a pandemic. Starting our daughter at Mission Kids in March of 
2021, at a new building that signaled a brighter future and inside of the caring, openness and 
warmth of the community of parents, teachers and kids has offered a small glimpse of what kind 
of city we might hope to build for our family and others,” said current Mission Kids parent, 
Caleb Zigas. “It is no small feat to open something new at a time like this and we are so grateful 
to be a part of it.” 
 
City Support for Child Care Providers during COVID-19 
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, San Francisco has supported child care providers with 
funding from the City’s Give2SF COVID-19 Response and Recovery Fund and with a new 
program to promote the economic recovery of child care providers.  
 
In January 2021, Mayor Breed announced $25 million in financial assistance for San Francisco’s 
early care and education programs, which care for approximately 10,000 children across the city. 
The Early Education Economic Recovery Program was created with funding from revenue 
unlocked by Proposition F. All licensed child care or license-exempt co-operative early care 
programs providing services to children age birth to six in San Francisco are encouraged to apply 
on the San Francisco Office of Early Care and Education’s (OECE) website: sfoece.org/covid-
19/early-education-recovery-program/.  
 
In June 2020, Mayor Breed, along with then Board of Supervisors President Norman Yee and 
Supervisor Ahsha Safai, announced $1 million to support up to 150 family child care educators 
experiencing financial hardship due to COVID-19. These family child care educators are a vital 
resource for families, particularly in communities with a high need for early care and education 
but with limited child care resources.  
 
About Mission Kids 
Initially conceived as a family child care program and later housed in a shared space with a 
church and homeless shelter on neighboring South Van Ness Avenue, Mission Kids has cared for 
marginalized children of San Francisco’s Mission District for more than a decade. 
 
Mission Kids fosters empathy, respect and love of learning with its commitment to bilingual, 
play-based learning. As a co-operative, all families have a job in the school and participate in its 
daily operations. Mission Kids has consistently received the highest possible quality rating 
standards in the annual evaluation by the Office of Early Care and Education. 
 


### 
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Ensuring early care and education options remain available and accessible throughout San
Francisco is essential for making sure all young people are ready for Kindergarten and success
in school. In 2019, San Francisco’s Office of Early Care and Education found that 40% of
Black and Latino students were not ready for Kindergarten, demonstrating the need for
continued investments in improving outcomes for students from historically disadvantaged
communities.
 
Mission Kids serves predominately low- to moderate-income families in San Francisco and
provides bilingual early care and education in Spanish and English. More than 75% of the
enrolled families receive tuition subsidies. Forty percent of Mission Kids families identify as
Hispanic/Latino, 15% as Asian American/Pacific Islander, and 15% as African-
American/Black, and Mission Kids serves families experiencing immigration issues,
homelessness, and housing insecurity. In addition to improving outcomes for young people,
the availability of child care options, like the new Mission Kids preschool, will be essential for
families as San Francisco recovers and more parents and guardians participate in and return to
the workforce.
 
The construction and start-up costs for the Mission Kids preschool was funded with $2.5
million from the City’s Child Care Facilities Fund, in collaboration with the Office of Early
Care and Education and the Low Income Investment Fund (LIIF). In addition to the Child
Care Facilities Fund, OECE and LIIF committed another $2.4 million in New Markets Tax
Credits. Through the Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative, OEWD and Community Vision
awarded $675,000 in early-stage funding and technical assistance for the project. Lastly,
MOHCD committed $450,000 through San Francisco’s Complete Neighborhoods Program to
support the $9.95 million project.
 
The Mission Kids preschool is one of more than 30 facilities whose capital costs will be
covered by the City’s Child Care Facilities Fund in the coming years. The Fund was created to
retain and increase licensed child care facilities in high-needs neighborhoods, and is funded by
Child Care Developer Fees, which are collected from new construction projects in the city.
 
The Fund is a flexible model to administer grants and loans to construct, rehabilitate and
purchase child care facilities, specifically in high-needs neighborhoods. Funding is prioritized
for facilities that are located in residential developments funded the by City, such as HOPE SF
housing and affordable housing developments, and facilities that serve low- to moderate-
income families, families who are experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness, or
families who are enrolled in public assistance programs. The Office of Early Care and
Education (OECE) administers the awards from the Fund.
 
In addition to the City funding and support of LIIF, the new Mission Kids facility was made
possible with funding from Community Vision Capital and Consulting (CVCC). The
following organizations have supported this project: First 5 of San Francisco, Mission
Economic Development Agency, Calle 24 (Latino Cultural District), Mission Greenway,
Friends of Parque Niños Unidos, and Dolores Street Community Services.
 
“The learning and opportunity gaps that we continue to see in our public schools today have
deep roots in the unequal access to high quality early care and education programs, especially
among our families of color,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “Child care programs like the
Mission Kids preschool are a critical lifeline that not only prepare our youngest learners to



succeed once they enroll in public schools, they also enable parents and caregivers to have the
capacity to pursue educational and employment opportunities to help advance their family’s
overall wellbeing. By investing in essential early care programs like this exciting new Mission
Kids facility, we are signaling to the working families of the Mission and throughout San
Francisco that we are committed to their long-term stability and success.”
 
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
ground up, is a reflection of our city partners valuing, prioritizing and investing in children
and families. After facing displacement from our previous facility, we are thrilled to now have
a permanent home to provide this essential service to the children and families of San
Francisco for generations to come.”
 
"This past year we learned to work from home, to make up childcare as we went along, and to
live inside the fear and sadness of a pandemic. Starting our daughter at Mission Kids in March
of 2021, at a new building that signaled a brighter future and inside of the caring, openness
and warmth of the community of parents, teachers and kids has offered a small glimpse of
what kind of city we might hope to build for our family and others,” said current Mission Kids
parent, Caleb Zigas. “It is no small feat to open something new at a time like this and we are
so grateful to be a part of it.”
 
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
 
In January 2021, Mayor Breed announced $25 million in financial assistance for San
Francisco’s early care and education programs, which care for approximately 10,000 children
across the city. The Early Education Economic Recovery Program was created with funding
from revenue unlocked by Proposition F. All licensed child care or license-exempt co-
operative early care programs providing services to children age birth to six in San Francisco
are encouraged to apply on the San Francisco Office of Early Care and Education’s (OECE)
website: sfoece.org/covid-19/early-education-recovery-program/.
 
In June 2020, Mayor Breed, along with then Board of Supervisors President Norman Yee and
Supervisor Ahsha Safai, announced $1 million to support up to 150 family child care
educators experiencing financial hardship due to COVID-19. These family child care
educators are a vital resource for families, particularly in communities with a high need for
early care and education but with limited child care resources.

 

About Mission Kids

Initially conceived as a family child care program and later housed in a shared space with a
church and homeless shelter on neighboring South Van Ness Avenue, Mission Kids has cared
for marginalized children of San Francisco’s Mission District for more than a decade.
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Mission Kids fosters empathy, respect and love of learning with its commitment to bilingual,
play-based learning. As a co-operative, all families have a job in the school and participate in
its daily operations. Mission Kids has consistently received the highest possible quality rating
standards in the annual evaluation by the Office of Early Care and Education.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: Housing Element Phase II Outreach Launched!
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 3:03:18 PM

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: Kimia Haddadan <kimia.haddadan@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, April 9, 2021 at 2:19 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>,
"Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>,
"Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner,
Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Chion, Miriam (CPC)" <miriam.chion@sfgov.org>, "Leon-
Farrera, Malena (CPC)" <malena.leon-farrera@sfgov.org>, Shelley Caltagirone
<shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>, "Hom, Lauren (CPC)" <lauren.hom@sfgov.org>
Subject: Housing Element Phase II Outreach Launched!
 
Dear President Koppel, Vice President Moore, and Commissioners, 
 
Our team will be presenting to you on April 22 on the Housing Element 2022 Update outreach and
engagement so far, the draft needs assessment, and the draft goals, policies, and actions. We wanted to
share with you the material that were released to the public yesterday. Please see below the public
announcement including direct links to content. Or visit our website to find the April 2021 release
tab: https://sfhousingelement.org/april-2021-release
 
Looking forward to our discussion at the commission in two weeks to guide the second phase of outreach
and engagement. 
 
The Housing Element 2022 Update Team 
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Housing Element Update 2022 Phase
II Outreach Launched!

San Francisco Planning is pleased to launch the second phase
of outreach and engagement for the Housing Element 2022
Update and to share the following materials with the public:

A Context Statement describing the roots of San
Francisco’s housing challenges and the City’s commitment
to dismantle housing inequities.
A complete and comprehensive Public Input Summary
including a synthesis of public and Housing Policy Group
input, as well as online platform and survey results.
The Draft Needs Assessment summary including an
overview of past and current housing needs. 
A first draft of the Housing Element goals, policies and
actions that incorporate public input prioritizing advancing
racial and social equity and balancing the different and
sometimes competing community needs.

The Housing Element 2022 Update is San Francisco’s first
housing plan that will center racial and social equity. It will
include policies and programs that express our collective vision
and values for the future of housing in San Francisco. This plan
will identify priorities for decision makers, guide resource
allocation for housing programs and services, and define how
and where the city should create new homes for San
Franciscans, or those who want to call this city home. This plan
will need to accommodate the creation of 82,000 units by 2031,
a target set by State and Regional Agencies that has been
tripled compared to the city’s current targets.

The first phase of community engagement wrapped up in
December 2020, resulting in more than 220 listening session
participants, 1,631 survey respondents, and 118 online
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https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//sfhousingelement.org/housing-element-update-2022-phase-1-outreach-summary&g=YTBkYTAyODc5ZmI2YmFkOQ==&h=ZjRmNDIzODZiNTU2OTVhNjM5ZTgyZjdkOTIzNDFkZWY0M2FiNDRjOTBjM2I3Mjc1ZDVlOGRmMjFiMTBmMGI4ZQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOmUwNTM5MmQ4OGQ0ZmRjNjliYWZiOTNlZjY2ZDAwYzExOnYx
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https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//sfhousingelement.org/first-draft-plan&g=MWZjYmEwNDk2NGE0OWUxZA==&h=NzRmNzg0MTY2ODY2ZTZkMjk0NjhmOWE4MDE1MDEyMDNiZmIwMGM0MmQ5YTI1Yjc0NDdhMWYwMGM1NDE3YTc1MQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOmUwNTM5MmQ4OGQ0ZmRjNjliYWZiOTNlZjY2ZDAwYzExOnYx
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participation platform respondents, who in total shared more
than 2,400 comments and rated key policy ideas summarized
from past outreach and engagement efforts.

San Francisco communities expressed a strong commitment to
pursuing major shifts in how we plan for housing in this city. We
heard, through a variety of engagement forums for the Housing
Element as well other initiatives, a clear consensus that the City
should focus on not just stopping but repairing the harms done to
American Indian, Black, Chinese, Japanese, Filipino, Latinx, and
all communities of color. The goals, policies and actions included
in this first draft are all designed to launch a new era of housing
policy in San Francisco in which the City would:

Recognize right to housing for vulnerable groups
Expand programs to bring back displaced communities
Increase resources within Priority Geographies for
acquisition and rehabilitation, tenant protections, and
homeownership to advance racial and social equity
Invest in community facilities and infrastructure in
Priority Geographies to improve resources for residents
Increase investment in permanently affordable housing
within High-Opportunity Areas
Increase housing choice in High-Opportunity Areas for
all income levels and focus on small to mid-rise multi-
family buildings.

The release of the draft Housing Element launches the
second phase of outreach and engagement. SF Planning has
secured funding and resources to partner with key community-
based organizations and is calling for assistance from these
groups to design and lead focus group conversations. These
focus groups will represent communities of color, vulnerable
groups, and various geographies, and some will address specific
topics (e.g. homelessness and supportive services). The
updated online platform allows  the public to review and share
input on the draft goals, policies, and actions. Public hearings
and sessions at will provide more opportunities for residents and
community members to provide input directly to City decision
makers. Finally, Phase II will continue to collaborate with the
Housing Policy Group and will also enlist the support of the
newly created SF Planning Equity Advisory Council to help
review the draft Housing Element.

Please share your input on each policy through our online
platform, and also look for a sorting tool to be released next
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week through which you can see related policies and actions
across different goals. If you have ideas for deepening outreach
and engagement with your community, please contact
Shelley.Caltagirone@sfgov.org who will be helping to coordinate
this next round of community discussions.

Want to learn more about the Housing Element 2022 Update?
Visit: sfhousingelement.org

Stay connected: join our mailing list for the latest news and
updates from the Housing Element 2022 Update.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: D8 resident in support of 1900 Diamond housing
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 1:14:51 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Michelle Echenique <shellech@gmail.com>
Date: Friday, April 9, 2021 at 10:39 AM
To: "Mandelman, Rafael (BOS)" <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Bintliff, Jacob (BOS)" <jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>, "Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)"
<gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"marc@1900diamond.com" <marc@1900diamond.com>, Michele Cobble
<cobbleml@yahoo.com>
Subject: D8 resident in support of 1900 Diamond housing
 

 

Dear Supervisor Mandelman,
 
As  20+ year residents of Noe Valley, we strongly support the proposal to create 24
family-sized homes at 1900 Diamond Street. D8 has not done nearly enough to help
San Francisco and the Bay Area address the housing crisis, which is one of our
region’s most pressing challenges. In the past 40 years, there has not been a single
project of 20+ homes in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. There have only
been two projects of 10+ homes in Noe or Diamond Heights in those same four
decades.
 
Considering our proximity to hundreds of thousands of jobs & our comparatively good
access to transit, this is unacceptable. D8 needs to do more, and this steep vacant
hillside presents us with an ideal opportunity. Our neighborhood is something special,
and we should be opening our arms to share it with 24 additional families. 
 
I understand that some neighbors are opposed to the density (24 homes on 3/4 acre
does not strike us as particularly dense), the height of five stories (which is stepped
back and built into the hillside), the loss of downtown views from the sidewalk (the
same panoramic view is available from over a dozen public spots within a couple
blocks) and the impact of construction (no one likes construction, but this is not a
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reason to reject much-needed housing). However, these complaints strike me as
classic Not In My Backyard arguments and do not address San Francisco’s official
goal of creating more housing. 
 
The project will also lead to the creation of 8-9 affordable homes in San Francisco,
and the Cesar Chavez Foundation will use the land sale proceeds to further its
mission of creating affordable housing and providing services to Latinx working
families. 
 
Finally, 1900 Diamond is a prime transit-oriented development opportunity site as two
SFMTA bus lines, the 35 and 52, literally stop in front of the site and the Glen Park
BART station is only ¾ mile away.  
 
Thank you for hearing us out on this, Supervisor Mandelman, and for your leadership
of D8. 
 
Sincerely, 
Michelle Echenique & Michele Cobble
884 Alvarado Street



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED SIGNS LEGISLATION TO LAUNCH $10.9 MILLION GRANT

PROGRAM FOR SMALL BUSINESSES
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 12:49:41 PM
Attachments: 04.09.21 Grants and Loans Legislation Signing.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Friday, April 9, 2021 at 12:48 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED SIGNS LEGISLATION
TO LAUNCH $10.9 MILLION GRANT PROGRAM FOR SMALL BUSINESSES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, April 9, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED SIGNS LEGISLATION TO

LAUNCH $10.9 MILLION GRANT PROGRAM FOR SMALL
BUSINESSES

Applications launch for San Francisco’s expanded grant program to provide direct financial
support for small business

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today signed legislation to fund additional
grants and loans to provide immediate financial relief for small businesses struggling as a
result of COVID-19. The $10.9 million grant program will focus on helping storefront
businesses that have received little to no federal or city funding, businesses that have been
forced to close for six months or longer due to state and local regulations, long established
businesses, and those in high need neighborhoods.
 
The City will begin accepting grant applications today. Small businesses can apply online at
sf.gov/sf-relief-grants. Beginning in May this grant program will be complemented by the
launch of over $10 million in very low to zero-interest loans for small businesses through an
initial investment in a partnership with the state backed California Rebuilding Fund.
 
“While it’s exciting that we’ve been able to reopen more and more parts of our economy, we
know that our economic recovery isn’t going to happen overnight. Our small business
community has been hurting for more than a year, and they need our continued support,” said
Mayor Breed. “These new grants will provide continued relief to help our small businesses
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Friday, April 9, 2021 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org   
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED SIGNS LEGISLATION TO LAUNCH 
$10.9 MILLION GRANT PROGRAM FOR SMALL BUSINESSES 


Applications launch for San Francisco’s expanded grant program to provide direct financial 
support for small business 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today signed legislation to fund additional 
grants and loans to provide immediate financial relief for small businesses struggling as a result 
of COVID-19. The $10.9 million grant program will focus on helping storefront businesses that 
have received little to no federal or city funding, businesses that have been forced to close for six 
months or longer due to state and local regulations, long established businesses, and those in 
high need neighborhoods. 
 
The City will begin accepting grant applications today. Small businesses can apply online at 
sf.gov/sf-relief-grants. Beginning in May this grant program will be complemented by the launch 
of over $10 million in very low to zero-interest loans for small businesses through an initial 
investment in a partnership with the state backed California Rebuilding Fund. 
 
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
survive and recover, which is so critical because we know that our city’s recovery is dependent 
on their success.”   
 
While no City has the resources to meet a crisis of these proportions alone, locally, San 
Francisco has already committed more than $24 million to fund grants and loans and has waived 
millions in fees for our hardest hit small businesses. City resources have focused on prioritizing 
those that face the greatest barriers to accessing state, federal, and private capital. In total, 57.6% 
of all OEWD administered COVID-19 small business relief grants have been awarded to 
women-owned businesses and 67.6% to minority-owned businesses. This latest small business 
grant program is the largest to date and will provide much needed support as businesses seek to 
recover from the devastating impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Grant Program -- $10.9 million 
This new grant program will provide immediate relief to help stabilize more than 1,400 small 
businesses by offering grants of between $5,000 and $25,000 based on the number of employees 
that each employer had prior to the pandemic. This program will support small businesses 
operated citywide and target businesses owned by people of color, women, long-standing 
businesses, those most impacted by Stay at Home orders, and those that were excluded from or 
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otherwise unable to access state and federal programs. Businesses will be required to have a San 
Francisco storefront open to the public and a San Francisco business license to operate. Grant 
funding will begin being delivered within 30 days after the application period closes, with the 
goal of disbursing all $10.9 million by July so as to support businesses impacted by the current 
surge. More substantial loan funds will follow during the summer to supporting businesses as 
they further reopen and bring more people back to work. 
 
The grant funds are split into two programs. The Small Business Storefront Equity program 
focuses on businesses that have been most impacted by closures required by the Stay at Home 
Order, those that have not been able to access other local, state, and federal resources, and those 
serving low-income, historically disinvested neighborhoods. The Community Storefront Anchors 
program is focused on supporting long-running businesses and those that contribute to the 
culture and vibrancy of San Francisco and its commercial corridors. 
 
San Francisco Community Investment Loan Program -- $7.3 million 
This new loan program, to be launched in May, is aimed at supporting businesses by providing 
working capital, especially to those left out of existing relief programs. To meet the 
overwhelming need created by COVID-19, during the past year, the City has successfully 
leveraged investments to maximize available loans to small businesses.  Working with our State-
backed lending partners and local community-based partners, the City will leverage additional 
funding to offer San Francisco small businesses very low to zero-interest loans ranging up to 
$100,000.   
 
Since the beginning of the pandemic, the City of San Francisco has provided immediate and 
ongoing support for small businesses, including an investment of more than $24 million in grants 
and loans to more than 1,300 small businesses, tens of millions of dollars in fee and tax deferrals, 
and assistance applying for state and federal funding. This includes legislation introduced and 
signed by the Mayor to waive $5 million in fees and taxes for entertainment and nightlife venues 
and small restaurants, meaning that businesses that receive a waiver do not have to pay back the 
fees at a later date. 
 
In addition to creating and supporting programs that respond to the urgent and ongoing needs of 
COVID-19, Mayor Breed has continued to invest in programs that regularly support small 
businesses in San Francisco, including the Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative and Grants for the 
Arts. Lastly, the City has advanced numerous initiatives to make it easier to operate and open 
businesses during COVID-19 and beyond, such as the Shared Spaces program and the Small 
Business Recovery Act legislation, which was introduced in March and is scheduled for hearings 
in the coming weeks. More information about San Francisco’s support for small businesses is 
available here.  
 


### 



https://sfmayor.org/article/mayor-london-breed-introduces-legislation-support-san-francisco-small-businesses

https://sfmayor.org/article/mayor-london-breed-introduces-legislation-support-san-francisco-small-businesses

https://londonbreed.medium.com/supporting-our-small-businesses-def71f4633a1





survive and recover, which is so critical because we know that our city’s recovery is
dependent on their success.” 
 
While no City has the resources to meet a crisis of these proportions alone, locally, San
Francisco has already committed more than $24 million to fund grants and loans and has
waived millions in fees for our hardest hit small businesses. City resources have focused on
prioritizing those that face the greatest barriers to accessing state, federal, and private capital.
In total, 57.6% of all OEWD administered COVID-19 small business relief grants have been
awarded to women-owned businesses and 67.6% to minority-owned businesses. This latest
small business grant program is the largest to date and will provide much needed support as
businesses seek to recover from the devastating impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
 
Grant Program -- $10.9 million
This new grant program will provide immediate relief to help stabilize more than 1,400 small
businesses by offering grants of between $5,000 and $25,000 based on the number of
employees that each employer had prior to the pandemic. This program will support small
businesses operated citywide and target businesses owned by people of color, women, long-
standing businesses, those most impacted by Stay at Home orders, and those that were
excluded from or otherwise unable to access state and federal programs. Businesses will be
required to have a San Francisco storefront open to the public and a San Francisco business
license to operate. Grant funding will begin being delivered within 30 days after the
application period closes, with the goal of disbursing all $10.9 million by July so as to support
businesses impacted by the current surge. More substantial loan funds will follow during the
summer to supporting businesses as they further reopen and bring more people back to work.
 
The grant funds are split into two programs. The Small Business Storefront Equity program
focuses on businesses that have been most impacted by closures required by the Stay at Home
Order, those that have not been able to access other local, state, and federal resources, and
those serving low-income, historically disinvested neighborhoods. The Community Storefront
Anchors program is focused on supporting long-running businesses and those that contribute
to the culture and vibrancy of San Francisco and its commercial corridors.
 
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
leveraged investments to maximize available loans to small businesses.  Working with our
State-backed lending partners and local community-based partners, the City will leverage
additional funding to offer San Francisco small businesses very low to zero-interest loans
ranging up to $100,000. 
 
Since the beginning of the pandemic, the City of San Francisco has provided immediate and
ongoing support for small businesses, including an investment of more than $24 million in
grants and loans to more than 1,300 small businesses, tens of millions of dollars in fee and tax
deferrals, and assistance applying for state and federal funding. This includes legislation
introduced and signed by the Mayor to waive $5 million in fees and taxes for entertainment
and nightlife venues and small restaurants, meaning that businesses that receive a waiver do
not have to pay back the fees at a later date.
 
In addition to creating and supporting programs that respond to the urgent and ongoing needs



of COVID-19, Mayor Breed has continued to invest in programs that regularly support small
businesses in San Francisco, including the Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative and Grants for
the Arts. Lastly, the City has advanced numerous initiatives to make it easier to operate and
open businesses during COVID-19 and beyond, such as the Shared Spaces program and the
Small Business Recovery Act legislation, which was introduced in March and is scheduled for
hearings in the coming weeks. More information about San Francisco’s support for small
businesses is available here. 
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2135 Market
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 8:41:21 AM
Attachments: Joe Gallagher - 2135 Market St..pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
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From: Joe Gallagher <joe@joesbarbershop.com>
Date: Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 9:29 AM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"kent.n.mirkhani@gmail.com" <kent.n.mirkhani@gmail.com>, "Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)"
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>, "Temprano, Tom (BOS)" <tom.temprano@sfgov.org>,
"Mandelman, Rafael (BOS)" <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>, "Bintliff, Jacob (BOS)"
<jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>, "Greving, Justin (CPC)" <justin.greving@sfgov.org>
Subject: 2135 Market
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JOE’S BARBERSHOP


March 31, 2021


Joe Gallagher (Owner)
2150 Market St.
San Francisco, CA 94114
joesbarbershop.com
joe@joesbarbershop.com
(415) 378-3656


Joel Koppel
San Francisco Planning Commission
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


RE: Support 2135 Market St.
Planning Case Number: 2018-013451-PRJ
Building Permit Number: 2018-1214-830


Dear Mr. Koppel:


I am Joe Gallagher, the owner of Joe’s Barbershop at 2150 Market St. here in


San Francisco. I am writing to request that you approve the housing


development at 2135 Market St. We are directly across the street from this


proposed development.


In my opinion, this new building is one of the best things to happen to our


neighborhood in a long time. Currently, 2135 Market St. is occupied by a


small, old, and, if I may say, very ugly building that has been vacant for


years. Even in the best of times, that building never did serve our community.


The new building, on the other hand, is good looking, and will provide 20%


affordable (below market rate) on-site housing for local couples and/or


families, which goes above and beyond the city’s requirements.


Not only that, but even the unsubsidized units will be very affordable because


the construction is dense for this neighborhood. I am especially happy to see


plans for 3 and 4 bedroom units, which are so hard to find and which allow


flexibility in living arrangements. That’s exactly what we need in a diverse


community like ours. For example, immigrant families that have multiple


generations living together under one roof could find a home here.







When it comes to housing developments, “affordable” and “high-quality” tend to


be mutually exclusive, so I’m very impressed that the design for this building


manages to combine both. You don’t see many rental units with private outdoor


space, yet in this building, each unit will have its own balcony.


The building is providing more shared outdoor usable space than is required


under code as well. Outside of luxury condos, it’s rare to find a housing


development with this much shared outdoor space. Finally, the windows are


generously sized. Normally when it’s a rental building, the windows tend to be


the size of embrasures, so it’s nice to see that the units will have natural


light.


As a longtime member of this neighborhood, I can’t wait to see this project


get off the ground. This block in particular could really use more activated


spaces! Please do everything you can to help make this project happen.


Sincerely,


Joe Gallagher
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From: Joe Gallagher <joe@joesbarbershop.com>
Date: Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 9:28 AM
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
Subject: 2140 Market
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


RE: Support 2140 Market St.
Planning Case Number: 2018–013577 PRJ
Building Permit Number: 2018–1218–8616


Dear Mr. Koppel:


I am Joe Gallagher, the owner of Joe’s Barbershop at 2150 Market St. here in


San Francisco. I am writing to request that you approve the housing


development at 2140 Market St. We are directly next door to this proposed


development.


In my opinion, this new building is one of the best things to happen to our


neighborhood in a long time. Currently, the site for the proposed building is


an empty parking lot, an abandoned/closed bar, and a non-descript apartment


building. The new building, on the other hand, is handsome, and will provide


20% affordable (below market rate) on-site housing for local couples and/or


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
Subject: 1900 Diamond
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 8:32:23 AM
Attachments: D8 resident in support of 1900 Diamond housing.msg

Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street.msg

 
 
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
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Chanbory.Son@sfgov.org
mailto:Gabriela.Pantoja@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

D8 resident in support of 1900 Diamond housing

		From

		Maria Mortati

		To

		Mandelman, Rafael (BOS)

		Cc

		Bintliff, Jacob (BOS); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC); marc@1900diamond.com

		Recipients

		rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org; jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org; gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org; jonas.ionin@sfgov.org; marc@1900diamond.com



 	This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Dear Supervisor Mandelman,

As a 10-year resident of Noe Valley, I strongly support the proposal to create 24 family-sized homes at 1900 Diamond Street. D8 has not done nearly enough to help San Francisco address the housing crisis, which is one of our region’s most pressing challenges. In the past 40 years, there has not been a single project of 20+ homes in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights, or Glen Park. There have only been two projects of 10+ homes in Noe or Diamond Heights in those same four decades.

Considering our proximity to hundreds of thousands of jobs and our comparatively good access to transit, this is not acceptable. D8 needs to do more, and this steep vacant hillside presents us with an ideal opportunity. Our neighborhood is something special, and I ask that we open our arms and share it with 24 additional families. 

I understand that some neighbors are opposed to the density (24 homes on 3/4 acre does not strike me as particularly dense), the height of five stories (which is stepped back and built into the hillside), the loss of downtown views from the sidewalk (the same panoramic view is available from over a dozen public spots within a couple of blocks) and the impact of construction (no one likes construction, but this is not a reason to reject much-needed housing). However, these complaints do not address San Francisco’s official goal of creating more housing. 

The project will also lead to the creation of 8-9 affordable homes in San Francisco and the Cesar Chavez Foundation will use the land sale proceeds to further its mission of creating affordable housing and providing services to Latinx working families. 

Finally, 1900 Diamond is a prime transit-oriented development opportunity site as two SFMTA bus lines, the 35 and 52, literally, stop in front of the site and the Glen Park BART station is only ¾ mile away.

Many thanks for hearing me out on this, Supervisor Mandelman.



Sincerely,



Maria Mortati

4352/4354 23rd Street

SF CA 94114






Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Hulett Jones

		To

		Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

		Recipients

		jonas.ionin@sfgov.org



 	This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Jonas Ionin,



I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley, Diamond Heights and Glen Park).



For the first time in over 40 years, a housing proposal with more than 20 homes could happen in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. This marks a great step towards housing equity in San Francisco and will help to alleviate our city's housing shortage, displacement, and affordability crises. It's long past time for District 8 neighborhoods to add their fair share of new homes. 



Moreover, these proposed new homes at 1900 Diamond Street are exceedingly thoughtful, well-designed, and well-located. Their many highlights include:



1. Close proximity to public transit: Two major SFMTA bus lines, 35 and 52, stop directly in front of the new homes. The site is also only ¾ mile from the Glen Park BART Station, an easy walk or bike ride away.



2. Economical land use: A steep, undeveloped hillside will be transformed into 24 homes.



3. Affordable housing: Approximately eight or nine affordable homes will be created (25 -27% of all new homes) with the $2.4M in affordable housing fees being paid to the Mayor’s Office of Housing.



Moreover, the land is being sold by the Cesar Chavez Foundation, a 45-year old non-profit headed by Cesar’s son, Paul Chavez. The proceeds from the sale of 1900 Diamond will be used by the Cesar Chavez Foundation to further its mission of building affordable housing and providing services to Latinx working families.



4. Family housing: These homes are designed for families. All townhomes have three bedrooms, and the home layouts were informed by Emeryville’s family housing design guidelines.



5. Neighborhood cohesiveness - These homes have been thoughtfully designed to blend in with Diamond Height's mid-century aesthetic through stacked townhomes.



6. Open space - The area surrounding these homes is one of the most park-rich in all of SF, with five parks, playgrounds, and open spaces located within blocks.



For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help your district become a place where more residents can call home.



Hulett Jones 
hulett@joneshaydu.com



San Francisco, California 94107





 





 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 8:31:56 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Zack Conquer <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "zwconquer@gmail.com" <zwconquer@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 at 8:43 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
 

 

Jonas Ionin,

I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new
homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley,
Diamond Heights and Glen Park).

For the first time in over 40 years, a housing proposal with more than 20 homes could
happen in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. This marks a great step towards
housing equity in San Francisco and will help to alleviate our city's housing shortage,
displacement, and affordability crises. It's long past time for District 8 neighborhoods to add
their fair share of new homes.

Moreover, these proposed new homes at 1900 Diamond Street are exceedingly thoughtful,
well-designed, and well-located. Their many highlights include:

1. Close proximity to public transit: Two major SFMTA bus lines, 35 and 52, stop directly in
front of the new homes. The site is also only ¾ mile from the Glen Park BART Station, an
easy walk or bike ride away.

2. Economical land use: A steep, undeveloped hillside will be transformed into 24 homes.

3. Affordable housing: Approximately eight or nine affordable homes will be created (25
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-27% of all new homes) with the $2.4M in affordable housing fees being paid to the Mayor’s
Office of Housing.

Moreover, the land is being sold by the Cesar Chavez Foundation, a 45-year old non-profit
headed by Cesar’s son, Paul Chavez. The proceeds from the sale of 1900 Diamond will be
used by the Cesar Chavez Foundation to further its mission of building affordable housing
and providing services to Latinx working families.

4. Family housing: These homes are designed for families. All townhomes have three
bedrooms, and the home layouts were informed by Emeryville’s family housing design
guidelines.

5. Neighborhood cohesiveness - These homes have been thoughtfully designed to blend in
with Diamond Height's mid-century aesthetic through stacked townhomes.

6. Open space - The area surrounding these homes is one of the most park-rich in all of
SF, with five parks, playgrounds, and open spaces located within blocks.

For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help
your district become a place where more residents can call home.

Zack Conquer 
zwconquer@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94127

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: 1900 Diamond
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 8:31:30 AM
Attachments: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street.msg
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

		Adrian Spanu

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
adri@nspanu.ca



San Francisco, California 94158





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Jessica Perla

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
jessica@jperla.com



San Francisco, California 94107





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Matthew Janes

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



Thank you, 
Matthew Janes



Matthew Janes 
mjanes@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94110





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Chris Heriot

		To

		Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

		Recipients

		jonas.ionin@sfgov.org



 	This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Jonas Ionin,



Hi, Supervisor, I just moved to your district from D6. I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley, Diamond Heights and Glen Park).



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
cheriot@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94110





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Caitlin Barta

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
caitlin.barta@gmail.com 
314 Vicksburg St 
San Francisco, California 94114





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Mitch Conquer

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
mitchconquer@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94127





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Mary Cattani

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
emmycattani@gmail.com 
15 Heyman Avenue 
San Francisco, California 94110





 





From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED APPOINTS SHIREEN MCSPADDEN TO LEAD

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELESSNESS AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
Date: Thursday, April 08, 2021 3:30:11 PM
Attachments: 04.08.21 HSH Director.pdf

 
 
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
MAYOR LONDON BREED APPOINTS SHIREEN MCSPADDEN

TO LEAD DEPARTMENT OF HOMELESSNESS AND
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

McSpadden, who currently serves as Executive Director of the Department of Disability and
Aging Services, brings over 30 years’ experience providing services to vulnerable populations

 
San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced the appointment of Shireen
McSpadden as the new Director of the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
(HSH). McSpadden currently serves as the Executive Director of the Department of Disability
and Aging Services, which serves over 70,000 seniors, adults with disabilities, caregivers and
veterans every year. She will start the new position on May 1st.
 
Joining McSpadden in HSH leadership will be Noelle Simmons, currently a Deputy Director
at the Human Services Agency, and Cynthia Nagendra, currently the Executive Director at the
Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative. Simmons, who has led the Economic Support
and Self-Sufficiency Division at the Human Services Agency for the last 6 years, will serve as
the Chief Deputy at HSH. Nagendra, a nationally recognized expert on homelessness, will lead
long-range planning efforts for the Department. 

The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing is focused on moving people
permanently out of homelessness through strategies that stabilize people’s lives through the
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Thursday, April 8, 2021 
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
 
Joining McSpadden in HSH leadership will be Noelle Simmons, currently a Deputy Director at 
the Human Services Agency, and Cynthia Nagendra, currently the Executive Director at the 
Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative. Simmons, who has led the Economic Support and 
Self-Sufficiency Division at the Human Services Agency for the last 6 years, will serve as the 
Chief Deputy at HSH. Nagendra, a nationally recognized expert on homelessness, will lead long-
range planning efforts for the Department.   
 
The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing is focused on moving people 
permanently out of homelessness through strategies that stabilize people’s lives through the 
City’s housing and support services, and building a system that ends a person’s homelessness 
before it becomes chronic. This includes implementing the Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery 
Plan, which will deliver on the City’s commitment to dramatically expand housing options—
short, medium and long term—for those experiencing homelessness, as well as safely expand the 
shelter system.  
 
“I’m excited to appoint Shireen to this role, especially in this critical moment in our city’s 
history as we emerge from this pandemic,” said Mayor Breed. “For years, Shireen has led 
innovative and effective efforts to care for some of our most vulnerable residents, and over the 
past year she has been one of the leaders keeping our residents safe, healthy, and housed during 
this pandemic. Her experience and connection to communities will help the Department of 
Homelessness and Supportive Housing meet its goals of serving our most vulnerable residents, 
including the critical work of delivering on the promise of our Homeless Recovery Plan.”   
 
“It’s been an honor to lead the Department of Disability and Aging Services and I am deeply 
appreciative of the work and support of staff, colleagues, organizations and people with 
disabilities and seniors themselves,” said McSpadden. “Our response to homelessness is one of 
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the most important, pressing and complex issues facing this City as we emerge from this 
pandemic, and I’m excited to join the Department of Housing and Supportive Housing to 
continue the work to serve some of our City’s most vulnerable residents. I’m grateful to Mayor 
Breed for the opportunity to lead this Department, and I’m excited for continuing partnerships—
and new ones—as we tackle homelessness together.” 
 
At the Department of Disability and Aging Services, McSpadden has led efforts focused on 
helping people engage and connect in their communities, meet basic needs through resources like 
home-delivered meals and home care programs, and support individuals experiencing crisis who 
need more intensive intervention. This includes a number of initiatives that will serve as 
important experience for meeting the mission of the Department of Homelessness and 
Supportive Housing. These include: 
 


● Facilitating successful transitions out of Laguna Honda and into stable housing in the 
community for many formerly homeless people with chronic health conditions. 
Structured on the principles of person-centered care planning, this effort represents a 
deep and collaborative partnership with the Department of Public Health and many non-
profit organizations, including Institute on Aging and Brilliant Corners. 


● Administering rental subsidy programs that support seniors and adults with disabilities to 
maintain their housing. This includes a program for housed people unable to continue 
affording their rent and unable to find an affordable alternative, as well as a scattered site 
housing program that secures housing units, augments costs, and provides housing 
retention support to people with higher needs. 


● Running the In-Home Supportive Services program that provides help at home to low-
income people with disabilities. In San Francisco, this includes a unique partnership with 
the non-profit Homebridge for people unable to manage their home care. Homebridge 
supports hundreds of people living in supportive housing, many of whom face behavioral 
health challenges and need help with basic daily tasks, to maintain their housing. 


● Piloting a homelessness prevention program through Adult Protective Services program 
that seeks to promote deeper collaboration with the homelessness continuum of care to 
support older and disabled people at risk of becoming homeless due to abuse and/or self-
neglect  


● Operating a special care team created during the COVID-19 response to assist with the 
transition and stabilization of homeless and vulnerable individuals placed in Shelter-in-
Place hotels. 


 
“Shireen McSpadden has a strong commitment to and deep understanding of the senior and 
disability communities, who comprise the majority of unhoused people in San Francisco. 
Considering this fact, along with Shireen’s track record of collaborating effectively, dreaming 
big, and listening to community, Shireen is an ideal person to take over the Department of 
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Homelessness and Supportive Housing,” said Jessica Lehman, Executive Director of Senior 
Disability Action Network. 
 
“Shireen McSpadden’s experience in the field of aging is exactly what is needed in the 
Department of Homelessness as we see more seniors becoming homeless. She understands the 
needs of vulnerable people and has the compassion combined with administrative skill to bring 
everyone together to make change happen,” said Cathy Davis, Executive Director of Bayview 
Senior Services. 
 
McSpadden has over 30 years’ experience providing services to people with disabilities and 
seniors, in both the nonprofit and public sectors. In 2020, Shireen was recognized for her anti-
ageism work by Time Magazine, named as one of 16 people and groups fighting for a more 
equitable America. She serves on several local boards and committees and currently co-chairs 
both the San Francisco Long Term Care Coordinating Council and the San Francisco Palliative 
Care Work Group. She currently serves as president of the California Association of Area 
Agencies on Aging. As a member of Governor Newsom’s Master Plan for Aging Stakeholder 
Committee, Shireen helped shape California’s Master Plan for Aging. She is also an executive 
board member, representing California, for the National Association of Area Agencies on Aging. 
Ms. McSpadden holds a Master’s Degree in Nonprofit Administration. 
 
Noelle Simmons has been a Deputy Director at the San Francisco Human Services Agency since 
2007. In this capacity, she oversees the administration of public benefits programs serving low-
income families and individuals, including CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medicaid, General Assistance 
and Workforce Development Services, and provides leadership to Families Rising, a two-
generation collective impact initiative that seeks to disrupt the intergenerational transfer of 
poverty. Simmons has extensive experience in housing and homeless services, legislative 
analysis and advocacy, and strategic planning. She previously served as the Budget Director for 
the City and County of San Francisco and holds a Master’s degree in Public Policy from UC 
Berkeley. 
 
Cynthia Nagendra brings 20 years of experience in designing homeless response systems and 
effectuating systems change at different levels of government with the goal of ending 
homelessness and advancing housing justice. She has focused her career on homelessness policy, 
strategic planning, advocacy, cross-sector partnerships, and data-driven and equitable program 
design in San Francisco and over 40 communities across the country. She is the founding 
Executive Director of the UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative at UCSF, where 
she has built an organization of experts to provide research and policy recommendations to 
strengthen the public sector’s response to the most critical issues facing unhoused people. She 
previously served as the Director of the Center for Capacity Building at the National Alliance to 
End Homelessness, where she developed a national best practices curriculum and partnered with 
federal policy makers. She began her career providing direct services to people experiencing 
homelessness in San Francisco as a Program Manager at St. Anthony Foundation in the 
Tenderloin. She graduated from law school in New York City, where she worked on 
immigration, criminal justice, and women’s rights issues. 


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
short, medium and long term—for those experiencing homelessness, as well as safely expand
the shelter system.
 
“I’m excited to appoint Shireen to this role, especially in this critical moment in our city’s
history as we emerge from this pandemic,” said Mayor Breed. “For years, Shireen has led
innovative and effective efforts to care for some of our most vulnerable residents, and over the
past year she has been one of the leaders keeping our residents safe, healthy, and housed
during this pandemic. Her experience and connection to communities will help the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing meet its goals of serving our most
vulnerable residents, including the critical work of delivering on the promise of our Homeless
Recovery Plan.” 
 
“It’s been an honor to lead the Department of Disability and Aging Services and I am deeply
appreciative of the work and support of staff, colleagues, organizations and people with
disabilities and seniors themselves,” said McSpadden. “Our response to homelessness is one
of the most important, pressing and complex issues facing this City as we emerge from this
pandemic, and I’m excited to join the Department of Housing and Supportive Housing to
continue the work to serve some of our City’s most vulnerable residents. I’m grateful to
Mayor Breed for the opportunity to lead this Department, and I’m excited for continuing
partnerships—and new ones—as we tackle homelessness together.”
 
At the Department of Disability and Aging Services, McSpadden has led efforts focused on
helping people engage and connect in their communities, meet basic needs through resources
like home-delivered meals and home care programs, and support individuals experiencing
crisis who need more intensive intervention. This includes a number of initiatives that will
serve as important experience for meeting the mission of the Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing.
 
These include:
 

Facilitating successful transitions out of Laguna Honda and into stable housing in the
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
Administering rental subsidy programs that support seniors and adults with disabilities
to maintain their housing. This includes a program for housed people unable to continue
affording their rent and unable to find an affordable alternative, as well as a scattered
site housing program that secures housing units, augments costs, and provides housing
retention support to people with higher needs.
Running the In-Home Supportive Services program that provides help at home to low-
income people with disabilities. In San Francisco, this includes a unique partnership
with the non-profit Homebridge for people unable to manage their home care.
Homebridge supports hundreds of people living in supportive housing, many of whom
face behavioral health challenges and need help with basic daily tasks, to maintain their
housing.
Piloting a homelessness prevention program through Adult Protective Services program



that seeks to promote deeper collaboration with the homelessness continuum of care to
support older and disabled people at risk of becoming homeless due to abuse and/or
self-neglect
Operating a special care team created during the COVID-19 response to assist with the
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
needs of vulnerable people and has the compassion combined with administrative skill to
bring everyone together to make change happen,” said Cathy Davis, Executive Director of
Bayview Senior Services.
 
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
both the San Francisco Long Term Care Coordinating Council and the San Francisco
Palliative Care Work Group. She currently serves as president of the California Association of
Area Agencies on Aging. As a member of Governor Newsom’s Master Plan for Aging
Stakeholder Committee, Shireen helped shape California’s Master Plan for Aging. She is also
an executive board member, representing California, for the National Association of Area
Agencies on Aging. Ms. McSpadden holds a Master’s Degree in Nonprofit Administration.
 
Noelle Simmons has been a Deputy Director at the San Francisco Human Services Agency
since 2007. In this capacity, she oversees the administration of public benefits programs
serving low-income families and individuals, including CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medicaid,
General Assistance and Workforce Development Services, and provides leadership to Families
Rising, a two-generation collective impact initiative that seeks to disrupt the intergenerational
transfer of poverty. Simmons has extensive experience in housing and homeless services,
legislative analysis and advocacy, and strategic planning. She previously served as the Budget
Director for the City and County of San Francisco and holds a Master’s degree in Public
Policy from UC Berkeley.
 
Cynthia Nagendra brings 20 years of experience in designing homeless response systems and
effectuating systems change at different levels of government with the goal of ending
homelessness and advancing housing justice. She has focused her career on homelessness
policy, strategic planning, advocacy, cross-sector partnerships, and data-driven and equitable
program design in San Francisco and over 40 communities across the country. She is the
founding Executive Director of the UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative at
UCSF, where she has built an organization of experts to provide research and policy
recommendations to strengthen the public sector’s response to the most critical issues facing
unhoused people. She previously served as the Director of the Center for Capacity Building at



the National Alliance to End Homelessness, where she developed a national best practices
curriculum and partnered with federal policy makers. She began her career providing direct
services to people experiencing homelessness in San Francisco as a Program Manager at St.
Anthony Foundation in the Tenderloin. She graduated from law school in New York City,
where she worked on immigration, criminal justice, and women’s rights issues.
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 10:43 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES PLANS FOR
INDOOR LIVE TICKETED EVENTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, April 8, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org  
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES PLANS FOR INDOOR LIVE

TICKETED EVENTS
Next Thursday San Francisco will issue formal guidelines to allow live performances, meetings, and

other events with capacity limits in indoor settings to begin starting April 15
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced that San Francisco is on track to issue guidelines that will allow indoor live
events to resume with capacity limits and other safety protocols beginning April 15, 2021.
These planned guidelines respond to new guidance from the State announced last week. The
State’s announcement established operating guidelines for indoor live events and
performances, which are activities that had not been previously addressed or allowed to reopen
in the State’s Blueprint for a Safer Economy. Additionally, the State recently changed the
allowances established for meetings and private events such as conferences and receptions as
well as expanding the number of participants allowed to participate in indoor and outdoor
social gatherings. San Francisco also plans to update its health order to offer local guidance for
conducting these activities.
 
“We know that much of what makes San Francisco special are the live performances and
events where people can come together for music, sports and cultural performances, and
graduations,” said Mayor Breed. “We’ve all been missing these events over the last year, and
we are excited for this step and what lies ahead, but we all need to keep doing our part to put
safety first. That means getting people the vaccine as fast as possible and ensuring everyone
remains vigilant in keeping our case numbers low.
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
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today 
announced that San Francisco is on track to issue guidelines that will allow indoor live events to 
resume with capacity limits and other safety protocols beginning April 15, 2021. These planned 
guidelines respond to new guidance from the State announced last week. The State’s 
announcement established operating guidelines for indoor live events and performances, which 
are activities that had not been previously addressed or allowed to reopen in the State’s Blueprint 
for a Safer Economy. Additionally, the State recently changed the allowances established for 
meetings and private events such as conferences and receptions as well as expanding the number 
of participants allowed to participate in indoor and outdoor social gatherings. San Francisco also 
plans to update its health order to offer local guidance for conducting these activities.  
 
“We know that much of what makes San Francisco special are the live performances and events 
where people can come together for music, sports and cultural performances, and graduations,” 
said Mayor Breed. “We’ve all been missing these events over the last year, and we are excited 
for this step and what lies ahead, but we all need to keep doing our part to put safety first. That 
means getting people the vaccine as fast as possible and ensuring everyone remains vigilant in 
keeping our case numbers low.  
 
San Francisco will generally align with what is permitted by the State with some additional local 
safety modifications. San Francisco plans to allow up to the maximum capacity of 35% for 
indoor ticketed and seated events and performances with an approved Health and Safety Plan, so 
long as the State’s social distancing guidelines can be maintained, and all participants keep their 
masks on except when eating or drinking in their assigned seats, and show proof of vaccination 
or a negative COVID-19 test. For venues operating at 15% capacity or less, with no more than 
200 people, an approved Health and Safety Plan and proof of vaccination or a negative test will 
not be required. San Francisco will work with stakeholders from industries impacted by the new 
guidance to develop the finer points of its local guidelines for both indoor ticketed performances 
as well as indoor meetings and private events to ensure they are clear and implementable with 
safety precautions within the industry context. 
 
A key criteria for the resumption and continuation of indoor live performances, events, and 
meetings and expansion of social gatherings will be a stable or declining rate of new COVID-19 
cases and hospitalizations. As public health officials continue to monitor San Francisco’s health 
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indicators, the City may need to pause or rollback activities if data suggests that COVID-19 is 
significantly increasing within the community again.  
 
San Francisco’s new COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations remain low. At this time, San 
Francisco is averaging 37 new cases a day and has been maintaining a stable average between 30 
and 40 new cases a day since early March 2021. Likewise, COVID-19 hospitalizations have been 
declining since February. Recently however, those trends have flattened and begun to tick up, 
though they remain low. With the growing prevalence of variants in the Bay Area and the surge 
in cases in Michigan and the northeast, public health officials are closely monitoring any changes 
to cases that may indicate increasing contagion.  
 
“We are now in a place where we can start to plan for the resumption of certain indoor cultural 
and life events that so many of us have missed this past year. That said, we must remain cautious 
as COVID-19 is still very much with us,” says Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax. “As we have 
seen in other parts of the country and in Europe, the threat of a fourth surge fueled by variants is 
one we need to take seriously. We must continue to follow the health precautions we know work 
to stop the spread of COVID-19. If we keep up the good work, and get sufficient vaccine supply 
we will hopefully be able to sustain and even expand these exciting reopenings.”   
 
With the flattening in the decline of cases, the City is emphasizing the need for continued 
adherence to public health mitigation measures, including by those who have been vaccinated. 
All members of the public are urged to wear masks, wash hands, and practice physical distancing 
whenever they are outside their homes. Customers and participants in regulated activities 
including indoor performances, meetings, and other events will be required to take these 
precautions, in addition to meeting vaccination or testing requirements for larger events. People 
at risk for severe illness with COVID-19, such as unvaccinated older adults and individuals with 
health risks, and members of their household are urged to continue taking strong precautions by 
choosing lower-risk options whenever possible.   
 
San Francisco continues to move forward with reopening and expansion in recognition of the 
need for economic relief by the City’s businesses and workers after more than a year of operating 
restrictions due to COVID-19. Bolstering these efforts is the City’s ongoing dissemination of 
vaccine. At this time, over 50% of San Franciscans have received their first dose of vaccine, as 
have over 80% of the City’s residents over 65. Last week, the City began allowing anyone over 
the age of 50 to receive a vaccine and starting Thursday, April 15, plans to allow general access 
to vaccines by anyone over the age of 16. Although consistent supply of COVID-19 vaccine 
remains a challenge preventing the City from distributing vaccines to its full capacity, it 
continues to make significant progress toward vaccinating people who live and work in San 
Francisco.  
 
 “I cannot overstate how important this announcement is. Music venues, performance theaters, 
and other live event operators have not been able to open for over a year and are out of options to 
sustain themselves,” said Anne Taupier, Acting Director of the Office of Economic and 
Workforce Development. “We at OEWD are so proud to have worked under the leadership of 
Mayor Breed to create programs aimed at offering whatever relief and assistance that San 
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Francisco could make available, but nothing can compare to at last having the option to reopen 
with appropriate safety precautions.”  
 
On Wednesday, April 14, and subject to the criteria of stable or declining case and 
hospitalization rates, the San Francisco Department of Public Health expects to issue final health 
and safety guidelines to reopen indoor live events, performances and meetings as well as some 
additional expansions of activities allowed under the State’s orange tier, including outdoor 
performances and events, as of 8:00 on Thursday April 15, 2021. The City will post the revised 
Health Order with detailed guidance to its webpage by the end of the day Wednesday April 14, 
2021.  
 
The Office of Economic and Workforce Development will host a webinar today April 8, at 4 pm 
with the City’s Acting Health Officer to present the changes that will go into effect as of April 
15, and offer information about what the City expects to reopen once it moves into the yellow 
tier. Interested parties may register for that webinar here: link.oewd.org/yellow 
 


### 
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San Francisco will generally align with what is permitted by the State with some additional
local safety modifications. San Francisco plans to allow up to the maximum capacity of 35%
for indoor ticketed and seated events and performances with an approved Health and Safety
Plan, so long as the State’s social distancing guidelines can be maintained, and all participants
keep their masks on except when eating or drinking in their assigned seats, and show proof of
vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test. For venues operating at 15% capacity or less, with
no more than 200 people, an approved Health and Safety Plan and proof of vaccination or a
negative test will not be required. San Francisco will work with stakeholders from industries
impacted by the new guidance to develop the finer points of its local guidelines for both
indoor ticketed performances as well as indoor meetings and private events to ensure they are
clear and implementable with safety precautions within the industry context.
 
A key criteria for the resumption and continuation of indoor live performances, events, and
meetings and expansion of social gatherings will be a stable or declining rate of new COVID-
19 cases and hospitalizations. As public health officials continue to monitor San Francisco’s
health indicators, the City may need to pause or rollback activities if data suggests that
COVID-19 is significantly increasing within the community again.
 
San Francisco’s new COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations remain low. At this time, San
Francisco is averaging 37 new cases a day and has been maintaining a stable average between
30 and 40 new cases a day since early March 2021. Likewise, COVID-19 hospitalizations
have been declining since February. Recently however, those trends have flattened and begun
to tick up, though they remain low. With the growing prevalence of variants in the Bay Area
and the surge in cases in Michigan and the northeast, public health officials are closely
monitoring any changes to cases that may indicate increasing contagion.
 
“We are now in a place where we can start to plan for the resumption of certain indoor cultural
and life events that so many of us have missed this past year. That said, we must remain
cautious as COVID-19 is still very much with us,” says Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax.
“As we have seen in other parts of the country and in Europe, the threat of a fourth surge
fueled by variants is one we need to take seriously. We must continue to follow the health
precautions we know work to stop the spread of COVID-19. If we keep up the good work, and
get sufficient vaccine supply we will hopefully be able to sustain and even expand these
exciting reopenings.” 
 
With the flattening in the decline of cases, the City is emphasizing the need for continued
adherence to public health mitigation measures, including by those who have been vaccinated.
All members of the public are urged to wear masks, wash hands, and practice physical
distancing whenever they are outside their homes. Customers and participants in regulated
activities including indoor performances, meetings, and other events will be required to take
these precautions, in addition to meeting vaccination or testing requirements for larger events.
People at risk for severe illness with COVID-19, such as unvaccinated older adults and
individuals with health risks, and members of their household are urged to continue taking
strong precautions by choosing lower-risk options whenever possible. 
 
San Francisco continues to move forward with reopening and expansion in recognition of the
need for economic relief by the City’s businesses and workers after more than a year of
operating restrictions due to COVID-19. Bolstering these efforts is the City’s ongoing
dissemination of vaccine. At this time, over 50% of San Franciscans have received their first
dose of vaccine, as have over 80% of the City’s residents over 65. Last week, the City began



allowing anyone over the age of 50 to receive a vaccine and starting Thursday, April 15, plans
to allow general access to vaccines by anyone over the age of 16. Although consistent supply
of COVID-19 vaccine remains a challenge preventing the City from distributing vaccines to
its full capacity, it continues to make significant progress toward vaccinating people who live
and work in San Francisco.
 
“I cannot overstate how important this announcement is. Music venues, performance theaters,
and other live event operators have not been able to open for over a year and are out of options
to sustain themselves,” said Anne Taupier, Acting Director of the Office of Economic and
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
hospitalization rates, the San Francisco Department of Public Health expects to issue final
health and safety guidelines to reopen indoor live events, performances and meetings as well
as some additional expansions of activities allowed under the State’s orange tier, including
outdoor performances and events, as of 8:00 on Thursday April 15, 2021. The City will post
the revised Health Order with detailed guidance to its webpage by the end of the day
Wednesday April 14, 2021.
 
The Office of Economic and Workforce Development will host a webinar today April 8, at 4
pm with the City’s Acting Health Officer to present the changes that will go into effect as of
April 15, and offer information about what the City expects to reopen once it moves into the
yellow tier. Interested parties may register for that webinar here: link.oewd.org/yellow
 

###
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW NEIGHBORHOOD VACCINATION SITE IN THE

EXCELSIOR DISTRICT AS PART OF EQUITY STRATEGY
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 1:11:59 PM
Attachments: 04.07.21 Excelsior Vaccination Site.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 at 10:03 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW
NEIGHBORHOOD VACCINATION SITE IN THE EXCELSIOR DISTRICT AS PART OF
EQUITY STRATEGY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, April 7, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW NEIGHBORHOOD

VACCINATION SITE IN THE EXCELSIOR DISTRICT AS
PART OF EQUITY STRATEGY

Operated in partnership with Excelsior Strong and Latino Task Force, the new vaccination
site offers low-barrier access to vaccines in a diverse neighborhood that is home to many

essential workers and others at risk of COVID-19 
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Ahsha Safaí, the Department of
Public Health (DPH), and community partners Excelsior Strong and Latino Task Force, today
announced the opening of a new neighborhood COVID-19 vaccine site in the Excelsior
District. The Excelsior site, located at 20 Norton Street, bolsters the City’s ongoing efforts to
ensure that highly impacted neighborhoods have equitable access to the vaccine. 
 
The goal of San Francisco’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as
convenient and comfortable for as many people as possible, particularly in those
neighborhoods disproportionately affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and where there is a
lack of access to healthcare. The Excelsior District is home to many Latino, Asian, and Pacific
Islander residents and essential workers and has been one of the neighborhoods hardest hit by
COVID-19. 
 
“Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, community organizations have worked hand-in-hand
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Wednesday, April 7, 2021 
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org   
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW NEIGHBORHOOD 


VACCINATION SITE IN THE EXCELSIOR DISTRICT AS 
PART OF EQUITY STRATEGY 


Operated in partnership with Excelsior Strong and Latino Task Force, the new vaccination 
site offers low-barrier access to vaccines in a diverse neighborhood that is home to many 


essential workers and others at risk of COVID-19  
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Ahsha Safaí, the Department of 
Public Health (DPH), and community partners Excelsior Strong and Latino Task Force, today 
announced the opening of a new neighborhood COVID-19 vaccine site in the Excelsior District. 
The Excelsior site, located at 20 Norton Street, bolsters the City’s ongoing efforts to ensure that 
highly impacted neighborhoods have equitable access to the vaccine.   
 
The goal of San Francisco’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as convenient 
and comfortable for as many people as possible, particularly in those neighborhoods 
disproportionately affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and where there is a lack of access to 
healthcare. The Excelsior District is home to many Latino, Asian, and Pacific Islander residents 
and essential workers and has been one of the neighborhoods hardest hit by COVID-19.   
 
“Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, community organizations have worked hand-in-hand 
with the City to make sure San Franciscans have the resources and support they need. We’re 
proud to work with leaders in the Excelsior to bring this site to a neighborhood that has been 
hard-hit by this virus,” said Mayor Breed. “We’re making good progress getting COVID-19 
vaccines to people throughout San Francisco, and this new site is part of a broader strategy to 
reach people where they live. We now have the capacity to vaccinate 20,000 people per day in 
San Francisco, and we’re prepared to administer those vaccines as quickly as we get the supply.”  
 
The new site in the Excelsior is planned to operate Wednesday through Saturday, from 9:30am-
3:30pm on Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays and 12 pm-6pm on Fridays. The site will 
have an initial capacity of 150 doses per day. Given that supply of the vaccine remains extremely 
limited, the Excelsior site is by appointment only with limited drop-in availability. Excelsior 
neighborhood residents and workers can call Excelsior Strong/Latino Task Force at (415) 562-
8638 to schedule an appointment.  
 
The Excelsior site, located on a San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) 
parking lot, has the additional benefit of being adjacent to Mission Street, which has numerous 
Muni bus lines, and walking distance from Balboa Park BART station, ensuring that it is 
accessible and convenient for people that it will serve. Muni and Paratransit are free for anyone 
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traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine appointments. The SFMTA is also providing additional 
access to taxi service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be found at 
sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/Paratransit.  
 
“At the onset of the Pandemic, the Excelsior saw very high rates of COVID-19 contraction. At 
that time we fought for services and worked with groups like Excelsior Strong and the Latino 
Task Force to secure and provide low barrier testing,” said Supervisor Safaí. “This site is the 
next step in that collaborative work as we offer vaccines to community members who need it 
most.”  
 
Neighborhood vaccine access sites, such as this new Excelsior site, are one critical piece of a 
larger network of vaccine distribution that also includes high-volume vaccination sites, 
community clinics, pharmacy partnerships, and mobile vaccination teams. In addition to the 
Excelsior site, the City continues to locate vaccine resources in neighborhoods that have 
disproportionally carried the burden of COVID-19 and has created neighborhood vaccine access 
sites in the Mission and the Bayview.   
 
Additionally, the City has expanded neighborhood vaccine sites and mobile vaccine teams to the 
Tenderloin, Visitacion Valley, Treasure Island, Chinatown and other neighborhoods with the 
highest infection rates for COVID-19 and limited access to health care services. Last week, the 
City launched a series of mobile vaccination events on Treasure Island and at Ping Yuen, 
Chinatown’s largest senior living facility. To date, 49% of eligible Chinatown residents have 
been vaccinated, which is above the citywide neighborhood average of 43%.  
 
Across these efforts, San Francisco is averaging almost 12,000 doses a day, and over 50% 
percent of San Franciscans 16 and older have received at least one dose. More than 30% percent 
of San Franciscans have been fully vaccinated. Over 82% percent of San Franciscans 65 and 
older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and nearly 65% percent have been fully 
vaccinated.  
 
While 50% of the Excelsior neighborhood’s eligible population has been vaccinated, testing 
continues to show that the Latino community is experiencing high rates of new infection, with 
recent testing revealing that COVID-19 test positivity is two and a half times higher in the Latino 
population compared to the general SF population. However, the new case rate per month for 
Latinos is at its lowest point since April 2020 at 262 cases, a 92% percent reduction from 3,216 
at the peak of the most recent surge. Latinos have also experienced higher rates of 
hospitalizations due to COVID-19 across all age groups, not just in the 65 and older population, 
which is more typical in the general population. Although, the City’s hospital census is at its 
lowest point in four months with just 20 patients, down from 259 at the highest point of the 
winter surge.  
 
San Francisco’s COVID-19 vaccine dashboard shows that the City’s focus on racial equity in 
vaccine distribution has been successful. A higher proportion of the DPH-administered 
vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide vaccinations. For example, the 
Latino population represents 14% percent of the City’s vaccine eligible population and has 



https://www.sfmta.com/projects/covid-19-developments-response

https://www.sfmta.com/getting-around/accessibility/paratransit





OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


received more than 27% of DPH’s vaccinations. The dashboard also shows that the top three 
neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-controlled vaccines are the Bayview, 
Mission and Excelsior.   
 
“We want to thank Excelsior Strong and the Latino Task Force for their partnership with the City 
in bringing this new vaccination site to the Excelsior, a neighborhood that continues to be 
disproportionately impacted by COVID-19,” said Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax. “We hope 
that this site brings a level of comfort and convenience that encourages members of the Excelsior 
community to get vaccinated as soon as possible so that we can continue to reopen our City and 
resume the activities we love.”  
 
“We have been one of the hardest hit neighborhoods in SF with COVID. My friends have lost 
their loved ones to this virus and now we come together to support our neighborhood in healing 
itself,” said Patricia Barraza of Excelsior Strong.   
 
“We are so excited to finally see a community led, driven, and implemented vaccine site being 
launched here in the Excelsior which will help those who have been impacted most by Covid. 
Neighbors will have low barrier access to vaccines,” said Jon Jacobo, LTF Health Committee 
Chair. 
 
Vaccine Eligibility and Making an Appointment  
On April 1, 2021 in accordance with State guidelines, San Francisco expanded COVID-19 
vaccine eligibility to all people age 50 or older. These individuals join already eligible groups 
including people with disabilities and severe underlying health conditions, people living in 
congregate settings, and people experiencing homelessness. Also eligible are people who work in 
the healthcare, food and agriculture, education and childcare, emergency services, transportation, 
and homeless and congregate care sectors.  
 
In order to assist individuals with accessing appointments, the City has set up a call center to 
help people, especially those who are 65 and older and those with disabilities who are unable to 
easily access the internet or schedule an appointment through their provider. Individuals may call 
to learn about vaccine options and receive assistance in booking an appointment to some 
locations. The number is (628) 652-2700.  
 
Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco and is eligible for the COVID-19 vaccine can go to 
SF.gov/getvaccinated to find vaccination locations and make an appointment. The City will 
continue to provide regular updates to the public about the vaccine in San Francisco at 
SF.gov/covidvaccine. 
 


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
San Francisco, and we’re prepared to administer those vaccines as quickly as we get the
supply.”
 
The new site in the Excelsior is planned to operate Wednesday through Saturday, from
9:30am-3:30pm on Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays and 12 pm-6pm on Fridays. The
site will have an initial capacity of 150 doses per day. Given that supply of the vaccine
remains extremely limited, the Excelsior site is by appointment only with limited drop-in
availability. Excelsior neighborhood residents and workers can call Excelsior Strong/Latino
Task Force at (415) 562-8638 to schedule an appointment.
 
The Excelsior site, located on a San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)
parking lot, has the additional benefit of being adjacent to Mission Street, which has numerous
Muni bus lines, and walking distance from Balboa Park BART station, ensuring that it is
accessible and convenient for people that it will serve. Muni and Paratransit are free for
anyone traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine appointments. The SFMTA is also providing
additional access to taxi service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be
found at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/Paratransit.
 
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
disproportionally carried the burden of COVID-19 and has created neighborhood vaccine
access sites in the Mission and the Bayview. 
 
Additionally, the City has expanded neighborhood vaccine sites and mobile vaccine teams to
the Tenderloin, Visitacion Valley, Treasure Island, Chinatown and other neighborhoods with
the highest infection rates for COVID-19 and limited access to health care services. Last week,
the City launched a series of mobile vaccination events on Treasure Island and at Ping Yuen,
Chinatown’s largest senior living facility. To date, 49% of eligible Chinatown residents have
been vaccinated, which is above the citywide neighborhood average of 43%.
 
Across these efforts, San Francisco is averaging almost 12,000 doses a day, and over 50%
percent of San Franciscans 16 and older have received at least one dose. More than 30%
percent of San Franciscans have been fully vaccinated. Over 82% percent of San Franciscans
65 and older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and nearly 65% percent have been
fully vaccinated.
 
While 50% of the Excelsior neighborhood’s eligible population has been vaccinated, testing
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continues to show that the Latino community is experiencing high rates of new infection, with
recent testing revealing that COVID-19 test positivity is two and a half times higher in the
Latino population compared to the general SF population. However, the new case rate per
month for Latinos is at its lowest point since April 2020 at 262 cases, a 92% percent reduction
from 3,216 at the peak of the most recent surge. Latinos have also experienced higher rates of
hospitalizations due to COVID-19 across all age groups, not just in the 65 and older
population, which is more typical in the general population. Although, the City’s hospital
census is at its lowest point in four months with just 20 patients, down from 259 at the highest
point of the winter surge.
 
San Francisco’s COVID-19 vaccine dashboard shows that the City’s focus on racial equity in
vaccine distribution has been successful. A higher proportion of the DPH-administered
vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide vaccinations. For example,
the Latino population represents 14% percent of the City’s vaccine eligible population and has
received more than 27% of DPH’s vaccinations. The dashboard also shows that the top three
neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-controlled vaccines are the Bayview,
Mission and Excelsior. 
 
“We want to thank Excelsior Strong and the Latino Task Force for their partnership with the
City in bringing this new vaccination site to the Excelsior, a neighborhood that continues to be
disproportionately impacted by COVID-19,” said Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax. “We
hope that this site brings a level of comfort and convenience that encourages members of the
Excelsior community to get vaccinated as soon as possible so that we can continue to reopen
our City and resume the activities we love.”
 
“We have been one of the hardest hit neighborhoods in SF with COVID. My friends have lost
their loved ones to this virus and now we come together to support our neighborhood in
healing itself,” said Patricia Barraza of Excelsior Strong. 
 
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
congregate settings, and people experiencing homelessness. Also eligible are people who work
in the healthcare, food and agriculture, education and childcare, emergency services,
transportation, and homeless and congregate care sectors.
 
In order to assist individuals with accessing appointments, the City has set up a call center to
help people, especially those who are 65 and older and those with disabilities who are unable
to easily access the internet or schedule an appointment through their provider. Individuals
may call to learn about vaccine options and receive assistance in booking an appointment to
some locations. The number is (628) 652-2700.
 
Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco and is eligible for the COVID-19 vaccine can go
to SF.gov/getvaccinated to find vaccination locations and make an appointment. The City will

https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated-against-covid-19


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

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:09:50 AM

 
 
Thank you,
Chanbory Son, Executive Secretary
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7346 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit
Center is open on a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and
Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to
participate. Find more information on our services here. 
 

From: Dorian Hollis <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:02 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street
 

 

Commission Secretary,

I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-
needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve
this worthy project.

Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences
uniquely well-suited for this particular location:

1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to
provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below
Market Rate units.​

2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high
ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an
abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-
filtration system.

3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a
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double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community
laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station.

4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the
Civic Center BART station.

For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located,
environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.

Dorian Hollis 
dorianhollis@yahoo.com

San Francisco, California 94109
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
Subject: FW: THD COMMENTS - 1045 Sansome (2020-004724COA)
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:08:43 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 2:44 PM
To: Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>;
chis.foley@sfgov.org; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Nageswaran, Ruchira
(CPC) <ruchira.nageswaran@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>;
So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Langlie, Michelle (CPC)
<michelle.langlie@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>; Reed Calkins
<RCalkins@lpc.com>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Subject: THD COMMENTS - 1045 Sansome (2020-004724COA)
 

 

HPC President Matsuda and Commissioners –
 
On behalf of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers, we support the use of a Notice of Special
Restriction (NSR) to attach restrictions and conditions to the operation of the proposed roof
deck at 1045 Sansome. Subject to these restrictions and conditions, we support this
proposal.
 
We appreciate the project applicants' willingness to address our concerns about the
potential impact of deck operations on surrounding neighbors by means of what we
understand to be the following NSR restrictions and conditions:

1. The roof deck shall not be accessible to the general public. Use of the roof deck shall
be restricted exclusively to the tenants of the building and to their employees and
guests thereof.

2. The roof deck shall only be used during normal business hours on weekdays
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(Monday through Friday, inclusive), and shall not be accessed after 8:00 p.m. or
during the weekend.

3. Amplified music shall not be allowed on the roof deck. Voice amplification shall not
cause an ambient noise level more than eight dBA above the local ambient level at
any point outside the property. Speakers used on the roof shall be oriented to face
away from adjoining residential properties and Telegraph Hill.

4. Lighting on the roof deck shall be limited to what is required by the Planning Code,
Building Code, or any other law, and as necessary for egress, safety, and emergency
access. Such lighting shall be minimal and downlit whenever possible and permitted.
All lighting shall be powered off outside of normal business hours, as listed in
condition 1, except for when illumination is required by law.

5. The owner(s) of the property shall designate a community liaison for the building who
can be contacted by community members for questions, concerns, or issues.
Reasonable efforts shall be made to make the contact information for the community
liaison available in a publicly accessible portion of the building during normal
business hours and/or online.

6. Any physical modification to the roof deck, except for when necessary for health,
safety, or in an emergency or required by City Codes, shall be reviewed by the
Historic Preservation Commission under another application for a Certificate of
Appropriateness. Such modifications are subject to Planning Code Section 333,
which requires notification by posting on the site, notifying the owners and occupants
of properties within 150 feet, and neighborhood organizations, including the
Telegraph Hill Dwellers.

7. The owner of the subject property shall record these restrictions on the land records
of the City and County of San Francisco as a Notice of Special Restrictions to
Building Permit No. 2020-1002-5777.

8. This Notice of Special Restrictions shall be reproduced on the Index Sheet of the
construction plans submitted with the Site or Building Permit Application for the
Project.

Please ensure that a requirement to record these NSR conditions and restrictions is made
a part of any motion to approve a Certificate of Appropriateness and/or as other conditions
of issuing the permits.
 
Thank you for your consideration. Please let us know if you would like to discuss any of
this.
 
Sincerely,
 
Stan Hayes
 
President
Telegraph Hill Dwellers



 
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
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:08:04 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Nishant Kheterpal <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 05, 2021 10:27 AM
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

Nishant Kheterpal 
nishantkheterpal@gmail.com 
232 Ellsworth St 
San Francisco, California 94102

 

mailto:nishantkheterpal@gmail.com


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: 4250 26th Street opposition
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:07:46 AM
Attachments: 4250 26th St-opposition-Lalendran.pdf

ATT00001.htm

 
 
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
 

From: Lalendran <us@lalendran.com> 
Sent: Sunday, April 04, 2021 10:58 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Subject: 4250 26th Street opposition
 

 

Dear Planning Commissioners, Secretary and David Winslow:
 
Please see attached my opposition to the property development at 4250 26th Street. Thank you all
for your attention to this matter. Look forward to hearing from you.
 
Respectfully,
 
Ashwin Lalendran
 
us@lalendran.com
431 Clipper St, 
San Francisco, CA
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April 4, 2021


To Whom it May Concern:


I am writing on behalf of my family at 431 Clipper St (Lot 45) in opposistion to the demolition and
subsequent development of 4250 26th Street as proposed in “Notice of Building Permit Application”.
Since receiving this in the mail, we have been in contact with the Noe Neighborhood Council (NCC) as
well as other concerned neighbors on both 26th and Clipper Street to better understand the situation.


We do not intend to infringe on anyone’s right to acquire and develop personal property. We are also in
strong support of developing more houses to address our region’s lack of housing affordability, and
deteriorating livability.


However, our opposition is centered around the precedent of negative externality the development sets in
our neighborhood. Said simply, we chose to live down the streets of homes where our lives are closely
intertwined with those of our neighbors. For example when a neighbor plays loud music at night, others
cannot sleep; if a neighbor illegally removes asbestos from a home, it creates odors and fumes that
directly impact other family’s health. If a neighbor erects an outlier structure— both horizontally and
vertically, it impacts solar shade and day time temperature to others.


We believe that when individual decisions have the potential to impact those of our neighbors, said
decisions should be done in coordination with neighbors. From our understanding, this has not been the
case with the development at 4250 26th Street. We understand both the architect and property owners to
be largely unresponsive to neighborhood feedback.


Given the terrain of our block and the four story scope of this development, it is imperative that the
neighborhood externality and its direct impact on the surrounding neighbors’ properties be considered.
For context, the elevation at the corner of 26th and Castro St is 235 feet. The elevation at 26th and
Diamond St, one block up is 325 feet — more than 90 feet or 6-7 stories in elevation difference. On a
block made up of two to three story structures, the project as proposed at 4250 is an outlier which will
undeniably impact the daylight sunlight (and therefore, how much value and utility we can derive both
from our garden as well as the solar panels installed on the roof of our house).


Taken to the extreme, should we expect four story structures be acceptable and the norm in this
neighborhood? Should we expect our representatives to greenlight oversized developments like this
without any concern for the surrounding neighborhood?


Especially given the unique terrain of this neighborhood, the elevation of the 4250 property, and the
existing scope of the development, I am opposed to this project as it stands and implore the property
owners and our representatives to consider the impact of their actions on the families around the subject
property.


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
Subject: FW: 4-3-21 Raffin Thomas A Lttr to SF Planning Division RE: Opposition to 311 Jersey Remodel
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:03:14 AM
Attachments: oledata.mso

4-3-21 RaffinTA Lttr to SF Planning Division RE Opposition to 311 Jersey Remodel.docx
View of 311 Proposed Remodel from 312 jersey.pdf

Please see below.
 
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
 

From: Thomas A. Raffin <tar@thpartners.net> 
Sent: Saturday, April 03, 2021 1:28 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>
Subject: 4-3-21 Raffin Thomas A Lttr to SF Planning Division RE: Opposition to 311 Jersey Remodel
 

 

Saturday, April 3, 2021
Commissioners and Commission Secretary
Planning Division, San Francisco Government
c/o Cathleen Campbell, Planner
Southwest Team, Planning Division
Commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
 
Dear SF Planning Commissioners:
 
              I have lived at 312 Jersey Street since 2013.  Before the pandemic my neighbors and I would
have a once or twice a year block party bringing the Jersey Street and Noe Street neighbors together
for food and live music.  Also, we planned emergency preparedness.  We have a very nice
neighborhood where people know each other and are helpful.  Some families have holiday
celebrations and invite all the neighbors.
              When I heard the owners of 311 Jersey wanted to remodel, I thought it would probably be
fine.  I believe citizens have a right to remodel their homes if they follow San Francisco Planning rules
and regulations, and do not undermine or hurt their neighbors.
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



	I have lived at 312 Jersey Street since 2013.  Before the pandemic my neighbors and I would have a once or twice a year block party bringing the Jersey Street and Noe Street neighbors together for food and live music.  Also, we planned emergency preparedness.  We have a very nice neighborhood where people know each other and are helpful.  Some families have holiday celebrations and invite all the neighbors.

	When I heard the owners of 311 Jersey wanted to remodel, I thought it would probably be fine.  I believe citizens have a right to remodel their homes if they follow San Francisco Planning rules and regulations, and do not undermine or hurt their neighbors.

	The remodel plan for 311 Jersey includes a new roof deck.  The size of the deck after initial review has been decreased.  However, this roof deck looks into my master bedroom at 312 Jersey.  Please see the attached photo from my second-floor bedroom.  The roof deck does not fit into the character of the neighborhood.  There are no other roof decks.  The roof deck will significantly alter the neighborhood by decreasing privacy and increasing noise.  311 Jersey already has a plan for a second-floor deck.  Why are two decks needed?

	I have spoken with my neighbors on the north side of Jersey Street and they and I are opposed to the 311 Jersey plan for a roof deck.

	I have reviewed Christine Boudreau’s DR application and I support it.  I think the roof deck should be removed.  The roof deck would cause privacy and noise problems and is a detrimental change to the character of the neighborhood.  

	

	Regards,









	Tom Raffin, MD

	650-799-1544

	tar@thpartners.net

	Professor Emeritus of Medicine, Stanford University

	General Partner and Co-Founder, Telegraph Hill Partners
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Figure 1. 312 Jersey view from bedroom windows; privacy issues  from use 
of proposed roof deck at 311 Jersey
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              The remodel plan for 311 Jersey includes a new roof deck.  The size of the deck after initial
review has been decreased.  However, this roof deck looks into my master bedroom at 312 Jersey. 
Please see the attached photo from my second-floor bedroom.  The roof deck does not fit into the
character of the neighborhood.  There are no other roof decks.  The roof deck will significantly alter
the neighborhood by decreasing privacy and increasing noise.  311 Jersey already has a plan for a
second-floor deck.  Why are two decks needed?
              I have spoken with my neighbors on the north side of Jersey Street and they and I are
opposed to the 311 Jersey plan for a roof deck.
              I have reviewed Christine Boudreau’s DR application and I support it.  I think the roof deck
should be removed.  The roof deck would cause privacy and noise problems and is a detrimental
change to the character of the neighborhood. 
             
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
             
             
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Thomas A. Raffin, M.D.
Colleen and Robert Haas Professor Emeritus of Medicine
  and Biomedical Ethics, Stanford University
 
Co-Chair, BOD, National AIDS Memorial, San Francisco
 
General Partner
Telegraph Hill Partners
360 Post Street, Suite 601
San Francisco, CA  94108
Work: 415 765-6980  Cell: 650 799-1544   Fax: 415 765-6983
Em: tar@thpartners.net
www.thpartners.net
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
Subject: FW: 311 Jersey St. Project/Record No.: 2020-009332PRJ
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:00:53 AM

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
 

From: E Pepin <pepin4sf@gmail.com> 
Sent: Saturday, April 03, 2021 11:26 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>
Subject: 311 Jersey St. Project/Record No.: 2020-009332PRJ
 

 

Dear San Francisco Planning Commission,
 
We oppose the planned roof deck to 311 Jersey St. project;
our property sits on the south side.  Our house was built in 1894;
our family has lived in our home for 52 years, it is where our
children played on the ground yard level.  We love the original
architecture of the Noe Valley homes.  A planned roof deck would
be out of character, highly intrusive and potentially allow a direct
view into our yard, which would provide a completely different and
negative experience.  I recently had cancer - during my cancer
journey, I spend most of the days  in our yard, enjoying the fresh
air, under our gazebo, without direct view from the opposite facing
yard. The outdoor privacy has made a tremendous difference in my
recovery process; it provides a crucial part of my mental/physical
health condition, which brings a peace of mind to my well being. 
We do not wish to lose our valuable privacy, which impacts my
quality of life; in addition, to what my family has been accustomed
to for over half a century.
 
Sincerely,
Elizabeth Pepin
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
Date: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 8:58:27 AM

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
 

From: Rani Horev <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Saturday, April 03, 2021 10:21 AM
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

Rani Horev 
ranihorev@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94102

 

mailto:ranihorev@gmail.com


 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 1:02:13 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: John Manning <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "johnpmanning@yahoo.com" <johnpmanning@yahoo.com>
Date: Tuesday, April 6, 2021 at 12:54 PM
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

John Manning 
johnpmanning@yahoo.com

San Francisco, California 94117

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letters in Support of Planning Case Nos. 2018-013577 & 2018-013451
Date: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 9:12:26 AM
Attachments: Letters in Support of 2018-013577 and 2018-013451.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Gabriel Block <gabe@crossroadstrading.com>
Date: Monday, April 5, 2021 at 12:10 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: "kent.n.mirkhani@gmail.com" <kent.n.mirkhani@gmail.com>
Subject: Letters in Support of Planning Case Nos. 2018-013577 & 2018-013451
 

 

Please see attached.
Regards,
Gabriel Block
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25 March 2021


Gabriel


Block


Neighbor to 2140


Market Street


Jeff Horn


Senior Planner


Southwest Team, Current Planning Division


San Francisco Planning


49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103


2121-2123 Market St.


San Francisco, CA 94114


510.333.4925


gabe@crossroadstradlng.com


Dear Mr. Horn:


1 am writing regarding the following Planning Case Number:


2018-013577 PRJ


I'm writing to express my support for the project to construct a rental


housing mixed-use development at 2140 Market St., which contains 20%
affordable units.


Our group owns the building across the street at 2121-2123 Market St.


The current building located at the proposed building site Is a dilapidated
shell of a bar, an unused parking lot, and a characterless building. I am


extremely pleased to see this location being developed Into much needed
housing and an activated retail sidewalk. This will help the neighborhood
so much.


We represent not only the building across the street but also the


long-standing, beloved neighborhood clothing store, Crossroads Trading


Company, located at 2123 Market St. I am eager to see more foot traffic


In this neighborhood. The lack of residential housing as well as the lack of
other successful businesses on the block hurts our block and our


neighborhood. This project would bring not only dozens of new residents


but an active storefront, allowing new businesses to move in across the


street. I believe the neighborhood has the potential to become a thriving


community and a shopping destination In Its own right, and this


development would be a major step toward realizing that potential.


The project sponsor lives In the neighborhood and the proposed building


Is gorgeous. We haven't seen anything like it proposed in recent years.


Please do everything you can to expedite the approval of this


development.


Sincerely,


Gabriel Block


Crossroads Trading Company







25 March 2021


Gabriel


Block
Adjacent Neighbor to


2135 Market Street


2121-2123 Market St.


San Francisco, CA 94114


510.333.4925


gabe@crossroadstrading.com


Jeff Horn


Senior Planner


Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning


49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103


Dear Mr. Horn:


I am writing regarding the following Planning Case Number:


2018-013451-PRJ


I want to express my enthusiastic support for the project to construct a


rental housing mixed-use development at 2135 Market St., which
contains 20% affordable units.


Our group owns the building right next door at 2121-2123 Market St., so
I have long been intimately familiar with the neighborhood. The building
currently at 2135 has been vacant for years and does not serve the
neighborhood. Over the years some businesses tried to make the space
work, but nobody ever could because of its strange configuration and
facade that is an eyesore. It's great to see it finally being developed.


We represent not only the building next door but also the long-standing,


beloved neighborhood clothing store. Crossroads Trading Company,
located at 2123 Market St. I am eager to see more foot traffic in this


neighborhood. The lack of residential housing as well as the lack of other
successful businesses on the block hurts our block and our


neighborhood. This project would bring not only dozens of new residents


but an active storefront, allowing new businesses to move in next door. I


believe the neighborhood has the potential to become a thriving


community and a shopping destination in its own right, and this


development would be a major step toward realizing that potential.


In addition, we have long had a homeless problem on the street, and the


new building would help with that by bringing more activity to the area.


The project sponsor lives in the community and has worked closely with


the community to design a building that will seamlessly meld with the


look of the block. Please do everything you can to expedite the approval


of this development. The neighborhood really needs it.


Sincerely,


Gabriel Block


Crossroads Trading Company







 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Balba, Ryan (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for 2119-21 Castro Street
Date: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 9:05:54 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: priti tripathi <ptfromsf@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, April 6, 2021 at 6:44 AM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond,
Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>,
Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for 2119-21 Castro Street
 

 

New 2-Unit Building
2119-21 Castro Street
 

Dear Planning Commissioners,

I am the owner of 479 28th Street, the immediate adjacent property to the east of the proposed
project.  I am writing to express my full support for the project.  I am glad to learn that the existing
single house will be replaced by a new 2-unit building.
 
I am in support of the project because it:  
 

§  Increases the density by replacing a small house with a building for 2 family-sized units.

 

§  Enhances the block face with its contemporary design and is compatible with the
neighborhood context.

 

§  Provides 2 off-street parking spaces to reduce existing on-street parking competition.

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:ryan.balba@sfgov.org
mailto:Chanbory.Son@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


 

§  Encourages alternative transportation by providing bicycle parking.
 
For the much-needed housing and improvement in our neighborhood, I urge the Commission to
approve this project as proposed.   
 
Thank you for your attention.
 
 
Sincerely yours,                                                                                               
 
Priti Tripathi
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2140 Market St
Date: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 9:05:03 AM
Attachments: DOC040521-04052021124921.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Stephen Adams <shughadams@gmail.com>
Date: Monday, April 5, 2021 at 6:27 PM
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
Subject: 2140 Market St
 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

> San Francisco Planning commissioners, Mr. Tom Horn,  Supervisor Mandelman,
  Please see attached letter for my support of the housing project at 2140 Market St.

Thank You
Steve Adams
>
>
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2135 Market St
Date: Tuesday, April 06, 2021 9:04:53 AM
Attachments: DOC040521-04052021124734.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, April 5, 2021 at 6:25 PM
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
Subject: 2135 Market St
 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

San Francisco Planning commissioners, Mr. Tom Horn,  Supervisor Mandelman,
Please see attached letter for my support of the housing project at 2135 Market St.

Thank You
Steve Adams

>
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mailto:Chanbory.Son@sfgov.org
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND OPENING OF NEW AFFORDABLE

HOUSING IN THE HEART OF THE MISSION DISTRICT
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 12:22:28 PM
Attachments: 04.15.21 Le Fenix_1950 Mission_Grand Opening.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 12:17 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND
OPENING OF NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN THE HEART OF THE MISSION
DISTRICT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, April 15, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND OPENING
OF NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN THE HEART OF THE

MISSION DISTRICT
Site that once served as the City’s inaugural navigation center opens its doors to 155 families

and provides 100% affordable housing for San Franciscans
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the grand opening of a
100% affordable housing project in the Mission at La Fénix at 1950 Mission Street. Located
between 15th and 16th Streets, near the 16th Street BART station, the building consists of 155
permanently affordable apartments for low-income households and will include 40 units for
formerly homeless families; there are two additional units for on-site property management. It
is the second of seven new 100% affordable housing developments in the Mission that are
either already open, under construction, or will open in the next 18 months, following over a
decade in which no new affordable housing was built in the neighborhood.
 
“I am excited to join community and project partners in the Mission today to celebrate the
opening of 155 new homes for San Francisco families,” said Mayor Breed. “Projects like this
one and the others that will break ground over the coming years are critical to addressing so
many of the challenges we face as a city. Creating new, affordable places for our residents to
live will help us recover from this pandemic and ensure our residents can continue to live and
thrive in the neighborhood they call home.”

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
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the grand opening of a 100% 
affordable housing project in the Mission at La Fénix at 1950 Mission Street. Located between 
15th and 16th Streets, near the 16th Street BART station, the building consists of 155 
permanently affordable apartments for low-income households and will include 40 units for 
formerly homeless families; there are two additional units for on-site property management. It is 
the second of seven new 100% affordable housing developments in the Mission that are either 
already open, under construction, or will open in the next 18 months, following over a decade in 
which no new affordable housing was built in the neighborhood. 
 
“I am excited to join community and project partners in the Mission today to celebrate the 
opening of 155 new homes for San Francisco families,” said Mayor Breed. “Projects like this 
one and the others that will break ground over the coming years are critical to addressing so 
many of the challenges we face as a city. Creating new, affordable places for our residents to live 
will help us recover from this pandemic and ensure our residents can continue to live and thrive 
in the neighborhood they call home.” 
 
Built with families in mind, amenities at La Fénix include a rooftop playground, landscaped 
courtyards, a spacious community room with a kitchen, and a communal laundry room. Located 
near BART and several Muni lines, this transit-oriented housing development will help advance 
the City’s climate goals by promoting the use of public transportation. Residents of La Fenix 
receive transit passes, and project funding has been directed for pedestrian and bike 
improvements.  
 
The ground floor features community-serving uses that include a childcare center operated by 
Mission Neighborhood Centers (MNC), art studios and a gallery operated by Acción Latina, as 
well as a bicycle repair shop operated by PODER. These community-serving programs are open 
to residents and the surrounding neighbors. A quarter of the homes at 1950 Mission are for 
residents of the surrounding the neighborhood. 
 
The housing development at 1950 Mission Street is an excellent example of creative interim and 
future uses of City-owned property to help address homelessness and affordable housing in San 
Francisco. 1950 Mission was once a San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) facility 
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with temporary, movable classroom buildings and surface parking. In June 2007, the SFUSD 
Board of Education approved a resolution designating 1950 Mission as surplus property. Shortly 
thereafter, pursuant to the California Education Code, SFUSD put the site up for sale, which the 
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) identified and purchased 
in September 2014 to develop affordable housing.  
 
Following MOHCD’s purchase of 1950 Mission, and in an effort to meet the growing need for 
safe and secure transitional services for the city’s unhoused population, the site was transformed 
into the City’s first interim-use navigation center, operated by the Department of Homelessness 
and Supportive Housing (HSH). The navigation center served people experiencing homelessness 
in close proximity to the site with the goal of placing clients into permanent housing.  
 
“What a win for the community when we can take an underused public lot and create more than 
150 new deeply affordable homes!” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “Congratulations to Mission 
Housing and Bridge on this spectacular partnership. And to the families moving in, welcome 
home to La Fenix!” 
 
In July 2015, MOHCD selected Mission Housing Development Corporation (MHDC) and 
BRIDGE Housing to develop, own, and operate the affordable housing development proposed 
for the site.  
 
“Mission Housing is proud and honored, along with BRIDGE Housing, to bring 157 units of 
new, 100 percent affordable family housing to the Mission,” said Sam Moss, Executive Director 
of Mission Housing Development Corporation. “We hope La Fénix will be a beacon of hope and 
support for the Mission District and all of San Francisco’s low-income community.” 
 
“We’re thrilled to bring 100% affordable family homes and new spaces for community services 
to the neighborhood,” said Smitha Seshadri, Executive Vice President of BRIDGE Housing. 
“Collaborative developments like La Fénix will help the Mission maintain its rich history of 
vibrancy and diversity.” 
 
Major financing for 1950 Mission was provided by a $45 million investment from MOHCD that 
enabled the $113 million project to move forward. In addition to the City’s investment, the 
development was made possible by financing from the State of California Housing and 
Community Development Affordable Housing and Sustainable Community Program. Other 
financial partners include the California Community Reinvestment Corporation; California Debt 
Limit Allocation Committee; California Tax Credit Allocation Committee, Wells Fargo Bank, 
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco.  
 
“Projects like La Fenix showcase the shared commitment by community leaders, Mayor Breed 
and the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development to develop well designed 
affordable housing that meets the needs of residents, while also enhancing the character of the 
neighborhood,” said MOHCD Director, Eric Shaw. “Our longstanding partnership with the state 
allowed us to leverage city affordable housing funds with state affordable housing programs to 
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ensure the 1950 Mission had the financing to be constructed and be permanently affordable for 
low income residents.” 
 
“As the site of the first navigation center, 1950 Mission has been at the heart of new ways to care 
for and solve homelessness in San Francisco,” said Sam Dodge, Interim Director, Department of 
Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “This former school site allowed us to temporarily 
shelter hundreds of people while it was in the predevelopment phase and it will now become 
home 40 formerly homeless families in large apartments steps away from BART in the middle of 
the Mission. Thank you to the Mission community for years of support in making this happen.” 
 
The nine-story building, designed by local architects, David Baker Architects and Cervantes 
Design Associated, includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom and three-bedroom apartments. 
Construction started in January 2019 and was completed in January 2021. 
 
 


### 







 
Built with families in mind, amenities at La Fénix include a rooftop playground, landscaped
courtyards, a spacious community room with a kitchen, and a communal laundry room.
Located near BART and several Muni lines, this transit-oriented housing development will
help advance the City’s climate goals by promoting the use of public transportation. Residents
of La Fenix receive transit passes, and project funding has been directed for pedestrian and
bike improvements.
 
The ground floor features community-serving uses that include a childcare center operated by
Mission Neighborhood Centers (MNC), art studios and a gallery operated by Acción Latina,
as well as a bicycle repair shop operated by PODER. These community-serving programs are
open to residents and the surrounding neighbors. A quarter of the homes at 1950 Mission are
for residents of the surrounding the neighborhood.
 
The housing development at 1950 Mission Street is an excellent example of creative interim
and future uses of City-owned property to help address homelessness and affordable housing
in San Francisco. 1950 Mission was once a San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD)
facility with temporary, movable classroom buildings and surface parking. In June 2007, the
SFUSD Board of Education approved a resolution designating 1950 Mission as surplus
property. Shortly thereafter, pursuant to the California Education Code, SFUSD put the site up
for sale, which the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD)
identified and purchased in September 2014 to develop affordable housing.
 
Following MOHCD’s purchase of 1950 Mission, and in an effort to meet the growing need for
safe and secure transitional services for the city’s unhoused population, the site was
transformed into the City’s first interim-use navigation center, operated by the Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH). The navigation center served people
experiencing homelessness in close proximity to the site with the goal of placing clients into
permanent housing.
 
“What a win for the community when we can take an underused public lot and create more
than 150 new deeply affordable homes!” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “Congratulations to
Mission Housing and Bridge on this spectacular partnership. And to the families moving in,
welcome home to La Fenix!”
 
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
new, 100 percent affordable family housing to the Mission,” said Sam Moss, Executive
Director of Mission Housing Development Corporation. “We hope La Fénix will be a beacon
of hope and support for the Mission District and all of San Francisco’s low-income
community.”

“We’re thrilled to bring 100% affordable family homes and new spaces for community
services to the neighborhood,” said Smitha Seshadri, Executive Vice President of BRIDGE
Housing. “Collaborative developments like La Fénix will help the Mission maintain its rich
history of vibrancy and diversity.”
 



Major financing for 1950 Mission was provided by a $45 million investment from MOHCD
that enabled the $113 million project to move forward. In addition to the City’s investment,
the development was made possible by financing from the State of California Housing and
Community Development Affordable Housing and Sustainable Community Program. Other
financial partners include the California Community Reinvestment Corporation; California
Debt Limit Allocation Committee; California Tax Credit Allocation Committee, Wells Fargo
Bank, and the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco.
 
“Projects like La Fenix showcase the shared commitment by community leaders, Mayor Breed
and the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development to develop well designed
affordable housing that meets the needs of residents, while also enhancing the character of the
neighborhood,” said MOHCD Director, Eric Shaw. “Our longstanding partnership with the
state allowed us to leverage city affordable housing funds with state affordable housing
programs to ensure the 1950 Mission had the financing to be constructed and be permanently
affordable for low income residents.”
 
“As the site of the first navigation center, 1950 Mission has been at the heart of new ways to
care for and solve homelessness in San Francisco,” said Sam Dodge, Interim Director,
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “This former school site allowed us to
temporarily shelter hundreds of people while it was in the predevelopment phase and it will
now become home 40 formerly homeless families in large apartments steps away from BART
in the middle of the Mission. Thank you to the Mission community for years of support in
making this happen.”
 
The nine-story building, designed by local architects, David Baker Architects and Cervantes
Design Associated, includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom and three-bedroom
apartments. Construction started in January 2019 and was completed in January 2021.
 
 

###
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Conner, Kate (CPC); Lynch, Laura (CPC); Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Subject: FW: Inclusionary Memo for the Planning Commission
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 12:20:27 PM
Attachments: Inclusionary Memo 04152021.pdf

FYI
 
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
 
 

From: Kate Conner <kate.conner@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 12:07 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Hillis, Rich (CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Inclusionary Memo for the Planning Commission
 
Hi Jonas,
 
I prepared a memo summarizing how development projects have complied with the Inclusionary
Affordable Housing Program in the last five years. Rich Hillis has reviewed the memo and asked that
it be circulated to the Planning Commission and he would mention it during the Director’s Report at
today’s hearing.
 
I have attached the memo- would you please distribute to the Planning Commission? If I should do
this directly, please let me know.
 
Many thanks
Kate
Kate Conner, LEED AP, Principal Planner
Office of Executive Programs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7535 | www.sfplanning.org
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
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MEMO TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
HEARING DATE: April 15, 2020 


 


April 7, 2021 


Subject:   Summary of Inclusionary Affordable Housing Obligations from 2015-2020 


Staff Contact:   Kate Conner 628.652.7535 


  Kate.conner@sfgov.org 


Recommendation: Informational 


 


 


Background 


This memo provides a summary of how development projects satisfied their inclusionary affordable housing 


obligations from 2015-2020. There has been general interest expressed at recent Planning Commission hearings 


regarding how projects comply with the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. The information contained in 


this memo is based off of entitlement and building permit approvals; it does not reflect constructed projects. 


Projects with 10 or more units are subject to the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program and dependent upon 


the submittal of an application, size of project, tenure, and location or zoning, the requirement can vary widely. A 


project may elect to pay the Affordable Housing Fee, provide inclusionary units on-site, construct affordable 


units off-site, provide a combination of methods of compliance, or elect to dedicate land, where applicable.  


Generally speaking, on-site inclusionary rates range between 12% and 27% and off-site/fee rates have a range of 


20% to 33%. The Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) has provided fee estimates 


which can be found at the end of this memo.  


 


General Findings 


Between 2015 and 2020, there were a total of 186 projects that were potentially subject to the Inclusionary 


Affordable Housing Program. The majority of these projects were approved at the Planning Commission; 


however, there are some projects that can be approved administratively by the Department. Of the 186 projects, 


129 projects selected the on-site alternative, 2 projects selected the off-site alternative and 47 projects elected to 


pay the Affordable Housing Fee. On-site projects accounted for almost 70% of the projects entitled, whereas 


projects that paid the Affordable Housing Fee accounted for 25% of the total entitled projects. The remaining 5% 


of projects either elected to provide off-site housing, land dedication, or were otherwise exempt from the 


Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program (e.g., student housing). The overall resulting on-site inclusionary rate is 


15.6% which accounts for small projects and grandfathered projects which have lower inclusionary rates. 
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Year by Year Summary Table 


Below is a table summarizing the number of projects subject to the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program 


and the method of compliance with the Program. 


 


Year Number of Projects On-site Projects Off-site Projects Fee Projects 


2015 33 22 0 11 


2016 51 31 0 16 


2017 34 27 1 6 


2018 37 25 0 9 


2019 19 16 0 2 


2020 12 8 1 3 


 


Here is the percentage of projects electing to use each method of compliance. 


 


Year Number of Projects On-site Projects Off-site Projects Fee Projects 


2015 33 67% 0% 33% 


2016 51 61% 0% 31% 


2017 34 79% 3% 18% 


2018 37 68% 0% 24% 


2019 19 84% 0% 11% 


2020 12 67% 8% 25% 


 


Based upon the above chart, it is clear that the on-site alternative is the most prevalent method of compliance. 


On-site Alternative  


Below is a breakdown of the on-site alternative projects by the number of units within the projects, and the 


number of on-site inclusionary units. The on-site rate gradually increases as the number of grandfathered 


projects is reduced and the inclusionary on-site rate increases annually. 


 


Year Number of Projects On-site Inclusionary 


Units 


Total Units in On-site 


Projects 


Average On-site Rate 


% 


2015 33 264 1927 14% 


2016 51 539 3682 15% 


2017 34 402 2693 15% 


2018 37 273 1718 16% 


2019 19 282 1367 21% 


2020 12 111 621 18% 
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Affordable Housing Fee 


Below is a breakdown the fees collected through the Affordable Housing Fee by fiscal year. This represents a 


different dataset than the information listed above due to the timing of Affordable Housing Fee payment. The 


Affordable Housing Fee is due at first construction document, which may follow the original entitlement by 


several months and possibly years, depending on how quickly the Project Sponsor secures the site permit and 


submits the required addenda. The projects that paid the Affordable Housing Fee during the 2015-2016 fiscal 


year are projects that were likely entitled in earlier years. For example, 75 Howard was a 133-unit project that was 


entitled in 2015 but did not pay the Affordable Housing Fee until 2018-2019 fiscal year. Some projects that were 


entitled in 2015 have yet to pay the Affordable Housing Fee while another project entitled in 2015 paid in the 


2016-2017 fiscal year.  


 


Fiscal Year Number of Projects Approximate Fee Revenue 


2015-2016 18 $93,817,052 


2016-2017 10 $39,354,125 


2017-2018 12 $14,477,962 


2018-2019 13 $31,408,984 


2019-2020 4 $28,922,975 


Total 57 $207,981,098 


 


A total of $207,981,098 from the Affordable Housing Fee is anticipated to be collected from projects in the last 


five years. These fees will likely be spent on gap financing for the 100% affordable MOHCD portfolio including but 


not limited to the recent nine-project multi-site Request for Qualifications which includes projects at the 


following locations: 967 Mission Street, 1939 Market Street, 1515 South Van Ness Avenue, 88 Bluxome Street, 


Unassigned (Parcel C2A), 160 Freelon (598 Brannan) Street, 71 Boardman Place and 725 Harrison Street. 
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From: Conner, Kate (CPC)
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Cc: Hillis, Rich (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Subject: Inclusionary Memo for the Planning Commission
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 12:07:57 PM
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
Cc: Grob, Carly (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Public comment on Items 11 and 12 on the April 15, 2021 Planning Commission Agenda
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:53:22 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
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
 
 

From: Kevin Stull <kstull201281@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 8:12 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Pratibha Tekkey
<pratibha@thclinic.org>
Subject: Public comment on Items 11 and 12 on the April 15, 2021 Planning Commission Agenda
 

 

Good afternoon Commissioners,
 
   My name is Kevin Stull and I'm the Pedestrian Safety Organizer at the Central City SRO
Collaborative and a member of our Land Use Committee. I am writing to you today in regards to
agenda item #'s 11 and 12 on tomorrow's Planning Commission Meeting agenda, specifically the
450-474 O'Farrell/532 Jones St. and 468 Turk St. projects.
 
   I am against these two projects for the following reasons. One of our main goals for our Land Use
Committee is supporting market rate and affordable housing in the Tenderloin neighborhood and
trying to work with various developers to help make that goal a reality. We as a committee had
agreed to support the previous project development at 450 O'Farrell, when it had been 176 units of
family housing from the former project developer. However, this current developer for the 450
O'Farrell project did not initially conduct adequate community engagements that would have
influenced the project's design. Had they conducted proper engagement early in the process, then
this developer would have heard the community's concerns around overcrowding and the need for
more family units. There is a strong need for family units in the Tenderloin and we would like to see
the current project strive by including some of these units at 1,000 square feet of space.
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   The Tenderloin neighborhood and the immediate area surrounding the Jones and O'Farrell
corridors have a high concentration of numerous SRO hotels and group housing that house low
income adults and families, some of which are seniors and are disabled. This neighborhood and
community is not in need of a group housing project that can accommodate more than 600 people.
We are also concerned that the proposed plans will represent new units that would replicate the
overcrowding that many low income families unfortunately currently experience in small units
across the Tenderloin.
 
We strongly urge this Commission to encourage the developers for the 450 O'Farrell St. Project to go
back to the drawing board and develop a proposal alongside neighborhood stakeholders that is
more reflective of this community's needs.
 
   The Tenderloin is already one of the most densest neighborhoods in San Francisco, especially when
it comes to group housing and SRO Hotels. That is why we are very disappointed to hear that the 468
Turk project developer's initial community outreach had only consisted of a pre-application meeting
with only 4 participants and that there was not a greater attempt to engage with the many
community providers and residents in the neighborhood. The larger community of neighborhood
stakeholders were not aware of this project until very late in the process, and it was only when
members of the community reached out to the Planning Department about this proposed project
that its stakeholders were able to hear from the project's architects earlier this year of 2021.
Unfortunately, at this point the developer had stated that it was too late to make any changes to the
project and therefore, community feedback had not been taken into account or consideration
whatsoever.
 
   That is completely unacceptable. As folks who work and reside here, we want to see more family
housing units in our neighborhood and don't feel that this project's unit sizes will be able to
accommodate families who would be interested in moving into this area. Therefore, we as a
committee have decided not to oppose or support this project in any way, but would like to
emphasize to this Commission and to current and future developers the importance of meaningful
community engagement early on in any projects that will have an impact on this and all
neighborhoods in this city.
 
This concludes my public comments on these two projects. I would like to thank this Commission for
the opportunity to give my input and opinions on these projects and hope that the collective words
of my colleagues and I will have an impact on these two projects and other future projects for the
Tenderloin neighborhood moving forward. Thank you all very much and have a wonderful day.
 
Kevin Stull
 
   
 
   

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android
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  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Responses to Comments Document Available for the SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:52:14 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is operating remotely, and the City’s Permit Center is open on
a limited basis. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions
are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 
 

From: San Francisco Planning Department <sfplanning@public.govdelivery.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 5:50 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Responses to Comments Document Available for the SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail
Extension Project
 

 

 

San Francisco Planning Header

Dear Interested Parties:

San Francisco Planning has prepared the Responses to Comments
(RTC) document for San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC)
Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project, Case No.
2016-016100ENV, which responds to comments that were received on
the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The RTC document and the
Draft EIR constitute the Final EIR, which is available at
https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents.

A hearing to consider the certification of the Final EIR for SFPUC
Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project is
scheduled at the Planning Commission on Thursday, April 29, 2021
at 1:00 p.m. or later. If the Planning Commission finds that the Final EIR
complies with the California Environmental Quality Act, it will certify the
Final EIR. Following certification of the Final EIR, the city decision-makers

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTA0MTUuMzg4MDI5NDEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3NmcGxhbm5pbmcub3JnL2Vudmlyb25tZW50YWwtcmV2aWV3LWRvY3VtZW50cyJ9.GiKbwLIjoNtvV34oQJuStw6RJ7IeLv97MEYZWKTEbGY/s/1120478046/br/102163497004-l&g=NjdkMDY4ODQzOTc2MjIzYg==&h=MWM0YmQ4NWU1YmJkYTlmNjZhNTNlM2M5NTZjMzI3Njk1ZDE1NGQyNTE0MWY1ZjJjYmM5NjMwNmM2ZjY5MDA1Yg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjRhMmY0YzhhNzFmZDE5NGVlOWY4YjBmNmZhZWY1ZmMwOnYx


will review and consider the certified Final EIR and the associated
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program before making a decision
and taking an approval action on the project. The agenda for the April 29,
2021 Planning Commission hearing will be available at the Planning
Department website, www.sfplanning.org, by close of business on Friday,
April 23, 2021.

Because of COVID-19, Planning Department staff are working remotely,
and the Planning Commission may hold the Final EIR certification hearing
remotely. Members of the public are encouraged to participate. Additional
information may be found on the Department’s website at
www.sfplanning.org.

Please note that if you receive the Responses to Comments document in
addition to the Draft EIR for the Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail
Extension Project, you have the Final EIR. To reduce risks to outside
service providers, the department is limiting the distribution of hard copy
documents.

If you have any questions concerning the Responses to Comments
document or the environmental review process, please contact Timothy
Johnston at Timothy.Johnston@sfgov.org or by leaving a voicemail at
628.652.7569.

中文詢問請電   Ι  Para información en Español llamar al   Ι  
Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa 

628.652.7550
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Young, Sharon (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 3519 California Street: Record No: 2020-008474CUA
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:50:39 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Cano <acano6@satx.rr.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 4:53 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 3519 California Street: Record No: 2020-008474CUA
 

 

Attention: Planning Commission,
 
I'm one of the Property Managers for 3471-3475 California Street, San Francisco.
 
Research on other major cities shows that locating marijuana stores decreases neighboring
property values (homes and businesses) and increases property crime and homeless
population.
I do not want that business to negatively impact me and others that live in the neighborhood;
this location should not be approved because it will negatively affect others that live and
businesses in the neighborhood.
Lastly, there are several schools less than half mile away from 3519 California Street location
(high schools, elementary/middle schools, pre-schools and churches; others key risk areas
impacted and requiring buffering are libraries, parks, music schools, and children's activities).
 
Thank you for considering my "no" position on this zoning.
 
Michele F Twist Cano
email as above
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 468 Turk Street Project Public Comment
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:49:47 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Michael Nulty <sf_district6@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:53 PM
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
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC)
<rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Subject: 468 Turk Street Project Public Comment
 

 

Subject: 468 Turk Street Project

Public Comment

April 14, 2021

Planning Commission Members/Commission Staff:

On behalf of Alliance for a Better District 6 (ABD6), we write to express grave concerns about the
proposed project at 468 Turk St.

Since 1999, ABD6 has served as a planning and land use entity within the central city neighborhoods.
Our membership includes a cross-section of working-class, very low-income residents, seniors, disabled,
and families. We try to balance their current and future needs. We work with stakeholders, decision-
makers, and elected officials to raise public awareness on issues that impact their quality of life.
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This development proposes 101 group housing units.

Concerns are:

ABD6 is tired of developers asserting that they know what is best for our neighborhood
If we truly want to center race and social equity in our city's planning work, then we must address
the inequity that exists when it comes to community process and development in sensitive
communities like the Tenderloin
It is disappointing to see a project like 468 Turk St., streamline its way through the planning
process without even a good neighbor agreement to ensure that our most vulnerable are
protected
For these reasons, ABD6 cannot support this project

There is no need for a proposal of 101 units averaging 220 square feet - this is not what
community residents have expressed as desirable for our neighborhood

Also wish to point out the Alliance for a Better District 6 is on the San Francisco Planning Department's
community contact list for all new projects and permits. ABD6 has not had any direct outreach from the
project sponsor.

Some of our members wish to see a continuance, to address so of the community concerns that will be
mentioned at the Planning Commission hearing on April 15th.

If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out at sf_district6@yahoo.com. Thank you for your
consideration
 
PS. The Alliance for a Better District 6 wishes to point out that two months ago we created an online petition
dealing with the exact same issue of group housing in the Tenderloin as to not confuse people we did not
create a second online petition for 468 Turk Street which is even far more lacking community input and enough
space for residents. Please consider the 538 signatures gathered when deciding on this project's merits. 

 

Michael Nulty

Executive Director

Alliance for a Better District 6

 
 

Michael Nulty
P.O. Box 420782
San Francisco, CA 94142-0782
(415) 339-8779 - Alliance for a Better District 6
http://abd6.cfsites.org/
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
Subject: FW: 468 Turk Street Supporters
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:49:39 AM
Attachments: 468 Turk Street Supporters 4.14.2021.xlsx

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Corey Smith <corey@sfhac.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:45 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>;
Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC)
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Todd David
<todd@sfhac.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>; M. Brett Gladstone
<BGladstone@g3mh.com>
Subject: Re: 468 Turk Street Supporters
 

 

Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission,

I've attached an updated list with additional signers in support of the housing proposal at 468 Turk
Street. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Respectfully,
Corey Smith
Deputy Director, HAC
 
On Wed, Apr 7, 2021 at 12:03 PM Corey Smith <corey@sfhac.org> wrote:
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		First name		Last name		Email		Address		City		State		Zip code		Letter Subject		Letter Body		Timestamp (EST)

		Joseph		Dowell		joedowell2@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-12 20:19:22 EST

		tomas		janik		tomasjaniksf@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-08 11:41:39 EST

		Eric		Andresen		eric@wcpm.com				San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 19:22:54 EST

		Pamela		Vaughn		plvaughn@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 14:26:29 EST

		aaron		conner		aaronconner86@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		As a resident in the area... I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 13:13:50 EST

		joan		rost		joanr0623@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 12:36:42 EST

		Keaton		Otake		keatonotake@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 12:18:16 EST

		Jonathan		Pearlman		jonathan@elevationarchitects.com				San Francisco		California		95448		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 12:16:56 EST

		Dorian		Hollis		dorianhollis@yahoo.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-07 12:02:00 EST

		DJ		Capobianco		dj@djcap.net		801 Sutter Street, Apt 607		San Francisco		California		94109		We need new homes in SF - please support 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. San Francisco is is desperate need of new homes.For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay. Sincerely, DJ Capobianco tw: @djcap		2021-04-05 21:38:37 EST

		Nishant		Kheterpal		nishantkheterpal@gmail.com		232 Ellsworth St		San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-05 13:26:56 EST

		Rani		Horev		ranihorev@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-03 13:20:49 EST

		Townsend		Walker		townsend@townsendwalker.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-04-01 03:21:53 EST

		Taylor		Hines		tayhines@yahoo.com				Oakland		California		94601		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-03-31 20:37:02 EST

		Patrick		Gaarder		patrickgaarder@icloud.com				San Francisco		California		94109		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-03-31 20:14:24 EST

		Roshan		Vyas		roshanvyas@gmail.com				San Francisco		California		94102		Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street		I'm writing to express my support for a creative new project that would bring 101 much-needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to approve this worthy project. Here are a few of the many reasons that make these thoughtfully-designed new residences uniquely well-suited for this particular location: 1. All homes are affordable by design in a nine-story building that maximizes density to provide as many new affordable residences as possible. There are also 17 on site Below Market Rate units.? 2. Every home is a space-efficient, natural-light-filled studio with a large window, high ceilings, private bathroom and kitchenette, transforming sofa wall bed (queen-sized), an abundance of built-in storage, heating and air-conditioning, and a state-of-the-art air-filtration system. 3. Residents' amenities include a community dining room with chef's kitchen overlooking a double-height community living space, a fully-furnished roof deck and backyard, community laundry room, a "bike vault" with room for 45 bikes, and a bike maintenance station. 4. Conveniently located near public transit, the homes are a short seven-minute walk to the Civic Center BART station. For these and many other reasons, I urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes without delay.		2021-03-31 20:08:38 EST







Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission,

On behalf of the Housing Action Coalition, please see the attached list of people who have sent in
emails supporting new homes at 468 Turk Street. Please note that 85% of the supporters
indicated they live in zip codes 94102 or 94108, the two closest to the project.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Respectfully,
Corey Smith
Deputy Director, HAC
 
--
Corey Smith 陈锐 | Pronouns: He/Him
Deputy Director | Housing Action Coalition
95 Brady Street, San Francisco, CA 94103
Office: (415) 541-9001 | Cell: (925) 360-5290

Email: corey@sfhac.org | Web: sfhac.org
 
To opt out of all HAC emails, respond to this email with "unsubscribe all".

 
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

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//actionnetwork.org/letters/support-new-homes-at-468-turk-street&g=NmQwYjhhMThjNmU4OWZiZA==&h=ZmMwMDRhNzNlODMyNTIyMzJjNjIwOTgyYmQ4MGU0MDM5MGYyNmU3YWQ5OWM1ZTM2NWZlZWZhOGRjMjI2MzE0Mg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjVhY2Q4YWJiNDYyODc2ZDY0YTZmN2MwNjM1NDFkMjk2OnYx
mailto:Corey@sfhac.org
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//sfhac.org/&g=YzJmODYwMzg2ZWRjYzgxMw==&h=ZDJkNTA4MWNjODU4NTE2YjIxOWZlNjlkMjAwMGY1Zjc0OTFjZTBiMTM4OWEzOTM2MjU0OTUwYzVhYTZkNmZkYQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjVhY2Q4YWJiNDYyODc2ZDY0YTZmN2MwNjM1NDFkMjk2OnYx
mailto:Corey@sfhac.org
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//sfhac.org/&g=MTdlMWQwZTNhZTQ2MjZiNw==&h=OTI0MDVjOWVlZjMwZTU1MDBiNjNiYjk2OGJhOWM4YTRkMDI1YjBiYmZkZGViMzc5OGQ1ODllMWYwZGM2NGY3MA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjVhY2Q4YWJiNDYyODc2ZDY0YTZmN2MwNjM1NDFkMjk2OnYx


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: 0 Guttenberg St. Memo to PC (2018-016721CUAVAR)
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 6:00:06 PM
Attachments: 0 Guttenberg St._Memo_20210413.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)" <gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 5:03 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)" <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: 0 Guttenberg St. Memo to PC (2018-016721CUAVAR)
 
Hi Jonas,
 
The previous file didn’t include the attachments. Can you please forward this version of the Memo
to the PC?
 
Thanks,
Gaby
 
Gabriela Pantoja, Planner
Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628-652-7380| www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Note: I will be out of the office on April 9th and 23rd 
 
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
 

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 3:46 PM
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
<gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>
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
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Memo to the Planning Commission 
Date: April 13, 2021 
Record No.: 2018-016721CUAVAR 
Project Address: 0 Guttenberg Street 
Zoning: Residential-House, One-Family (RH-1) Zoning District 
 40-X Height and Bulk District 
Block/Lot: 6475/055 
Project Sponsor: Jayesh Patel 
 240 Francisco Lane, #14950 
 Fremont, CA 94539 
Property Owner: Guttenberg Project LLC 
 Fremont, CA 94539 
Staff Contact: Gabriela Pantoja- (628) 652-7380 
 Gabriela.Pantoja@sfgov.org  
 


Request 


On December 12, 2018, Jayesh Patel of Guttenberg Project, LLC (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") filed Application 
No. 2018-016721CUA (hereinafter “Application”) with the Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) for a 
Conditional Use Authorization for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) to construct 15 residential buildings (four 
duplexes and 11 town-homes) with a total of 19 dwelling units, 29 off-street parking spaces, and 19 Class 1 bicycle-
parking spaces on an approximately 36,406 square foot lot (hereinafter “Project”) at 0 Guttenberg Street, Block 
6475 Lot 055 (hereinafter “Project Site”). The Commission approved the Conditional Use Authorization on March 
11, 2021 as set forth in Motion No. 20873 and requested a Planning Commission Memo with detailed landscaping, 
permeability, and lightning plans be submitted to the Planning Commission within two weeks.  
 
On March 30, 2021, the Project Sponsors requested an extension.   


Project Description 


The Project is for the construction of 15 residential buildings (four duplexes and 11 town-homes) with a total of 19 
dwelling units, 29 off-street parking spaces, 19 Class 1 bicycle-parking spaces, and 8, 429 square feet of private 
usable open space on an approximately 36,406 square foot vacant lot. The dwelling units range in size from 1,041 
to 1,689 square feet and contain two to three bedrooms. The dwelling units are accessed via a driveway and 
pedestrian walkways from Guttenberg Street. The residential buildings range in height from 20 to 30 feet. Trees, 
landscaping, permeable surfaces, and signage are proposed within the development site. 



mailto:Gabriela.Pantoja@sfgov.org





Memo to Planning Commission RECORD NO. 2018-016721CUAVAR 
April 13, 2021 0 Guttenberg Street 
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Update 


The Department has received the requested detailed landscaping, permeability, and lightning plans. 


Alterations to the Project include: 


1. Addition of synthetic lawn at rear yards of Buildings A4- A7, B1-4, and C1-C8.


2. Addition of raised wood vegetable garden planters and bark chips at the rear yards of all Buildings A1-A7,
B1-B4, and C1-C8.


3. Addition of Flowering Plum or Japanese Maple along with Black Stem Pittosporum, Hardenbergia Vine,
and Feather Reed Grass at the rear yards of Buildings A1-A7.


4. Addition of Mayten Trees, Heavenly Bamboo, and Hardenbergia Vine at the rear yards of all Buildings B1-
B4. 


5. Addition of Mayten Trees, Heavenly Bamboo, and Black Stem Pittosporum at the rear yards of all
Buildings C1-C8.


6. Addition of Hardenbergia Vine and Fortnight Lily along the side yard of Building C7-8.


7. Lighting will be provided at the rear yard and front yard of each building via low voltage dojo deck
lighting and low voltage coneheads.


8. Irrigation (L2.1) and Stormwater Management (SK11) plans have been composed.


Action: 


If the Commission wants to amend, add, or rescind the conditions of approval, the Commission must 
request a separate hearing, which would require additional noticing. Unless the Commission requests 
additional hearings on this matter, this would be the final informational check-in. 


Attachments: 


- Landscaping and Irrigation Plans


- Stormwater Management Plan



http://www.sf-planning.org/info
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Per your Conditions of Approval:
 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 3:39 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Chanbory Son <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>, "Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)"
<josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>, Delvin Washington <delvin.washington@sfgov.org>
Subject: 0 Guttenberg St. Memo to PC (2018-016721CUAVAR)
 
Hi Jonas,
 
Attached please find the Memo to Planning Commission for the Project at 0 Guttenberg St. (2018-
016721CUAVAR) to be distributed today.
 
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
mailto:gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org
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


From: Diamond, Susan (CPC)
To: Balba, Ryan (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 3:42:20 PM

Thanks - that worked.

From: Balba, Ryan (CPC) <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 3:37 PM
To: Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 
Hello Commissioner Diamond,

I've attached a reduced file size version - perhaps this will work for you.

Thank you,
Ryan

Ryan Balba, Assistant Planner
Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
All Pronouns
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7331 | www.sfplanning.org
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

From: Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 3:31 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Balba, Ryan (CPC)
<ryan.balba@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 
For some reason, I can't open this attachment.  Could you try sending again?  Thanks, Sue

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 5:50 PM
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Balba, Ryan (CPC)
<ryan.balba@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 

mailto:sue.diamond@sfgov.org
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


See below:
 
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
 
 

From: "Balba, Ryan (CPC)" <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 5:46 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Delvin Washington <delvin.washington@sfgov.org>
Subject: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 
Hello Jonas,
 
Please see the revised packet for 2119 Castro Street, which is being pulled from the Consent
Calendar at this Thursday's hearing. Edits can be found on pages 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 10, and 37. The edits
include updating the description of the proposed structure, correcting the open space finding,
correcting the supportive housing finding, correcting the record to show there will are two family-
sized dwelling units being proposed, and correcting the usable open space row on the Land Use
Information exhibit. Could you please assist me in distributing this revision to the Commissioners?
 
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
To: Balba, Ryan (CPC); CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Cc: Washington, Delvin (CPC)
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 9:18:58 AM

Thank you, she got me twisted, by putting 28th Street in the subject line.
 
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
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 9:13 AM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Delvin Washington <delvin.washington@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 
Hi Jonas,
 
This is being pulled off of Consent per Georgia's request on Saturday via email. I've attached her
email for reference.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 9:07 AM
To: Balba, Ryan (CPC) <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>; CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Washington, Delvin (CPC) <delvin.washington@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2119 Castro Street - Commission Packet Update
 
Ryan,
Why is this being pulled off of Consent?
 
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
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 468 Turk St project
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:32:12 PM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: North Market <northofmarket@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:56 PM
To: oel.koppel@sfgov.org; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael
(CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Grob, Carly (CPC)
<carly.grob@sfgov.org>
Subject: 468 Turk St project
 

 

RE: Public Comment
 
Dear Commissioners,
 
Again another project with over 100 units for the neighborhood. These unit sizes are similar in size
to some of the SROs in the neighborhood. We again don't need more people in this densest
neighborhood. The project did not have feedback from the neighborhood and the project should not
be granted any conditional use permits until proper engagement of the community is done and also
development agreement is signed..
 
We request the planning commission continues this item until proper process is followed with
engaging the community first.
 
Sincerely,
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Executive Board
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 450-474 O"FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:30:41 PM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:43 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Grob, Carly (CPC)
<carly.grob@sfgov.org>
Subject: 450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET
 

 

Public Comment:
 
Dear Commissioners,
 
The executive committee has been dealing with these properties for over 20 years,
 
We fill that current proposal and all the revised proposals that the developer is seeking.  It does not
belong in the North of Market / Tenderloin neighborhood.  You have already passed over a dozen
projects in Tenderloin that cover over 100 units each . In the last couple of years. This neighborhood
is already the densest neighborhood in the city.  We don't need a project that would house over 600
people. Please reject this new project.
 
Sincerely,
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Executive Committee 



 
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
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:30:34 PM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:25 PM
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
<rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Grob, Carly (CPC) <carly.grob@sfgov.org>
Subject: 450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET
 

 

Public Comment:
 
RE: 2013.1535CUA-02
 
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
Subject: FW: Opposition to 2119 Castro Street conditional use permit as it stands now
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:30:21 PM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Mike Adamick <adamick@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 1:06 PM
To: Balba, Ryan (CPC) <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Dana Kromm <danakromm@paulhastings.com>; Michael Adamick <adamick@yahoo.com>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Opposition to 2119 Castro Street conditional use permit as it stands now
 

 

Dear commission members,
 
As the neighbors located directly south of the proposed project at 2119 Castro Street,
we are writing to urge modifications to the proposed construction to avoid conditions
that would create visual blight for neighbors and would change the character of the
street for the worse.
 
As noted in the permit for the building directly south of the proposed project, the
developer at 2123 Castro Street made several modifications to better accommodate
neighborhood concerns.
 
We urge the commission to seek the same accommodations with the project at 2119
Castro Street so that the developer and existing neighbors can find better common
ground than what is proposed.
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To that end, we are opposed to the project and conditional use permit as is and
propose the following modifications:
 
1. The front doors should better align. As it stands now, the proposed project would
significantly push the new building footprint toward the sidewalk and side property
line, putting the entrance points and the footprint of the building itself much further
toward the street than the neighboring properties. The effect of this will be to "wall in"
the neighboring property at 2123 Castro, blocking the front door, two side windows,
light and views, and creating a massive visual impediment at the existing front door
and side windows and walkway.
 
The building at 2123 Castro was constructed so the front door aligns better with
neighboring buildings, allowing light and views to be as minimally hampered as
possible. We urge the commission to require the proposed project fall more in line
with its neighbor by better aligning all front doors with existing neighboring front doors
and by pushing the building footprint significantly away from the sidewalk to avoid
creating a massive wall that will block light and views for neighbors.
 
There should also be more setback from the side property line at the front of this
proposed building to, again, avoid creating a massive wall that will block in neighbors.
The developer at 2123 Castro Street created a set-back walkway leading to the front
door, which aligns with the current property at 2119 Castro Street, allowing for more
light and fewer visual impediments at the property line. The neighbor
accommodations that led to the creation of this set-back walkway at 2123 Castro
Street will be for nought if the proposed project goes through as planned. There
seems to be a difference between what is "legally allowed" and what is less harmful
to existing neighbors, and we urge modifications here to better suit the character of
the existing properties and to take into account the care that went into neighboring
construction projects to better suit neighborhood concerns. In short, modifications
were made at 2123 Castro Street at the behest of neighbors to avoid creating a
massive wall at the property line for neighbors, and we urge the same modifications
to be made at 2119 Castro Street.
 
* The same issue exists at the rear of the proposed property. Although 2123 Castro
extends beyond the back door alignment with this proposed project, the building itself
was built with care to allow light and views to remain as unobstructed as possible with
many set-backs from the side property line and with the use of more glass to avoid
creating a massive, light-blocking obstruction for neighbors. We urge the commission
to consider the same standards for the proposed property, otherwise the care and
neighborhood input that was put into the construction of 2123 Castro Street will be
voided by the addition of light and view blocking obstructions at 2119 Castro Street.
We urge more setback of the building footprint from the side property line from 2123
Castro Street to avoid blocking views and light.
 
Again, 2123 Castro Street was modified specifically to meet neighborhood demands
to allow in as much light to 2119 Castro Street as possible -- yet, the proposed project
would void these modifications by creating visual and light impediments. For instance,



like the front of the property, the rear of 2123 Castro Street includes a lower walkway
near the property line instead of a huge wall of building. The building footprint at 2123
Castro Street was pushed back well beyond what was "legally allowed" at the side of
the property, so that the neighbors were greeted with more space between the
buildings instead of imposing walls and obstructions.
 
In short, we urge modifications to push the building footprint further away from the
side property line to create more space between the properties, and to better consider
the character of the neighborhood, the concerns about light and views, and to not
undue the modifications that were made at neighboring buildings that were created to
suit neighbor concerns. We urge the same consideration here.
 
* Noise. The surrounding block on this street has two buildings currently under
complete demolition and reconstruction -- with one more pending, and then this one
at 2119 Castro Street in the pipeline. The construction noise is, to be sure, part of the
rebuilding of the city and expected. But, it is still very much a major nuisance to have
crews of strangers shouting and playing loud music from 7 am to 6 pm each day. We
urge a restriction on non-construction related noises, such as music (headphones are
great for everyone!). We also urge the commission to make available a direct line to
the developer and/or property owner for neighbors to call when non-construction
related noise gets out of hand. Again, a certain amount of noise is unavoidable, but
there should be a way for neighbors to be in direct contact with crew leaders and/ or
city building planners to keep things manageable rather than simply asking a random
stranger who happens to be working next door that day for more consideration.
 
Thanks for your time and consideration. Although we do not know all the correct
terms, and we understand that this building *could* be a great addition to the
neighborhood, we urge the commission to enforce modifications to the project as it
stands now to better take into account neighboring projects that were built specifically
with neighbor modifications in mind.
 
This project as it stands now would void those accommodation, and we voice our
opposition to it. We would be happy to work with the developer and/or the
commission to reach accommodations that work best for all.
 
Sincerely,
 
Mike Adamick
2123 Castro Street
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________
________
Raising Empowered Daughters: A Dad-to-Dad Guide
 
www.mikeadamick.com
 

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.amazon.com/Raising-Empowered-Daughters-Dad-Dad/dp/1580058655/ref%3Dtmm_pap_swatch_0%3F_encoding%3DUTF8%26amp%3Bqid%3D%26amp%3Bsr%3D&g=M2ZmMTMxNTMzMGNkNDEzMQ==&h=NmE3NmYwNDE0ZTJkNDdjNGFlMTYyNDg4Njg1Zjk0MTYwMTIyZDExZmMzOTJmZWJmMDI1YjQ2NjgyODk1YTk5Zg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjhmODVkNzQ3NjBjYTJlYTM1OTlkZThhZWViYWNmODRmOnYx
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//mikeadamick.com/&g=ZGQwNTYwNTllMGMzM2I5NQ==&h=Mjk1OTg4NWUwNDc5MDY0ZmFmY2Q0NDI0MmVjZjE5ZWE5YTgwNWU5ZTc1YTQ2NTA2MzRkYTc3NzZhMDJhMmRjNA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjhmODVkNzQ3NjBjYTJlYTM1OTlkZThhZWViYWNmODRmOnYx


Pronouns: he, him, his



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Grob, Carly (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Subject: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project Public Comment 538 signature Online Petition

(attachments)
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:30:09 PM
Attachments: Our concerns for 450 O"Farrell Street development_OnlinePetition.pdf

petition_comments_jobs_27391480_20210414172437.pdf
petition_signatures_jobs_27391480_20210414172037.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 12:36 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Subject: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project Public Comment 538 signature
Online Petition (attachments)
 

 

Subject: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project

Public Comment 538 signature Online Petition

 

April 14, 2021

 

Planning Commission Members/Commission Staff:

 

On behalf of Alliance for a Better District 6 (ABD6) and our community partners, we write to express
grave concerns about the proposed project at 450 O'Farrell St.
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 Welcome back to Change.org! A new petition wins every hour thanks to signers like you.


 Go to my petition’s dashboard


Our concerns for 450 O'Farrell Street development
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English (United States)


 Start a petition My petitions Browse Membership 


Michael Nulty started this petition to San Francisco Planning Commission and 3 others


The Project Sponsor failed to engage the community, seeking to
secure approval from the San Francisco Planning Commission
without interacting with stakeholders in the neighborhood.


Most of the 302 units in this proposed project will range from
318 square feet to 477 square feet, designed for 'essential
workers' and 'families.' As an illustration, according to their plans,
two twin beds and a third fold-up bed constitute a one-room
"family" unit. All of these dwelling units lack full kitchens and
private bedrooms. These plans represent new units that would
replicate overcrowding. This development fails to meet current
standards for Inclusionary Housing.


We urge the San Francisco Planning Commission to consider this
community feedback and reject this joint venture between Forge
Development Partners, a privately-held local development firm,
and Fifth Church of Christ, Scientist. Should the developer wish
to revise their plans and demonstrate respect for the community
engagement process, including giving genuine consideration to
the feedback generated through it, We would reconsider our
opposition.


项目发起人未能与社区互动，试图在不与社区利益相关者互动的情
况下获得旧金山计划委员会的批准。


该拟议项目中的302个单位中，大多数面积为318平方英尺至477平
方英尺，专为“基本工人”和“家庭”设计。作为说明，根据他们的计
划，两张单人床和第三张折叠床构成一个单间“家庭”单元。所有这
些居住单元都没有完整的厨房和私人卧室。这些计划代表了将重复
拥挤的新单位。这一发展不符合现行的包容性住房标准。


我们敦促旧金山计划委员会考虑社区的反馈意见，并拒绝由私有的
本地开发公司Forge Development Partners与科学家第五基督教堂
之间的合资企业。如果开发者希望修改其计划并表现出对社区参与
过程的尊重，包括真正考虑通过该过程产生的反馈，我们将重新考
虑我们的反对意见。
Xiàngmù fāqǐ rén wèi néng yǔ shèqū hùdòng, shìtú zài bù yǔ
shèqū lìyì xiāngguān zhě hùdòng de qíngkuàng xià huòdé
jiùjīnshān jìhuà wěiyuánhuì de pīzhǔn.


Gāi nǐyì xiàngmù zhōng de 302 gè dānwèi zhōng, dà duōshù
miànjī wèi 318 píngfāng yīngchǐ zhì 477 píngfāng yīngchǐ, zhuān
wèi “jīběn gōngrén” hé “jiātíng” shèjì. Zuòwéi shuōmíng, gēnjù
tāmen de jìhuà, liǎng zhāng dān rén chuáng hé dì sān zhāng
zhédié chuáng gòuchéng yīgè dānjiān “jiātíng” dānyuán. Suǒyǒu
zhèxiē jūzhù dānyuán dōu méiyǒu wánzhěng de chúfáng hé sīrén
wòshì. Zhèxiē jìhuà dàibiǎole jiāng chóngfù yǒngjǐ de xīn dānwèi.
Zhè yī fà zhǎn bù fúhé xiànxíng de bāoróng xìng zhùfáng
biāozhǔn.


Wǒmen dūncù jiùjīnshān jìhuà wěiyuánhuì kǎolǜ shèqū de fǎnkuì
yìjiàn, bìng jùjué yóu sīyǒu de běndì kāifā gōngsī Forge
Development Partners yǔ kēxuéjiā dì wǔ jīdū jiàotáng zhī jiān de
hézī qǐyè. Rúguǒ kāifā zhě xīwàng xiūgǎi qí jìhuà bìng biǎoxiàn
chū duì shèqū cānyù guòchéng de zūnzhòng, bāokuò zhēnzhèng
kǎolǜ tōngguò gāi guòchéng chǎnshēng de fǎnkuì, wǒmen jiāng
chóngxīn kǎolǜ wǒmen de fǎnduì yìjiàn.


El patrocinador del proyecto no logró involucrar a la comunidad,
buscando obtener la aprobación de la Comisión de Planificación
de San Francisco sin interactuar con las partes interesadas en el
vecindario.


La mayoría de las 302 unidades en este proyecto propuesto
variarán de 318 pies cuadrados a 477 pies cuadrados, diseñadas
para 'trabajadores esenciales' y 'familias'. A modo de ilustración,
según sus planes, dos camas individuales y una tercera cama
plegable constituyen una unidad "familiar" de una habitación.
Todas estas unidades de vivienda carecen de cocinas completas
y dormitorios privados. Estos planes representan nuevas
unidades que replicarían el hacinamiento. Este desarrollo no
cumple con los estándares actuales para viviendas inclusivas.


Instamos a la Comisión de Planificación de San Francisco a
considerar esta retroalimentación de la comunidad y rechazar
esta empresa conjunta entre Forge Development Partners, una
firma de desarrollo local de propiedad privada, y la Quinta Iglesia
de Cristo, Científica. Si el desarrollador desea revisar sus planes
y demostrar respeto por el proceso de participación de la
comunidad, incluida la consideración genuina de los comentarios
generados a través de él, reconsideraríamos nuestra oposición.


Nabigo ang Sponsor ng Proyekto na makisali sa pamayanan,
naghahangad na ma-secure ang pag-apruba mula sa Komisyon
ng Plano ng San Francisco nang hindi nakikipag-ugnay sa mga
stakeholder sa kapitbahayan.


Karamihan sa 302 na yunit sa iminungkahing proyekto na ito ay
mula 318 square paa hanggang 477 square square, na idinisenyo
para sa 'mahahalagang manggagawa' at 'pamilya.' Bilang isang
paglalarawan, ayon sa kanilang mga plano, ang dalawang kambal
na kama at isang pangatlong tiklop na kama ay bumubuo ng
isang silid na "pamilya" na yunit. Ang lahat ng mga yunit na ito ay
walang mga kusina at pribadong silid-tulugan. Ang mga planong
ito ay kumakatawan sa mga bagong yunit na maaaring magtiklop
sa sobrang dami ng tao. Nabigo ang pag-unlad na ito upang
matugunan ang mga kasalukuyang pamantayan para sa
Kasamang Pabahay.


Hinihimok namin ang Komisyon ng Plano ng San Francisco na
isaalang-alang ang puna ng komunidad na ito at tanggihan ang
magkasanib na pakikipagsapalaran sa pagitan ng Forge
Development Partners, isang pribadong pag-unlad na lokal na
firm ng pag-unlad, at Fifth Church of Christ, Scientist. Kung nais
ng developer na baguhin ang kanilang mga plano at ipakita ang
paggalang sa proseso ng pakikipag-ugnayan sa pamayanan,
kabilang ang pagbibigay ng tunay na pagsasaalang-alang sa
feedback na nabuo sa pamamagitan nito, Isasaalang-alang namin
muli ang aming pagsalungat.


.


 


 


 


Updates
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AJ Guest · 2 months ago


I support affordable clean housing.
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Jan Chepeska · 2 months ago


The homeless situation is dire in California
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 Promoted by 18 supporters


Our neighborhood in danger
of being washed out!
South Arlington neighborhoods in danger of
being washed away! Dear Citizens of
Arlington, Texas: We ask you for… Read more


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 22 supporters


Save the Andrew Akin
House (c . 1746) in Silvermine
I support the preservation of the historic home
at 1 Old Kings Highway in Silvermine. It was
built by Andrew Akin in about… Read more


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 16 supporters


Put Fitness Equipment on
the East River Esplanade in
A . H. Green Park
COVID-19 has changed the way we live.  Since
the spring of 2020, the East River Esplanade


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 223 supporters


SAY NO TO EAST FLAT
ROCK ASPHALT PLANT
PROPOSED NEW ASPHALT PLANT
PROJECTCONDITIONAL REZONING #R-2020-
03-C PROTEST PETITION We… Read more


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 33 supporters


Seattle Parks Department,
Fully Fund Be'er Sheva Park
Improvements with MPD
Residents of Rainier Beach have designed
park improvements at Be'er Sheva park, and


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 11 supporters


Save Liberty Hill, Stop the 29
Bypass
The history of Liberty Hill, like Texas, is one of
dedication and persistence. Prior to 1900, the
town of Liberty Hill moved three… Read more


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 18 supporters


Allow Glenview Community
Input on Scott Foresman |
Pearson Property
Discussions!
Dear Glenview Neighbors, If you were not


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 17 supporters


Opposition to the 4,000
apartments for West Flower
Mound
While Flower Mound is a great spot to live,
adding apartments and high density living is


Sign the petition


 Promoted by 2 supporters


UMB changes to
MLK/Baltimore/Fremont
Dear Hollins Roundhouse Association, We, the
undersigned residents of the 800 block of
Hollins Street and others, write to… Read more


Sign the petition
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Recipient: San Francisco Planning Commission, San Francisco Board of Supervisors,
Forge Development Partners, Fifth Church of Christ, Scientist


Letter: Greetings,


Our concerns for 450 O'Farrell Street development:







Comments


Name Location Date Comment


Jan Chepeska Belleville, MI 2021-02-16 "The homeless situation is dire in California"


AJ Guest San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18 "I support affordable clean housing."


David Carpenter San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18 "Cramming humans into tiny spaces is ridiculous and not a
solution."


Wilma Gurwork San Francisco, CA 2021-02-21 "Safe and healthy housing needs to be built, with little impact
to traffic and the existing residents and businesses. I support a
different configuration of unit amenities. Let's do a better job Forge
Development."


Beryl Shields Miami, FL 2021-02-22 "͡(° ͜ʖ ͡°)"


Gerald Benson Miami, FL 2021-02-22 "I support this petition"


George Hawkins Miami, FL 2021-02-22 "I am for safe and comfortable housing"


Peter Wells San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22 "��"


Vivien Caldwell Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22 "I fully support everyone who signed the petition, thanks to Michael
there is faith in humanity�"


Njon Sanders San Francisco, CA 2021-02-26 "Christian Science is a dying sect whose anti-medical dogma
is the source of prolonged unnecessary pain and suffering for
many. Please sell this property and end the claims of "healing" the
community."


Erin Lambert San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08 "excellent"


Beatrice McBride San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08 "good offer to work on, i am with you."


Juniper Ford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08 "the developer must reconsider their plans and expect respect for
the process."


Maximilian Bridges San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08 "ok"


Emma Shields San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12 "glad I was able to sign this petition"


Margaret Carr San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "the project sponsor needs to provide better community outreach."


Jeffery Barber San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "this project as proposed needs to be changed!!!!!"


Mark Porter San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "housing for essential workers needs to meet their needs including
parking."


Amy Page San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "the BMR units should be at least 25 percent of the project, just my
opinion."







Name Location Date Comment


Mary Shields San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "WHY ARE ALL THE BATHROOMS IN THE UNITS IN THE MIDDLE
OF THE UNIT WHICH CREATES SMALL HALLWAYS AND EMPTY
SPACE?????"


Helen Tyler San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "Middle-class workforce households need a large refrigerator in
their apartment to feed their family..."


Maximilian Jones San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "it seems the church gets parking but the residents will not have any
parking. Why is that?"


Willis White San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "I hope smart people will make the right decision and support this
petition"


Ashlee Patterson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13 "all will be good/ i know"








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







Signatures


Name Location Date


Michael Nulty San Francisco, CA 2021-02-16


Susan Bryan San Francisco, CA 2021-02-16


Laura Sinai San Francusco, CA 2021-02-16


Cody Thompson El Paso, US 2021-02-16


Susan Phillips San Rafael, CA 2021-02-16


lorenzo morales Columbia, US 2021-02-16


Katie Elenbaas Cadillac, US 2021-02-16


Jeffrey Clay Barcus San Francisco, CA 2021-02-16


Jan Chepeska Belleville, MI 2021-02-16


Tony Wise North Augusta, SC 2021-02-16


Cheryl Shanks San Francisco, CA 2021-02-16


Liza Murawski San Francisco, CA 2021-02-17


Maggie lambert Fort Wayne, IN 2021-02-17


WAYNE KILLINGER MELBOURNE, FL 2021-02-17


AJ Guest San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18


Deetje Boler San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18


David Carpenter San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18


Jeff Warner San Francisco, CA 2021-02-18


Yernat Shpekbayev Frankfurt Am Main, Germany 2021-02-19


Vyacheslav Malinin Atlanta, GA 2021-02-19







Name Location Date


Urbiegato Morbidendus Gilbert, AZ 2021-02-19


Mary Rush San Francisco, US 2021-02-20


Daniel Bettencourt Fremont, CA 2021-02-20


Wilma Gurwork San Francisco, CA 2021-02-21


Vyacheslav Kalinin New York, NY 2021-02-22


Michael miller New York, NY 2021-02-22


Dean Keller Бородулиха, Kazakhstan 2021-02-22


Dean Keller Ctvtq, Kazakhstan 2021-02-22


John Nulty London, UK 2021-02-22


Chris Gordon Москва, Russia 2021-02-22


Rube Lane San-Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Christopher Black San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Brian Fox San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Joseph Greer San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Julius Martin Semey, Kazakhstan 2021-02-22


Anthony Tyler San-Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Myra Craig Ukraine 2021-02-22


Justina Gilmore Ukraine 2021-02-22


Patricia Gross Ukraine 2021-02-22


Dinah Wells New York, NY 2021-02-22


Dorcas Warner New York, NY 2021-02-22


Judith Bailey New York, NY 2021-02-22







Name Location Date


William Goodman New York, NY 2021-02-22


August Flowers New York, NY 2021-02-22


Debra Hines San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


David Thornton San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Eileen Elliott San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Molly Reeves San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Dayna May San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Silvester Cummings San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Ronald Benson San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Christopher Kennedy San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


William Logan San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Lindsey Floyd Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Patience Patience Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Beryl Shields Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Tamsin Long Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Gerald Benson Miami, FL 2021-02-22


George Hawkins Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Jasmine Terry Miami, FL 2021-02-22


Alice Blair San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Rosa Howard San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Lily Martin San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Alexandrina Franklin San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22







Name Location Date


Caroline Clarke San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Morgan Stanley San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Ami Henry San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Jack Hodges San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Jesse Gardner San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Peter Wells San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Lynette Francis San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Amelia Tyler San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Candace Craig San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Anabel Hunt San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Georgina Jackson San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Ashlee Hopkins San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Diane Cole San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Dorothy Fletcher San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Charles Mills San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Marshall Chandler Chicago, IL 2021-02-22


Prudence Stone Chicago, IL 2021-02-22


Peter Wells Chicago, IL 2021-02-22


Christiana Greene Boston, MA 2021-02-22


Ruth Johnson Boston, MA 2021-02-22


Marianna Garrett San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Reynold Potter San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22







Name Location Date


Ronald Harrison San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Edward Bond San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Mark Parsons San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Edward Booker San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Chastity Bruce San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Garey Porter San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Alexandra Francis San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Mark Stokes San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Morgan Holmes Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22


Corey Atkinson Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22


Christopher Miles Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22


Robert Sutton Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22


Vivien Caldwell Los Angeles, CA 2021-02-22


Audra Heath San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Allyson Washington San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Nora Golden San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Rajbir Singh Nashville, US 2021-02-22


Daisy Miranda San Tan Valley, US 2021-02-22


kyle rumbo Mesquite, US 2021-02-22


Maya Jabak Clermont, US 2021-02-22


Ann Plimpton Colorado Springs, US 2021-02-22


Cierra Albright Layton, US 2021-02-22







Name Location Date


Dea Bryant Wake Forest, US 2021-02-22


Cindy Paredes Silver Spring, US 2021-02-22


STEVEN Cromie Liverpool, US 2021-02-22


Vivian Fahey Niles, US 2021-02-22


Marcello Vitale US 2021-02-22


Matthew Campbell Nogales, US 2021-02-22


raegan smith Arlington, US 2021-02-22


Hannah Amick Boise, US 2021-02-22


David Marks Amsterdam, Netherlands 2021-02-22


RADOGO ULUINADAVE San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Dan Grabau Oronoco, US 2021-02-22


John Nulty San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Fred Koopper San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Mary Kasse San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Louise Bret San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Arthur Goeke San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Anakh Sul Rama San Francisco, CA 2021-02-22


Yolanda Nava Lynwood, US 2021-02-23


e . Lindsay, US 2021-02-23


Maria Alexandra Rugero Winter Garden, US 2021-02-23


Charley Fry Loon lake, US 2021-02-23


Halle Robider Fort Mill, US 2021-02-23







Name Location Date


zach dyar Marietta, US 2021-02-23


hannah strader Weston, US 2021-02-23


Yasmine Horton Bessemer, US 2021-02-23


Jamie Russell Kannapolis, US 2021-02-23


Tami Lukachy Henderson, US 2021-02-23


Davae Skinner Alameda, US 2021-02-23


Samantha Tartaglino Watertown, US 2021-02-23


Joshua Sturgeon Fort Mill, US 2021-02-23


Andrew Killion Fort Mill, US 2021-02-23


CJ Magnett Jacksonville, US 2021-02-23


Giampiero Mariani Brooklyn, US 2021-02-23


Alla Pines US 2021-02-23


Mari Doro Downers Grove, US 2021-02-23


Jean Chagnon Montréal, US 2021-02-23


Maribel Marulanda New York, US 2021-02-23


Robert Evans Erie, PA 2021-02-23


Jose G Fort mill, US 2021-02-23


Darrell Valdez Thousand Oaks, US 2021-02-23


KANITA MOON Hoopa, US 2021-02-23


Sanai Butler Petersburg, US 2021-02-23


Dean Turpin Sparta Township, US 2021-02-23


natalie fuellenbach san francisco, US 2021-02-23







Name Location Date


Kayla Rhoad Bowman, US 2021-02-23


Paula Bell Alabaster, US 2021-02-23


Lucky Lucy Paso Robles, US 2021-02-23


Grace Weeks Flushing, US 2021-02-23


Katherine Byrne Belmont, US 2021-02-23


Morgan Huelskamp Marietta, GA 2021-02-23


T. Daher Niagara Falls, Canada 2021-02-23


amos gregory San Francisco, CA 2021-02-23


Sarah Mitchell San Francisco, CA 2021-02-23


Vaughn Banks San Jose, CA 2021-02-23


Will Hyde San Francisco, CA 2021-02-23


Thomasine Francis San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Christiana Bradford San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Molly Riley San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Lorraine Osborne San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Margaret Ray San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Carol Caldwell San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Elfrieda Cook San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Arabella Atkinson San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Teresa Houston San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Gavin Osborne San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Mark Price San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24







Name Location Date


Logan O’Brien San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Walter Doyle San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Chloe Phelps San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Tracey Horn San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Linette Underwood San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Anne Bailey San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Matthew Harris San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Chester Fields San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Jacob Charles San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


George Horton San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Norma Short San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Zoe Elliott San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Anastasia Wade San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Olivia May San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Chloe Cunningham San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Lauren Johnston San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Kerry Smith San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Thomas Palmer San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Wendy Cobb San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Abigail Mosley San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Karen Fox Фокс San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Lee Chandler San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24







Name Location Date


John Simmons San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Paul Burns San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Bertram Wells San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Kristina Knight San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Sharlene Welch San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Melissa Heithaus Mckinney, US 2021-02-24


Paul Zimmerman San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Nigel Pieloth Victoria, Canada 2021-02-24


Peter Franks San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Betty Luce San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Francis Smithe San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Lora McLaugh San Francisco, CA 2021-02-24


Albert James San Francisco, CA 2021-02-25


Joseph Hopper San Francisco, CA 2021-02-25


George E Marshall San Francisco, CA 2021-02-25


Njon Sanders San Francisco, CA 2021-02-26


Scott Dignan San Francisco, CA 2021-02-26


Helen Strain San Francisco, CA 2021-02-26


Edgar M San Francisco, CA 2021-02-26


Hank Gee San Francisco, CA 2021-02-27


Anton Chan San Francisco, CA 2021-02-27


Dan WIllis San Francisco, CA 2021-02-27







Name Location Date


Patricia Wong San Francisco, CA 2021-02-27


Peter Lee San Francisco, CA 2021-02-28


carlos medina san francisco, CA 2021-02-28


Monique Koller San Francisco, CA 2021-02-28


Denise Dorey San Francisco, CA 2021-02-28


Andrew Trabulsi San Anselmo, CA 2021-03-01


Dona Losett Helena, US 2021-03-06


Lance Best Chattanooga, TN 2021-03-09


Steve Ongerth Richmond, CA 2021-03-12


Jesse Johnson San Francisco, CA 2021-03-23


Larry Williamson San Francisco, CA 2021-03-23


Paul Young New York, NY 2021-03-27


John Carson New York, NY 2021-03-27


Anis Park New York, NY 2021-03-27


Dorcas Lamb New York, NY 2021-03-27


Jack Garrison New York, NY 2021-03-27


Emily Hamilton New York, NY 2021-03-27


Ellis Crystal New York, NY 2021-03-27


Lorraine Fitzgerald New York, NY 2021-03-27


Calvin Allen New York, NY 2021-03-27


Ronald Randall New York, NY 2021-03-27


Hortense Shaw New York, NY 2021-03-27







Name Location Date


Abigail Campbell New York, NY 2021-03-27


Theodore Underwood New York, NY 2021-03-27


George Quinn New York, NY 2021-03-27


Denis Campbell New York, NY 2021-03-27


Robert Hancock New York, NY 2021-03-27


Madeleine Fields New York, NY 2021-03-27


Katrina Sims New York, NY 2021-03-27


Meagan Hart New York, NY 2021-03-27


Helen Sharp New York, NY 2021-03-27


Ann McKenzie New York, NY 2021-03-27


Amberlynn Dean New York, NY 2021-03-27


Arron Watson New York, NY 2021-03-27


Joshua Cook New York, NY 2021-03-27


Kenneth Singleton New York, NY 2021-03-27


Curtis Mathews New York, NY 2021-03-27


Chloe Norman New York, NY 2021-03-27


John Sparks New York, NY 2021-03-27


Robert Chase New York, NY 2021-03-27


Sandra Gray New York, NY 2021-03-27


Joseph Ferguson New York, NY 2021-03-27


Laurence Atkins New York, NY 2021-03-27


Andreya Allen San Francisco, CA 2021-03-31







Name Location Date


Latasha Tisby Long Beach, US 2021-04-02


Oscar Parsons San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Clyde Stevenson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Alicia Armstrong San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Imogen Cross San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Cornelia Blake San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Erin Lambert San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Beatrice McBride San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Juniper Ford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Matthew McDaniel San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Robert Woods San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Carmel Fox San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Beatrix Stafford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Kenneth Sherman San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Ruth Simon San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Vernon Johnston San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Augustine Daniel San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Janel Spencer San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Lizbeth Lee San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Kerry Day San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Bryce Harris San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Antony Rogers San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08







Name Location Date


David Quinn San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Judith Joseph San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Peter Cooper San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Charles Rice San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Timothy McGee San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Leslie Arnold San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


John Miller San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Emery Robbins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Edward Carr San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Agnes Goodwin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Robert Carson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Brian Hart San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Hart Simon San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Paul Ward San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Baldwin Jones San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Eileen Carr San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Ursula Craig San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Jean Robertson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Robert Welch San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Joshua McCormick San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Christopher Baker San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Winfred McCormick San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08







Name Location Date


Maximilian Bridges San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Mariah Matthews San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Bernadette Wilson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Amanda French San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Lionel Lloyd San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Rodger Hamilton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Brian Sharp San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Jeremy Brooks San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Hilary Wilkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


William Manning San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Samuel Charles San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Anis Park San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Simon Stafford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Aubrey Thornton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Thomas Jones San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Easter Glenn San Francisco, CA 2021-04-08


Peter Craig San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Michael Matthews San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Myra Golden San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Nancy Chapman San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Emily Harris San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Robert McKenzie San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11







Name Location Date


Gordon Owens San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Joseph Byrd San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Virgil Sanders San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Anastasia Stevenson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Pamela Bennett San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Eustacia Baker San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Michael Freeman San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Joshua Dorsey San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Emily Randall San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Clare Russell San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Jack Gaines San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Judith Houston San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Barrie Spencer San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Richard York San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


David Wilkerson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Frank O’Connor San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Steven Cooper San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Peter Lyons San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Britney Booker San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Claude Thomas San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Amie Bishop San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Paul Blair San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11







Name Location Date


Allan Melton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


Edgar Horton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-11


David Ellis San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Robert Neal San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Paul McCormick San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Buddy Brown San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Simon Hutchinson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Emma Carson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Stephanie Barrett San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Mary Goodwin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Emma Shields San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Chester Green San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Charles Gray San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Jayson Hensley San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Claire Stevenson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Jane Morgan San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Joella Gregory San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Prudence Paul San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Simon Carson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Peter Harrell San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Roger Potter San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Michael Robertson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12







Name Location Date


Peter Adams San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Amelia Freeman San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Margaret Wilkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Corey Lindsey San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Olivia Phillips San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Peter Walters San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Matthew Robertson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Philip Lewis San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Stewart Paul San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


June Ferguson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Annis Wade San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Emma Morris San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Gerald Higgins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Shon Sutton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Steven Watkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Paul Morton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Letitia Hodge San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Caroline Baldwin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Charlene Ramsey San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Karen Gray San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Robert Hunter San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Hilda Lindsey San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12







Name Location Date


Peter Hines San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Matthew Stevenson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Reynold Ford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Peter Barrett San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Madeline Griffin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Ami Wells San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Jack Cummings San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Alisha Gregory San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Susan Douglas San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Leslie Dickerson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Mary McDowell San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Martha Pearson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Chad Owens San Francisco, CA 2021-04-12


Anthony Bradley San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Joshua Pearson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Robert Welch San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Katherine Warren San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Merilyn Horn San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Helen Greer San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


John Fields San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Patrick Doyle San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ruth Johnson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


Rosalyn Melton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Sophie Shepherd San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Grace Chandler San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Erica Woods San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Collin Marsh San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Peter Benson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Antony Underwood San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Robert Robertson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Godfrey Marsh San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Alfred Stewart San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mary Dorsey San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Justina Hodge San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Sandra Carroll San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Joan Blair San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Abigail Sanders San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Shauna Hodges San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ruth Banks San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Elfrieda Elfrieda San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jasper Shaw San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Brett Hensley San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Colin Stevens San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Christopher Short San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


Sandra York San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Annabel Walters San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Olivia Brown San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mark Holland San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Agatha Stafford San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Oliver Hopkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Richard Bates San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Linda Small San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Sheila Brooks San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Cora Chambers San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Adelia Carr San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Elinor Wade San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Margaret Carr San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Derek Cox San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jeffery Barber San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mark Porter San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Dwight Wheeler San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Cordelia Douglas San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Amy Page San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jennifer Jefferson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Michael Chase San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


John Todd San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


David Dixon San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Prosper Davis San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ronald Bishop San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Posy Atkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Doreen Simpson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Karin Russell San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mark Richards San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Scott Dalton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Matthew Cummings San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Emily Pierce San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Daisy Hampton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Dortha Underwood San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mary Shields San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Spencer Henderson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mervin Nash San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Reynold Farmer San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Clare Bell San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Matilda Walker San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Julia Hunt San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Joshua O’Neal San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Kenneth Morton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Joseph Foster San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


Barbara Townsend San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Winifred Hancock San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Helen Tyler San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Dorothy Preston San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Paul Grant San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Matthew Watts San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jeremy Jenkins San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Baldric Holmes San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ophelia Greer San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Emily Norman San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Julia Bond San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Maximilian Jones San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Annice West San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Geraldine Lucas San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jacob Ball San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Dominic Short San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Claude Hill San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Randell Brooks San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Maurice Evans San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Herbert Austin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Rebecca Hunt San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Kathleen Wright San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


Clifton Miller San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Willis White San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Marjory Cummings San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Diane Dalton San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Jane Nelson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Job Summers San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Mark McCormick San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


David Cannon San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Richard Dean San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Aron Martin San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Thomas Peters San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Charlotte Jefferson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Sandra Kennedy San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Chloe Murphy San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Cody Hunt San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Scot Rogers San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ruth Morgan San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Grace Day San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Geraldine Armstrong San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Joseph Hutchinson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Howard Doyle San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Ashlee Patterson San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13







Name Location Date


Henry Shepherd San Francisco, CA 2021-04-13


Belinda Dobbs San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


Katherine Vaughn San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


Christina Tucker San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


David Warren San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


Jasmine Rios San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


Cirrena Troutt Daly City, CA 2021-04-14


Lorenzo Listana San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14


Angela Jangar South San Francisco, CA 2021-04-14







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

 

This development proposes revising housing from 176 residential dwelling units to 302 group housing
units.

 

Once the developer proposed group housing units stakeholders became concerned about the potential
impacts and the lack of proper community outreach. The attached online petition allows the broader
community and others around the project to comment.

 

The Online Petition was created two months ago and is still generating responses. Because the
developer has altered their project several times many are not sure what is actually being proposed.
Because of this, we are asking for a continuance.
https://www.change.org/p/san-francisco-planning-commission-our-concerns-for-450-
o-farrell-street-development
 
 
 

If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out at sf_district6@yahoo.com. Thank you for
your consideration.

 

Michael Nulty

Executive Director

Alliance for a Better District 6

 
 

Michael Nulty
P.O. Box 420782
San Francisco, CA 94142-0782
(415) 339-8779 - Alliance for a Better District 6
http://abd6.cfsites.org/
 
 
 

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.change.org/p/san-francisco-planning-commission-our-concerns-for-450-o-farrell-street-development&g=Njg5ZDc5ZWIxZjkzNDM2OA==&h=YTliMmYwYjE1ZGM2MTFhZjAyMTAyOWNkMGNmMWJkNmY3ZDFmMjRhMzU3MjE5YWUzZDFmNGJlOWU2OWUzZTEzOA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjU2ZDc4MTM0OTdmN2RiOTAyZmUwMTAzYmU0N2RiN2I4OnYx
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.change.org/p/san-francisco-planning-commission-our-concerns-for-450-o-farrell-street-development&g=Njg5ZDc5ZWIxZjkzNDM2OA==&h=YTliMmYwYjE1ZGM2MTFhZjAyMTAyOWNkMGNmMWJkNmY3ZDFmMjRhMzU3MjE5YWUzZDFmNGJlOWU2OWUzZTEzOA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjU2ZDc4MTM0OTdmN2RiOTAyZmUwMTAzYmU0N2RiN2I4OnYx
mailto:sf_district6@yahoo.com
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//abd6.cfsites.org/&g=YzVmMjY4OTI1MGIyYWRiNA==&h=NjZjNjJiYWI5ZjZlZmJiODA2ZDg5M2Y0M2MzNmUxYjc5NWQxMGQ1YmI2MzVhN2Q5ZmE0ZTQ4YmY1OTk4N2FlMA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjU2ZDc4MTM0OTdmN2RiOTAyZmUwMTAzYmU0N2RiN2I4OnYx


 
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project Seeking a continuance
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 2:29:26 PM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Tenderloin Tenants <tenderlointenants@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 12:33 PM
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
Subject: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project Seeking a continuance
 

 

Subject: 450–474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street Project

Public Comment

 

April 14, 2021

 

Planning Commission Members/Commission Staff:

 

On behalf of Tenderloin Tenants, we are writing in continual opposition to the
proposed project at 450 O'Farrell St.

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


 

Tenderloin Tenants and several of our coalition partners have expressed severe
issues with the proposed project at 450 O'Farrell Street.

 

This development proposes the revision of 302 group housing units targeting middle-
class family housing onsite.

 

Our issues are:

 

-Outreach has been minimal, and community stakeholders are not sure what is
actually being proposed after so many revises.

 

-The design of the project proposes overcrowding and minimum standards for family
housing. And the Tenderloin does not need more forms of SRO's built. The
Tenderloin does not need another 604 residential building to add to our density.

 

-The residential units are not proposing to include full kitchens and large refrigerators.
Not something Middle-income families will appreciate.

 

-Bicycle parking is in the basement for residents, and this is unacceptable for proper
accessibility. The church has bicycle parking on the ground floor why do the residents
have to drag their bikes to the basement daily?

 

-Removal of all previously approved parking spaces for residents is unwarranted.

 

-Tenderloin Tenants seek a continuance.

 

Tenderloin Tenants seek to protect and maximize the quality of life for current and
future residents.

 

 



Wilma Gurwork

Tenderloin Tenants

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO REOPEN AND EXPAND ADDITIONAL BUSINESSES AND

ACTIVITIES
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 10:14:52 AM
Attachments: 04.14.21 COVID-19 Update_Reopening.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 10:07 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO REOPEN AND EXPAND
ADDITIONAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, April 14, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO REOPEN AND

EXPAND ADDITIONAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES
Beginning Thursday, April 15, San Francisco will resume indoor live-audience events,

performances, meetings, and receptions with capacity limits and following other protocols,
and will expand existing guidelines for outdoor live-audience events, performances, and other

activities
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced that, starting tomorrow, San Francisco will reopen and
expand additional activities that are allowed by the State for counties assigned to the orange
tier. These activities include indoor live-audience events and performances and private events
such as conferences and receptions. In alignment with the State’s guidelines, San Francisco
will also expand the number of individuals allowed to participate in indoor and outdoor social
gatherings and will loosen some restrictions on other activities, including dining, outdoor bars,
retail, and recreation. 
 
Many of the activities that are resuming may reopen because of guidelines recently released by
the State. With some exceptions, San Francisco will align with the State’s guidelines to reopen
and expand newly permitted activities under the orange tier. New and expanded businesses
and activities may resume starting Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 8:00 a.m. as long as they
comply with required capacity limits and other safety protocols. 
 
“San Francisco is continuing to reopen and this latest round of activities and events that can

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:dempress@sfgov.org
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Wednesday, April 14, 2021 
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org  
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
SAN FRANCISCO TO REOPEN AND 


EXPAND ADDITIONAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES 
Beginning Thursday, April 15, San Francisco will resume indoor live-audience events, 


performances, meetings, and receptions with capacity limits and following other protocols, and 
will expand existing guidelines for outdoor live-audience events, performances, and other 


activities 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today 
announced that, starting tomorrow, San Francisco will reopen and expand additional activities 
that are allowed by the State for counties assigned to the orange tier. These activities include 
indoor live-audience events and performances and private events such as conferences and 
receptions. In alignment with the State’s guidelines, San Francisco will also expand the number 
of individuals allowed to participate in indoor and outdoor social gatherings and will loosen 
some restrictions on other activities, including dining, outdoor bars, retail, and recreation.  
  
Many of the activities that are resuming may reopen because of guidelines recently released by 
the State. With some exceptions, San Francisco will align with the State’s guidelines to reopen 
and expand newly permitted activities under the orange tier. New and expanded businesses and 
activities may resume starting Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 8:00 a.m. as long as they comply with 
required capacity limits and other safety protocols.  
  
“San Francisco is continuing to reopen and this latest round of activities and events that can start 
to resume is an exciting step for our city,” said Mayor Breed. “Throughout our response to 
COVID-19 and our reopening efforts, we’ve focused on moving forward in a way that protects 
public health, and we’re going to need everyone to keep doing their part to keep our community 
safe. Remember to keep wearing your mask, continue to keep your distance from others, and get 
tested if you feel sick. We are still in a pandemic, and we can’t let our guard down – but 
that doesn’t mean we can’t still find ways to adapt to our new normal, have fun, and enjoy all 
that San Francisco has to offer.”  
  
Although San Francisco remains assigned to the orange tier on the State’s Blueprint for a Safer 
Economy, its COVID-19 cases, hospitalizations, and other health equity metrics have remained 
stable over the past several weeks. With the recent guidance released by the State, San 
Francisco is taking the opportunity to reopen live events and performances and private 
events and to expand additional activities within the orange tier. Key criteria for the resumption 
and continuation of these expansions will be a stable or declining rate of new COVID-19 cases 
and hospitalizations. As public health officials continue to monitor San Francisco’s health 
indicators, the City may need to pause or rollback activities if data suggests that COVID-19 is 
significantly increasing within the community again.  



mailto:dempress@sfgov.org

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf
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Under the new Health Order, San Francisco will open indoor ticketed and seated events and 
performances up to 35% capacity with an approved Health and Safety Plan, as long as  all 
participants keep their masks on except when eating or drinking in designated concessions areas 
away from their seats, distancing requirements can be met, and participants show proof of 
vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test before they enter the venue. Venues 
may create vaccinated-only sections with relaxed distancing requirements, subject to 
specified criteria and an approved health and safety plan. For venues operating at 15% capacity 
or less, with no more than 200 people, and that do not have any vaccinated-only sections, an 
approved Health and Safety Plan and proof of vaccination or a negative test will not be required. 
 
Private events such as meetings, conventions, and receptions may also resume indoors up to 150 
participants with assigned seating and proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test. Such 
events may resume outdoors following the same guidelines for up to 300 people, or up to 100 
people without proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test. 
 
Outdoor ticketed venues for live-audience events and performances may expand capacity up to 
50% under existing guidelines. Like indoor venues, outdoor venues may create vaccinated-only 
sections with relaxed distancing restrictions, subject to specified criteria and an approved health 
and safety plan. An approved health and safety plan is also required for outdoor ticketed events 
greater than 1,000 audience members, and a health and safety plan must be submitted to the 
Health Officer (but does not require pre-approval) before the event for outdoor ticketed events of 
between 500 and 1,000 audience members. Proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test is 
required by all participants if the outdoor event includes 4,000 or more audience members, 
or 100 or more audience members and food and beverages are served. In all cases, patrons must 
wear facial coverings for the duration of the event, except for times when they are eating or 
drinking. 
 
San Francisco will also expand capacity for indoor and outdoor social gatherings based on the 
State’s new guidance, as well as a number of activities impacted by those 
changes, including drive-ins, tour operators, childcare, sports and recreation, and institutes of 
higher education. Under the amendments to the Health Order, groups of up to 50 may now gather 
together outdoors with face coverings and distancing, reduced to 25 if food or drink is being 
consumed. Indoor gatherings may resume at the lesser of 25% capacity or 25 individuals without 
food or beverages. In addition to the activities above, a number of changes to the Health Order 
will allow additional expansions for outdoor dining, outdoor bars, film, and indoor family 
entertainment as well as the easing of some safety protocols for other sectors 
including retail, hotels, and indoor dining. Community centers serving seniors and adult day care 
will also be able to reopen to 25% capacity beginning tomorrow, April 15. 
 
“I want to thank the people of this great City for doing their part to help prevent the spread of 
COVID-19,” said Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax. “Please keep up the good work. We are 
watching with growing concern at the variant-fueled surges taking place in other parts of the 
country and in Europe. The last thing we all want is to rollback our reopening. If we continue to 
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double down on the masking, physical distancing, and limiting of social gatherings with people 
outside one’s household, we can keep this disease in check. Remember, masks on, stay strong.” 
 
San Francisco has maintained a stable average between 30 and 40 new COVID-19 cases a day 
since early March 2021, and is currently averaging 35 new cases per day. Likewise, COVID-19 
hospitalizations are also down significantly since February 2021. Although they remain low, 
those trends have flattened and prevented San Francisco from meeting the State’s criteria to 
move into the yellow tier this week. With the growing prevalence of variants in the Bay Area and 
the surge in cases in Michigan and the northeast, public health officials are closely monitoring 
any changes to cases that may indicate increasing contagion.  
 
Countering these concerns to some degree are San Francisco’s ongoing vaccination efforts. At 
this time, nearly 60% of San Francisco’s population has received the first dose of vaccine, as 
have over 84% of the City’s residents over 65. Effective yesterday, April 13, anyone over the age 
of 16 is eligible for a COVID-19 vaccine in San Francisco. Although consistent supply of 
COVID-19 vaccine remains a challenge preventing the City from distributing vaccines to its full 
capacity, it continues to make significant progress toward vaccinating people who live and work 
in San Francisco.  
 
“Resuming indoor meetings, receptions, and events are key to San Francisco’s economic 
foundation,” said Anne Taupier, Acting Director of Office of Economic and Workforce 
Development. “These activities drive the meetings, celebrations, conferences, and conventions 
that generate hundreds of millions of dollars for our economy and are essential business activities 
for our hotels, restaurants, and other large and small venues. This is a major step for the 
industries and workers who have suffered most significantly over the past year. With our health 
indicators as low and as stable as they are OEWD applauds the City’s decision to expand the 
activities within the orange tier to maximize economic activity with appropriate safety 
protocols.”  
  
The San Francisco Department of Public Health will issue final health and safety guidelines to 
reopen activities allowed under the orange tier of the State’s updated Blueprint for a 
Safer Economy, with some additional local restrictions, effective at 8:00 a.m. Thursday, April 
15, 2021. The City will post the revised Health Order with detailed requirements to 
its webpage by the end of the day today April 14, 2021. A list of the activities that will be 
reopened or expanded under the new Health Order can be found below.  
  
Although San Francisco’s vaccination rate is above the state average, it is not yet sufficient to 
prevent a fourth surge without continued adherence to public health guidelines. Health officials 
continue to emphasize the need for masking and social distancing by all, including those who 
have been vaccinated, when outside their homes in order to limit the impact of variants. 
Likewise, businesses are encouraged to have outdoor options wherever possible. People at risk 
for severe illness with COVID-19,  such as unvaccinated older adults and unvaccinated 
individuals with health risks, and members of their households, should defer participating at this 
time in activities with other people outside their household where taking protective measures of 



https://www.sfdph.org/dph/alerts/coronavirus-health-directives.asp

https://www.sfdph.org/dph/alerts/coronavirus-healthorders.asp
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wearing face masks and social distancing may be difficult, especially indoors or in crowded 
spaces.    
  
As public health officials continue to monitor San Francisco’s health indicators, the City may 
choose to pause higher-risk activities or implement a lagged approach to reopening subsequent 
tiers in order to ensure sufficient analysis about how health indicators have responded to the 
reopening of activities, manage risk, and protect public health.   
   
Activities to Resume Thursday, April 15, 2021  
  
The following activities may be reopened:  


• Indoor Ticketed and Seated Performances, Spectator Sports and other Live Events 
• Indoor ticketed and seated events such as live sports, theater arts and musical 


performances, and graduation ceremonies may open up to 35% capacity for in-
state audience members with an approved Health and Safety Plan, so long as the 
State’s social distancing guidelines can be maintained. Suites and boxes are 
limited to 25% capacity and 3 households. All participants must keep their masks 
on except when eating or drinking in designated concession areas with at least 6 
feet distance between households.  All California residents over the age of 12 
must show either proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test, and any out-
of-state visitors must show proof of vaccination.   


• Vaccinated-only section. A venue may lift the distancing requirement and operate 
certain sections at 100% capacity, including suites, if the operator meets the 
State’s minimum requirements and (1) confirms that all patrons 16 and up are 
fully vaccinated before they enter the venue, (2) requires a negative COVID-19 
test for any patrons who are between the ages 2-15 and accompanying a parent or 
guardian who is fully vaccinated, (3) requires all patrons in the vaccination-only 
section to wear face coverings at all times unless otherwise exempted under the 
face covering order, and (4) receives advance approval of a Health and Safety 
Plan from the Health Officer. All patrons in the vaccinated-only section count 
towards the venue’s permissible occupancy. 


• An approved health and safety plan is not required for events with no more than 
200 people in the audience or up to 15% capacity, whichever is fewer, and that 
does not have a vaccination-only section, but those events need to comply with all 
the other safety rules.  


• Proof of a negative COVID-19 test or vaccination is not required for events 
with  no more than 200 people in the audience or up to 15% capacity, whichever 
is fewer, if no food or beverages are served nor is it required for events with fewer 
than 50 people in the audience that include food or beverage service.  


  
• Indoor Meetings and Private Events  


• Meetings, conferences, receptions, and other private events may resume indoors 
with up to 150 participants in reserved or assigned seating that meets physical 
distancing requirements. All participants must show proof of vaccination or a 
negative COVID-19 test.   
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• Food and beverage allowed under indoor dining guidelines.  
• Outdoor Meetings and Private Events  


• If the event is conducted outdoors, up to 100 participants are allowed without 
proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test, and up to 300 participants with 
proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test.   


• Food and beverage allowed under outdoor dining guidelines  
• Community Centers serving Seniors and Adult Day Care Facilities  


• Senior community centers and adult day care facilities may reopen to 
25% capacity up to 25 people. Food and beverage services or activities remain 
closed at this time.    


  
The following activities may expand their operating capacity under current guidelines:  


• Outdoor Ticketed and Seated Performances, Spectator Sports and other Live Events 
• Outdoor ticketed and seated events with live audiences may expand up to 50% 


capacity with an approved Health and Safety Plan, so long as the State’s social 
distancing guidelines can be maintained, all participants keep their masks on 
except when eating or drinking in their assigned seats. California residents over 
the age of 12 must show either proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 
test, and any out-of-state visitors must show proof that they are fully vaccinated.   


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
face covering order or eating or drinking in their seat, and (4) receives advance 
approval of a Health and Safety Plan from the Health Officer. All patrons in the 
vaccinated-only section count towards the venue’s permissible occupancy.   


• Events with fewer than 4,000 audience members that do not include food or 
beverages do not require proof of vaccination or a negative test. 


• Events between 500 and 1,000 audience members that do not include food and 
beverages require a health and safety plan to be submitted to DPH but does not 
require approval.  


• Events with fewer than 100 audience members and without a vaccination-only 
section do not require an approved Health and Safety Plan nor proof of 
vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test.  


• Outdoor arts, music, and theater performances and festivals  
• Organized outdoor arts and performance events may take place without 


reservations and seating requirements for up to 50 audience members with 
a health and safety plan submitted at least 5 days before the event. Festivals may 
be attended by either in-state residents, or out-of-state visitors who show proof of 
full vaccination.  Social distancing between audience members must be 
maintained.   
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• Seated concessions are expanded to groups of 8 individuals following outdoor 
dining or bar health guidelines.   


• Outdoor Dining  
• Outdoor dining will expand to up to 8 people per table without any limitation on 


number of households. Group reservations will expand to up to 25 people and 
allow mingling between tables with specific safety protocols.   


• Bars, Wineries, Breweries, and Distilleries  
• Outdoor bars may expand to up to 8 people per table without limitations to 


number of households and group reservations may be made following outdoor 
dining rules.   


• Indoor bars, wineries, breweries and distilleries that do not serve bona fide 
meals remain closed.   


• Indoor Family Entertainment  
• Capacity may increase for family recreation facilities allowed within the orange 


tier of up to 50% if all participants provide proof of vaccination or a negative 
COVID-19 test.  


• Drive-in Events  
• More than one household per vehicle at 25% vehicle capacity up to 25 people, if 


no food and beverages are consumed.   
• Tour Boats and Buses  


• Capacity may expand with no limit on the number of passengers.  
• Indoor areas may open following required safety protocols.  


• Film and Media Production including Live Streaming and Broadcasting  
• Indoor and outdoor film production may proceed with up to 50 people in a single 


location with required testing and other safety protocols in place or if covered 
under the “COVID-19 Return to Work Agreement.”   


• All other productions must have an approved Health and Safety plan.  
• Childcare and Youth Out of School Time Programs  


• Outdoors capacity may expand to up to 50 participants, excluding personnel and 
youth may participate in more than 2 programs at a time  


• Indoors capacity may expand to up to 25 participants, excluding personnel  
• Adult Education, Vocational Education, and Institutes of Higher Education  


• Outdoor classes may expand to 50 participants  
• In-person tours may apply following K-12 safety rules 
• Institutions are strongly encouraged to require unvaccinated students to 


quarantine for 10 days upon returning to campus or arriving from out-of-State for 
nonessential travel, and they must accommodate any unvaccinated students who 
wish to quarantine for 10 days after such travel.  


• Indoor Sports and Recreation  
• Informal indoor recreation can include up to 12 people with no limit on the 


number of households.  
• Indoor recreation taking place in an organized and supervised context may expand 


to stable groups of 25 participants on each team and spectators are allowed 
consistent with rules set by the State.   
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• Competitions may resume with teams from the State of California. No out of state 
travel or matches with out of state teams.   


• Youth and adults are encouraged but not required to participate in no more than 2 
teams or programs a time, except that indoor high-contact sports must be limited 
to one activity at a time.  


• Indoor swimming pools may allow up to two swimmers per lane maintaining 
25% capacity and face coverings outside the pool.  


• Outdoor Sports and Recreation  
• Informal outdoor recreation can include up to 25 people with no limit on the 


number of households.   
• Outdoor recreation taking place in an organized and supervised context may 


expand to include stable groups of 50 participants per team and spectators are 
allowed consistent with outdoor gatherings and rules set by the State.   


• Competitions may resume with teams from throughout the State of California - no 
out of state travel or matches with out of state teams.  


• Youth and adults are encouraged but not required to participate in no more than 2 
teams or programs a time except that if they participate in an indoor high-contact 
sport they may only participate in that one program at a time.  


• Outdoor pools may expand to full capacity and up to 4 swimmers per lane with 
distancing and face covering requirements outside of the pool.  


• Outdoor playgrounds may expand to full capacity with distancing requirements.  
• Indoor Gatherings  


• While still strongly discouraged, small indoor social gatherings are expanded to 
up to the lesser of 25% capacity or 25 people with face coverings on at all 
times and distancing and ventilation measures encouraged. Special rules and 
allowances apply to small indoor gatherings involving fully vaccinated 
individuals.   


• Indoor Religious Activities  
• Indoor religious activities remain capped at up to 50% capacity.  Capacity 


guidelines apply to houses of worship as well as homes and other indoor 
settings, following safety protocols for indoor religious services.  Alternatively, 
individuals can gather indoors informally for religious exercise under the small 
gathering rules.  


• Outdoor Gatherings  
• Small outdoor social gatherings are expanded to allow up to 50 people when face 


coverings are worn at all times – 25 if attendees are eating or drinking.   
  
The following activities may loosen safety protocols as described below  


• Indoor Dining  
• Indoor dining will expand to include table top cooking and the 11pm end to 


service requirement is lifted. Tables are still limited to 6 people from up to 3 
households.    


• Retail  
• Retail and Grocery stores are no longer strongly urged to offer special hours for 


unvaccinated older adults or otherwise vulnerable patrons.   







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
 


 


• Bulk bins no longer require special signage.  
• Hotels  


• Cleaning personnel are no longer required to wear a non-vented N-95, though 
they must be provided at no cost if requested. They must continue to wear a well-
fitted mask.  


• Spa services may be provided in room following guidelines for indoor personal 
services. If requested, the spa services provider must provide a non-vented N-95 
mask at no cost to its personnel.  


• Gyms and Fitness  
• Stationary aerobic equipment (like spin bikes and treadmills) can be placed 6 feet 


apart and aerobic fitness classes that use stationary equipment can resume with 6 
foot spacing between participants, with a DPH-approved ventilation measure.  


• Zoos, Aquariums and Museums  
• Group reservations and guided tours may resume.  


  
The State has provided guidance on using proof of vaccination and negative COVID-19 test for 
additional capacities. Businesses should consult the “Addendum to Blueprint Activity & 
Business Tiers Chart – Tested and Fully Vaccinated Individuals and Sections.” Pursuant to 
that guidance:  


• People are considered fully vaccinated for COVID-19 at ≥2 weeks after they have 
received the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna), or ≥2 weeks 
after they have received a single-dose vaccine (Johnson and Johnson [J&J]/Janssen). 


• Proof of a negative COVID-19 test means a PCR test taken not more than 72 hours 
before the event or an antigen test taken not more than 24 hours before the event.  


  
San Francisco’s reopening updates will be available online tomorrow, April 
15 at SF.gov/reopening. 
 


### 



https://sf.gov/reopening





start to resume is an exciting step for our city,” said Mayor Breed. “Throughout our response
to COVID-19 and our reopening efforts, we’ve focused on moving forward in a way that
protects public health, and we’re going to need everyone to keep doing their part to keep our
community safe. Remember to keep wearing your mask, continue to keep your distance from
others, and get tested if you feel sick. We are still in a pandemic, and we can’t let our guard
down – but that doesn’t mean we can’t still find ways to adapt to our new normal, have fun,
and enjoy all that San Francisco has to offer.” 
 
Although San Francisco remains assigned to the orange tier on the State’s Blueprint for a
Safer Economy, its COVID-19 cases, hospitalizations, and other health equity metrics have
remained stable over the past several weeks. With the recent guidance released by the State,
San Francisco is taking the opportunity to reopen live events and performances and private
events and to expand additional activities within the orange tier. Key criteria for the
resumption and continuation of these expansions will be a stable or declining rate of new
COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations. As public health officials continue to monitor San
Francisco’s health indicators, the City may need to pause or rollback activities if data suggests
that COVID-19 is significantly increasing within the community again. 
 
Under the new Health Order, San Francisco will open indoor ticketed and seated events and
performances up to 35% capacity with an approved Health and Safety Plan, as long as  all
participants keep their masks on except when eating or drinking
in designated concessions areas away from their seats, distancing requirements can be
met, and participants show proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test before they enter
the venue. Venues may create vaccinated-only sections with relaxed distancing requirements,
subject to specified criteria and an approved health and safety plan. For venues operating at
15% capacity or less, with no more than 200 people, and that do not have any vaccinated-only
sections, an approved Health and Safety Plan and proof of vaccination or a negative test will
not be required.  
 
Private events such as meetings, conventions, and receptions may also resume indoors up to
150 participants with assigned seating and proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test.
Such events may resume outdoors following the same guidelines for up to 300 people, or up to
100 people without proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test.  
 
Outdoor ticketed venues for live-audience events and performances may expand capacity up to
50% under existing guidelines. Like indoor venues, outdoor venues may create vaccinated-
only sections with relaxed distancing restrictions, subject to specified criteria and an approved
health and safety plan. An approved health and safety plan is also required for outdoor ticketed
events greater than 1,000 audience members, and a health and safety plan must be submitted
to the Health Officer (but does not require pre-approval) before the event for outdoor ticketed
events of between 500 and 1,000 audience members. Proof of vaccination or a negative
COVID-19 test is required by all participants if the outdoor event includes 4,000 or more
audience members, or 100 or more audience members and food and beverages are served. In
all cases, patrons must wear facial coverings for the duration of the event, except for times
when they are eating or drinking.  
 
San Francisco will also expand capacity for indoor and outdoor social gatherings based on the
State’s new guidance, as well as a number of activities impacted by those
changes, including drive-ins, tour operators, childcare, sports and recreation, and institutes of
higher education. Under the amendments to the Health Order, groups of up to 50 may now

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/COVID-19/Dimmer-Framework-September_2020.pdf


gather together outdoors with face coverings and distancing, reduced to 25 if food or drink is
being consumed. Indoor gatherings may resume at the lesser of 25% capacity or 25 individuals
without food or beverages. In addition to the activities above, a number of changes to the
Health Order will allow additional
expansions for outdoor dining, outdoor bars, film, and indoor family entertainment as well
as the easing of some safety protocols for other sectors including retail, hotels, and indoor
dining. Community centers serving seniors and adult day care will also be able to reopen to
25% capacity beginning tomorrow, April 15. 
 
“I want to thank the people of this great City for doing their part to help prevent the spread of
COVID-19,” said Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax. “Please keep up the good work. We are
watching with growing concern at the variant-fueled surges taking place in other parts of the
country and in Europe. The last thing we all want is to rollback our reopening. If we continue
to double down on the masking, physical distancing, and limiting of social gatherings with
people outside one’s household, we can keep this disease in check. Remember, masks on, stay
strong.”  
 
San Francisco has maintained a stable average between 30 and 40 new COVID-19 cases a day
since early March 2021, and is currently averaging 35 new cases per day. Likewise, COVID-
19 hospitalizations are also down significantly since February 2021. Although they remain
low, those trends have flattened and prevented San Francisco from meeting the State’s criteria
to move into the yellow tier this week. With the growing prevalence of variants in the Bay
Area and the surge in cases in Michigan and the northeast, public health officials are closely
monitoring any changes to cases that may indicate increasing contagion. 
 
Countering these concerns to some degree are San Francisco’s ongoing vaccination efforts. At
this time, nearly 60% of San Francisco’s population has received the first dose of vaccine, as
have over 84% of the City’s residents over 65. Effective yesterday, April 13, anyone over the
age of 16 is eligible for a COVID-19 vaccine in San Francisco. Although consistent supply of
COVID-19 vaccine remains a challenge preventing the City from distributing vaccines to its
full capacity, it continues to make significant progress toward vaccinating people who live and
work in San Francisco. 
 
“Resuming indoor meetings, receptions, and events are key to San Francisco’s economic
foundation,” said Anne Taupier, Acting Director of Office of Economic and Workforce
Development. “These activities drive the meetings, celebrations, conferences, and conventions
that generate hundreds of millions of dollars for our economy and are essential business
activities for our hotels, restaurants, and other large and small venues. This is a major step for
the industries and workers who have suffered most significantly over the past year. With our
health indicators as low and as stable as they are OEWD applauds the City’s decision to
expand the activities within the orange tier to maximize economic activity with appropriate
safety protocols.” 
 
The San Francisco Department of Public Health will issue final health and safety guidelines to
reopen activities allowed under the orange tier of the State’s updated Blueprint for a
Safer Economy, with some additional local restrictions, effective at 8:00 a.m. Thursday, April
15, 2021. The City will post the revised Health Order with detailed requirements to
its webpage by the end of the day today April 14, 2021. A list of the activities that will be
reopened or expanded under the new Health Order can be found below. 
 

https://www.sfdph.org/dph/alerts/coronavirus-health-directives.asp
https://www.sfdph.org/dph/alerts/coronavirus-healthorders.asp


Although San Francisco’s vaccination rate is above the state average, it is not yet sufficient to
prevent a fourth surge without continued adherence to public health guidelines. Health
officials continue to emphasize the need for masking and social distancing by all, including
those who have been vaccinated, when outside their homes in order to limit the impact of
variants. Likewise, businesses are encouraged to have outdoor options wherever
possible. People at risk for severe illness with COVID-19,  such as unvaccinated older adults
and unvaccinated individuals with health risks, and members of their households, should defer
participating at this time in activities with other people outside their household where taking
protective measures of wearing face masks and social distancing may be difficult, especially
indoors or in crowded spaces.   
 
As public health officials continue to monitor San Francisco’s health indicators, the City may
choose to pause higher-risk activities or implement a lagged approach to reopening subsequent
tiers in order to ensure sufficient analysis about how health indicators have responded to the
reopening of activities, manage risk, and protect public health.  
  
Activities to Resume Thursday, April 15, 2021 
 
The following activities may be reopened: 

·         Indoor Ticketed and Seated Performances, Spectator Sports and other Live Events
Indoor ticketed and seated events such as live sports, theater arts and musical
performances, and graduation ceremonies may open up to 35% capacity for in-
state audience members with an approved Health and Safety Plan, so long as the
State’s social distancing guidelines can be maintained. Suites and boxes are
limited to 25% capacity and 3 households. All participants must keep their masks
on except when eating or drinking in designated concession areas with at least 6
feet distance between households.  All California residents over the age of 12
must show either proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test, and any out-
of-state visitors must show proof of vaccination.  
Vaccinated-only section. A venue may lift the distancing requirement and operate
certain sections at 100% capacity, including suites, if the operator meets the
State’s minimum requirements and (1) confirms that all patrons 16 and up are
fully vaccinated before they enter the venue, (2) requires a negative COVID-19
test for any patrons who are between the ages 2-15 and accompanying a parent or
guardian who is fully vaccinated, (3) requires all patrons in the vaccination-only
section to wear face coverings at all times unless otherwise exempted under the
face covering order, and (4) receives advance approval of a Health and Safety
Plan from the Health Officer. All patrons in the vaccinated-only section count
towards the venue’s permissible occupancy.
An approved health and safety plan is not required for events with no more than
200 people in the audience or up to 15% capacity, whichever is fewer, and that
does not have a vaccination-only section, but those events need to comply with all
the other safety rules. 
Proof of a negative COVID-19 test or vaccination is not required for events
with  no more than 200 people in the audience or up to 15% capacity, whichever
is fewer, if no food or beverages are served nor is it required for events with fewer
than 50 people in the audience that include food or beverage service. 

 
·         Indoor Meetings and Private Events 

Meetings, conferences, receptions, and other private events may resume indoors



with up to 150 participants in reserved or assigned seating that meets physical
distancing requirements. All participants must show proof of vaccination or a
negative COVID-19 test.  
Food and beverage allowed under indoor dining guidelines. 

·         Outdoor Meetings and Private Events 
If the event is conducted outdoors, up to 100 participants are allowed without
proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test, and up to 300 participants with
proof of vaccination or negative COVID-19 test.  
Food and beverage allowed under outdoor dining guidelines 

·         Community Centers serving Seniors and Adult Day Care Facilities 
Senior community centers and adult day care facilities may reopen to
25% capacity up to 25 people. Food and beverage services or activities remain
closed at this time.   

 
The following activities may expand their operating capacity under current guidelines: 

·         Outdoor Ticketed and Seated Performances, Spectator Sports and other Live Events
Outdoor ticketed and seated events with live audiences may expand up to 50%
capacity with an approved Health and Safety Plan, so long as the State’s social
distancing guidelines can be maintained, all participants keep their masks on
except when eating or drinking in their assigned seats. California residents over
the age of 12 must show either proof of vaccination or a negative COVID-19
test, and any out-of-state visitors must show proof that they are fully vaccinated.  
Vaccinated-only section. A venue may lift the distancing requirement and operate
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
face covering order or eating or drinking in their seat, and (4) receives advance
approval of a Health and Safety Plan from the Health Officer. All patrons in the
vaccinated-only section count towards the venue’s permissible occupancy.  
Events with fewer than 4,000 audience members that do not include food or
beverages do not require proof of vaccination or a negative test.
Events between 500 and 1,000 audience members that do not include food and
beverages require a health and safety plan to be submitted to DPH but does not
require approval. 
Events with fewer than 100 audience members and without a vaccination-only
section do not require an approved Health and Safety Plan nor proof of
vaccination or a negative COVID-19 test. 

·         Outdoor arts, music, and theater performances and festivals 
Organized outdoor arts and performance events may take place without
reservations and seating requirements for up to 50 audience members with
a health and safety plan submitted at least 5 days before the event. Festivals may
be attended by either in-state residents, or out-of-state visitors who show proof of
full vaccination.  Social distancing between audience members must be
maintained.  
Seated concessions are expanded to groups of 8 individuals following outdoor
dining or bar health guidelines.  

·         Outdoor Dining 



Outdoor dining will expand to up to 8 people per table without any limitation on
number of households. Group reservations will expand to up to 25 people and
allow mingling between tables with specific safety protocols.  

·         Bars, Wineries, Breweries, and Distilleries 
Outdoor bars may expand to up to 8 people per table without limitations to
number of households and group reservations may be made following outdoor
dining rules.  
Indoor bars, wineries, breweries and distilleries that do not serve bona fide
meals remain closed.  

·         Indoor Family Entertainment 
Capacity may increase for family recreation facilities allowed within the orange
tier of up to 50% if all participants provide proof of vaccination or a negative
COVID-19 test. 

·         Drive-in Events 
More than one household per vehicle at 25% vehicle capacity up to 25 people, if
no food and beverages are consumed.  

·         Tour Boats and Buses 
Capacity may expand with no limit on the number of passengers. 
Indoor areas may open following required safety protocols. 

·         Film and Media Production including Live Streaming and Broadcasting 
Indoor and outdoor film production may proceed with up to 50 people in a single
location with required testing and other safety protocols in place or if covered
under the “COVID-19 Return to Work Agreement.”  
All other productions must have an approved Health and Safety plan. 

·         Childcare and Youth Out of School Time Programs 
Outdoors capacity may expand to up to 50 participants, excluding personnel and
youth may participate in more than 2 programs at a time 
Indoors capacity may expand to up to 25 participants, excluding personnel 

·         Adult Education, Vocational Education, and Institutes of Higher Education 
Outdoor classes may expand to 50 participants 
In-person tours may apply following K-12 safety rules
Institutions are strongly encouraged to require unvaccinated students to
quarantine for 10 days upon returning to campus or arriving from out-of-State for
nonessential travel, and they must accommodate any unvaccinated students who
wish to quarantine for 10 days after such travel. 

·         Indoor Sports and Recreation 
Informal indoor recreation can include up to 12 people with no limit on the
number of households. 
Indoor recreation taking place in an organized and supervised context may expand
to stable groups of 25 participants on each team and spectators are allowed
consistent with rules set by the State.  
Competitions may resume with teams from the State of California. No out of state
travel or matches with out of state teams.  
Youth and adults are encouraged but not required to participate in no more than 2
teams or programs a time, except that indoor high-contact sports must be limited
to one activity at a time. 
Indoor swimming pools may allow up to two swimmers per lane maintaining
25% capacity and face coverings outside the pool. 

·         Outdoor Sports and Recreation 
Informal outdoor recreation can include up to 25 people with no limit on the



number of households.  
Outdoor recreation taking place in an organized and supervised context may
expand to include stable groups of 50 participants per team and spectators are
allowed consistent with outdoor gatherings and rules set by the State.  
Competitions may resume with teams from throughout the State of California - no
out of state travel or matches with out of state teams. 
Youth and adults are encouraged but not required to participate in no more than 2
teams or programs a time except that if they participate in an indoor high-contact
sport they may only participate in that one program at a time. 
Outdoor pools may expand to full capacity and up to 4 swimmers per lane with
distancing and face covering requirements outside of the pool. 
Outdoor playgrounds may expand to full capacity with distancing requirements. 

·         Indoor Gatherings 
While still strongly discouraged, small indoor social gatherings are expanded to
up to the lesser of 25% capacity or 25 people with face coverings on at all
times and distancing and ventilation measures encouraged. Special rules and
allowances apply to small indoor gatherings involving fully vaccinated
individuals.  

·         Indoor Religious Activities 
Indoor religious activities remain capped at up to 50% capacity.  Capacity
guidelines apply to houses of worship as well as homes and other indoor
settings, following safety protocols for indoor religious services.  Alternatively,
individuals can gather indoors informally for religious exercise under the small
gathering rules. 

·         Outdoor Gatherings 
Small outdoor social gatherings are expanded to allow up to 50 people when face
coverings are worn at all times – 25 if attendees are eating or drinking.  

 
The following activities may loosen safety protocols as described below 

·         Indoor Dining 
Indoor dining will expand to include table top cooking and the 11pm end to
service requirement is lifted. Tables are still limited to 6 people from up to 3
households.   

·         Retail 
Retail and Grocery stores are no longer strongly urged to offer special hours for
unvaccinated older adults or otherwise vulnerable patrons.  
Bulk bins no longer require special signage. 

·         Hotels 
Cleaning personnel are no longer required to wear a non-vented N-95, though
they must be provided at no cost if requested. They must continue to wear a well-
fitted mask. 
Spa services may be provided in room following guidelines for indoor personal
services. If requested, the spa services provider must provide a non-vented N-95
mask at no cost to its personnel. 

·         Gyms and Fitness 
Stationary aerobic equipment (like spin bikes and treadmills) can be placed 6 feet
apart and aerobic fitness classes that use stationary equipment can resume with 6
foot spacing between participants, with a DPH-approved ventilation measure. 

·         Zoos, Aquariums and Museums 
Group reservations and guided tours may resume. 



 
The State has provided guidance on using proof of vaccination and negative COVID-19 test
for additional capacities. Businesses should consult the “Addendum to Blueprint Activity &
Business Tiers Chart – Tested and Fully Vaccinated Individuals and Sections.” Pursuant to
that guidance: 

People are considered fully vaccinated for COVID-19 at ≥2 weeks after they have
received the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna), or ≥2 weeks
after they have received a single-dose vaccine (Johnson and Johnson [J&J]/Janssen).
Proof of a negative COVID-19 test means a PCR test taken not more than 72 hours
before the event or an antigen test taken not more than 24 hours before the event. 

 
San Francisco’s reopening updates will be available online tomorrow, April
15 at SF.gov/reopening.
 

###

https://sf.gov/reopening


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Christensen, Michael (CPC); Sider, Dan (CPC); Watty, Elizabeth (CPC); Sucre, Richard (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine

(CPC)
Subject: FW: Cannabis Permitting Update
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 10:14:24 AM
Attachments: Memo to CPC-Cannabis Permitting - 2021.04.14.pdf

Yes, and they are bcc’d here.
 
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
 
 

From: "Christensen, Michael (CPC)" <michael.christensen@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 10:12 AM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Dan Sider <dan.sider@sfgov.org>, Richard Sucre <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>, "Hillis, Rich
(CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>, CTYPLN - Communications <CPC.Communications@sfgov.org>,
Elizabeth Watty <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>
Subject: Cannabis Permitting Update
 
Hello all,
 
At the April 1 CPC hearing, Commissioner’s Tanner, Imperial, and Fung requested
information on our cannabis permitting activity, geographic distribution, and remaining
pipeline.
 
I prepared the attached memo in response. Can we have this included in the Commissioner
Correspondence folder?
 
Michael Christensen, Senior Planner
Southeast Quadrant Team / Current Planning
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7567 | www.sfplanning.org
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
mailto:Michael.Christensen@sfgov.org
mailto:dan.sider@sfgov.org
mailto:elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org
mailto:richard.sucre@sfgov.org
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


 


 


FROM: Michael Christensen, Senior Planner & Office of Cannabis Liaison  


 


DATE: April 15, 2021 


 


RE:  Implementation of Adult-Use Cannabis 


 


 


Introduction 


In January 2018, the City and County of San Francisco adopted standards and new land uses related to the 


legalization of adult use cannabis. The Office of Cannabis was created to manage the licensing of cannabis 


businesses in the City. The Planning Department established a staff liaison to interface with the Office of 


Cannabis and provide technical assistance to equity applicants. This memo provides information on the 


Planning Department’s permitting activities related to cannabis businesses and our remaining pipeline for 


review. 


  


Pre-Adult Use Legalization 


Prior to the adoption of standards for adult use Cannabis and the creation of the Cannabis Retail land use, the 


City permitted the sale of cannabis only to medical consumers through Medical Cannabis Dispensaries. A total of 


thirty-five (35) such dispensaries were operating as of January 2018 when the adult-use regulations were adopted. 


At least three (3) dispensaries have closed permanently, and the remaining thirty-two (32) continue to operate as 


Medical Cannabis Dispensaries with temporary authorization to conduct adult use sales. Formal conversion to 


Cannabis Retail under Planning Code Section 190 is part of the Office of Cannabis’s fourth tier of processing (along 


with pre-existing non-storefront industries) which is expected to commence this year (2021). 


 


The Medical Cannabis Dispensary industry is present throughout San Francisco but is particularly concentrated 


along the BART system corridor through the Mission and South of Market neighborhoods. The distribution of our 


Medical Cannabis Dispensary industry is shown on the attached map in red. 
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Post-Adult Use Legalization  


With the adoption of Article 16 of the Police Code, the City’s process for permitting cannabis establishments was 


modified. Licensing was moved from the jurisdiction of the Department of Public Health to the newly created 


Office of Cannabis. For a location to request land use authorization from the Planning Department, the site must 


first be ‘referred’ to the Planning Department by the Office of Cannabis after the applicant is deemed eligible for a 


license. 


 


In total, the Planning Department has received one-hundred and twenty-five (125) referred locations from the 


Office of Cannabis. Of those:  


• Nine (9) locations have been withdrawn,  


• Fifty-five (55) locations have received the Planning Department or Commission’s approval,  


• Thirteen (13) locations are currently under review; and,  


• Forty-eight (48) locations are pending application to the Planning Department. 


 


Of the fifty-five (55) locations that have received Planning Department or Commission approval, fourteen (14) were 


for non-storefront uses and forty-one (41) were for Cannabis Retail (storefront) uses. Of the (41) Cannabis Retail 


uses: 


• Thirty (30) required a Conditional Use Authorization and were approved by the Planning Commission 


• Four (4) were approved by the Planning Commission through Discretionary Review hearings 


• Seven (7) were approved administratively by the Planning Department because they were in zoning 


districts which principally permit Cannabis Retail uses and no requests for Discretionary Review were 


received during the notice periods 


• No locations have been denied by the Planning Commission; however, multiple locations were withdrawn 


after Department staff indicated a lack of support for the applications based on surrounding context. 


The geographic distribution of these fifty-four Cannabis Retail locations is shown on the attached map as yellow 


squares. The storefronts have been generally more evenly distributed in the City than Medical Cannabis 


Dispensaries, but geographic inequity is still present. Key findings include: 


 


• The modified standards for Cannabis Retail have allowed Cannabis Retail storefronts to open in 


neighborhoods which have historically had zero outlets, including the Castro, Upper Haight, Noe Valley, 


Inner Richmond, North Beach, and Bayview Districts.  


• Supervisorial District 3 has accommodated nine (9) of the new storefronts, or 17% of the total. 


• The west side of the City continues to lack Cannabis Retailers, meaning residents continue to need to 


travel to other neighborhoods to purchase cannabis products or use delivery services. Supervisorial 


District 4 has permitted zero (0) new Cannabis Retailers since the modification of standards. 
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Remaining Pipeline 


The Planning Department’s pipeline of locations for review flows through the Office of Cannabis and is dependent 


on the Office of Cannabis’s prioritization of applications. Applicants are placed in tiers for review based on the 


equity status of the applicant under Article 16 of the Police Code. Applicants are prioritized into the following tiers: 


 


• First Priority: applications from Equity Applicants; 


• Second Priority: applications from Equity Incubators; 


• Third Priority: previously-existing nonconforming operators (PENCOs), which are businesses that were 


already operating prior to legalization, but were not in zoning-compliant locations; also, previously 


operating businesses that were shut down due to federal enforcement or the threat of federal 


enforcement. 


• Fourth Priority: existing industry; pre-existing Medical Cannabis Dispensaries and non-storefront uses 


seeking legalization 


• Fifth Priority: applications that demonstrate a commitment on the part of the Applicant to provide 


benefits to the community in which the Cannabis Business is located, including but not limited to 


workforce opportunities and community benefits contributions; and 


• Sixth Priority: all other applications. 


The Office of Cannabis is currently finishing processing of Tier Three and will commence processing of Tier Four 


applicants soon. Tier Four represents our pre-existing industry, including the conversion of Medical Cannabis 


Dispensaries to Cannabis Retail and pre-existing non-storefront uses needing to legalize. This means that the 


Office of Cannabis has largely completed review of proposed new locations in the City, and the forty-eight (48) 


locations pending application to the Planning Department plus the fifteen (15) currently under review represent 


our remaining pipeline of new locations. Additional sites may be added if submitted to the Office of Cannabis for 


review, but the intake of new sites has slowed considerably, and the Department does not anticipate any 


significant increase in this pipeline. 


 


Of the fourteen (14) locations currently under review, all are for Cannabis Retail storefront locations. Three (3) 


are eligible for administrative approval if no DR is received during the notice periods, and eleven (11) require 


Conditional Use Authorization. 


 


Of the forty-eight (48) pending application to the Planning Department, fifteen (15) are for non-storefront uses 


and thirty-three (33) are for Cannabis Retail storefronts. Fifteen (15) of the proposed storefront uses may be 


eligible for administrative approval if no DR is received during the notice periods, and the remaining eighteen 


(18) sites will require Conditional Use Authorization. The Department does anticipate that some of these 


referrals will not result in applications to the Planning Department, but will instead be withdrawn, given that 


some of the sites were referred over a year ago and no progress has occurred, and some applicants have 


indicated an intent to withdraw some of the licensing applications.  
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Some key findings of our remaining pipeline for review include: 


 


• Many of the remaining pending locations are on the west side of San Francisco, including locations on 


West Portal Avenue, Irving Street, Judah Street, and Taraval Street. Five new locations are proposed in 


District Four, representing the first new locations proposed in the Supervisorial District since 


legalization. 


• Additional outlets are proposed further west in the Richmond District; however, no new storefronts are 


proposed west of 26th Avenue. 


• Multiple new storefronts are proposed in the Bayview District as part of Microbusinesses, where the 


facilities would include a small retail component as part of a larger facility that includes production of 


cannabis and other non-storefront uses. 


• Additional new storefronts are proposed in neighborhoods which historically have accommodated 


more share than others, including the Mission and South of Market neighborhoods. 


Conclusion 


Since the legalization of adult use cannabis in early 2018, the size of the City’s cannabis industry has increased 


greatly. There remains as large number of locations pending review and approval (fourteen under review and 


forty-eight pending application); however, the submittal of new locations to the Office of Cannabis has slowed 


significantly, and the pipeline of proposed Cannabis Retail storefronts is not anticipated to expand considerably 


beyond our current pipeline. 


 


Moving forward, the Commission should expect some change in the nature of cases under review as the Office of 


Cannabis shifts to Tier 4 of processing (pre-existing industry and Medical Cannabis Dispensaries), with more sites 


proposing modification of a prior approval or legalization of uses that operated without permit when the City 


was not permitting their respective uses. 


 


As we progress with review of our remaining pipeline of storefront uses, the Commission should expect more 


cases on the westside, where increased opposition to Project may occur, as well as a few more locations 


proposed in neighborhoods that have historically accommodated cannabis uses such as the Mission and South 


of Market Districts. 


 


Additional information and recommendations for land use and policy changes may be found in the 2019 City 


Controller’s Report titled “Cannabis in San Francisco: A Review Following Adult-Use Legalization.” 


 


Attachments: 


• Map of Cannabis Retailers and Medical Cannabis Dispensaries 


• List of Referred Locations for Office of Cannabis Licenses  







Medical Cannabis Dispensaries


New (Post 2017) Cannabis Retailers







Block/Lot Address Entitlement Building Permit Status Use On-Site Notes


4940/013 1385 Fitzgerald CUA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Cultivation


3753/078 278 Clara Street BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Parcel Delivery, Industrial Ag


0310/001 49 Kearny 4th Floor CUA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Wholesale Sales, Parcel Delivery (requires CUA), Light Manufacturing


3702/001 26 7th St CUA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Delivery Service


4829/026 1550 Wallace BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Wholesale Sales, Light Manufacturing


3521/092 1531 Folsom Street BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Delivery, Distribution, Manufacturing


0237/007 214 California St #214 BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Wholesale Sales


4343/007 2348 Jerrold CUA 1 Pending App Non-Retail cultivation, wholesale sales, retailer, light manufacturing


5230/032 2250 Jerrold BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Light Manufacturing, Delivery


4848/061 1555 Yosemite #1C BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Wholesale Sales, Light Manufacturing


3778/046F 757 Bryant BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Business Service


5230/030 2248 Jerrold #9A BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Parcel Delivery


5253/030 2248 Jerrold #9B BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Wholesale Sales


5230/030 2248 Jerrold #9C BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail Light Manufacturing


3761/007 600 Bryant BPA 1 Pending App Non-Retail cultivation


0024/017 1333 Columbus Ave CUA 1 Pending App Retail


3702/045 1133 Market Street BPA 1 Pending App Retail


3727/022 1154 Howard Street BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0331/007 132 Eddy Street BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0346/007 448 Larkin Street BPA 1 Pending App Retail


3788/014 695 3rd Street CUA 1 Pending App Retail


0574/011 1648 Pacific Avenue CUA 1 Pending App Retail


6272/021 4835 Mission Street CUA 1 Pending App Retail


3654/006 3908 24th St CUA 1 Pending App Retail


3973/004 2440 Mariposa St BPA 1 Pending App Retail


5423A/023 1970 Carroll Avenue BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0284/007 532 Sutter BPA 1 Pending App Retail


1710/023 3932 Irving St CUA 1 Pending App Retail


5315/051 2000 Oakdale BPA 1 Pending App Retail


4211/017 2736 24th St CUA 1 Pending App Retail


4940/024 2915 Keith St BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0532/009 2030 Union Street CUA 1 Pending App Retail


3012/022 323 West Portal CUA 1 Pending App Retail


2359/010 2016 Taraval St CUA 1 Pending App Retail


3583/001 4001 18th Street CUA 1 Pending App Retail


5667/015 317 Cortland CUA 1 Pending App Retail


0335/015 670 Larkin St BPA 1 Pending App Retail


3521/052 43 Norfolk BPA 1 Pending App Retail


2989B/026 181 West Portal CUA 1 Pending App Retail


1034/002 3415 California CUA 1 Pending App Retail


1780/001 2401 Irving CUA 1 Pending App Retail


0276/007 1008 Bush St BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0196/003 615 Sansome BPA 1 Pending App Retail


3779/067 1 Jeff Adachi Way BPA 1 Pending App Retail Retail and nonretail


3593/109 3431 19th St CUA 1 Pending App Retail


4848/017 1555 Yosemite #8 BPA 1 Pending App Retail


0511/001 2205-2207 Lombard CUA 1 Pending App Retail


900 Irving Street CUA 1 Pending App Retail


2348/009A 800 Taraval CUA 1 Pending App Retail


1018/011 3665 Sacramento CUA 1 Pending App Retail


1821/037 2715 Judah St 2021-001579CUA 3 Processing Retail Pending Assignment


6249/001 5 Leland Avenue 2021-000603CUA 3 Processing Retail CPC May 13


3774/191 543-545 2nd St PRJ 202101132545 3 Processing Retail Comments Provided, On-Hold


1408/017 2428 Clement St 2021-000433CUA 202012231651 3 Processing Retail


1218/001 353 Divisadero 2020-009148CUA 3 Processing Retail CPC April 22


0306/008 468 Geary St 2020-009479PRJ 202012151044 3 Processing Retail In 311 notice period


1538/036 4221 Geary Blvd 2021-000313CUA 202008312971 3 Processing Retail Pending Assignment


4335/003F 2924 Cesar Chavez 2020-010329CUA 3 Processing Retail Comments Provided, On-Hold


0525/020 2424 Polk St 2020-011603CUA 3 Processing Retail


6083/021 4687 Mission St 2020-006377CUA 3 Processing Retail


3588/004 724 Valencia St 2020-006857CUA 3 Processing Retail Comments Provided, On-Hold


3525/056 1190 Bryant Street 2017-006817PRJ 201705237395 3 Processing Retail HOLD requested by applicant


5801 Mission Street 2020-007152CUA 3 Processing Retail


4829/026 1550 Wallace 2020-011265CUA 202102044042 7 CUA Approved Non-Retail None Cultivation


0515/009 3109 Fillmore 2020-006747CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail Eligible Includes on-site consumption


0543/027 1861 Union 2019-017356CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


1435/040 235 Clement 2020-008388CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


3568/009 560 Valencia St 2020-006575CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail Eligible


0050/020 1095 Columbus Ave 2020-007488CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


3731/073 1057 Howard Street 2020-007461CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


1452/045 5600 Geary Street 2020-000063CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


1076/001A 1649 Divisadero 2020-007023CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


1085/031 3407 Geary Blvd 2020-006608CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C


6510/023A 3751 24th Street 2019-021215CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C 9/29/20: contacted applicant re: BPA filing


1250/024 768 Stanyan St 2020-004439CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail Eligible Includes on-site consumption


0495/002A 1700 Lombard Street 2019-017309CUA 201908158975 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C Scheduled 6/18


0619/002 1735 Polk Street 2019-014039CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C B Hicks CPC approval 2/20 after continued from 2/6 - no Type C


3505/004 40 12th Street 2019-006086CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail Eligible


4335/003i 2934 Cesar Chavez 2019-005500CUA 7 CUA Approved Retail No Type C M Christensen


3777/037 518 Brannan St 2017-007063CUA 202010096286 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


4807/026 1207 Thomas N/A N/A 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Distribution, no change in use


5315/051 1238 Rankin 2019-014946PRJ 201907267062 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Cultivation, Light Manufacturing, Delivery







Block/Lot Address Entitlement Building Permit Status Use On-Site Notes


4353/010 1398 Marin Street 2020-008191PRJ 202008282885 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Delivery Service


3530/016 40 Shotwell 2020-010180PRJ 202011038082 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Business Service


3532/069 15 Duboce Ave 2020-002444PRL 202002194893 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Wholesale Sales, Light Manufacturing, Parcel Delivery Service


4848/064 1555 Yosemite #3 2019-016334PRL 201909050799 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Parcel Delivery


4848/069 1555 Yosemite #8 2018-013332CUA 201809180594 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Cultivation, Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Parcel Delivery


3532/039 49 Duboce Ave 2018-014433CUA 201810183545 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Cultivation, Distribution


4168/007 765 Pennsylvania 2019-014120PRL 201907186290 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Parcel Delivery Service, WholesaleSales, Light Manufacturing


5597A/001 2207 Newcomb Ave 2019-000010PRJ 201902253685 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Cultivation


3730/117 1121 Howard Street 2019-021751PRJ 201911137228 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Wholesale Sales, Parcel Delivery


4043/016 695 Minnesota N/A N/A 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Office use only, no change of use


3530/016 174 14th Street 2020-000863PRL 202001212367 8 BPA Approved Non-Retail None Light Manufacturing, Wholesale Sales, Delivery to customers


5609/019 3185 Mission 2018-004287PRJ 201803224337 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


1091/025 2845 Geary Blvd 2020-006148CUA 202001139843 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


0074/054 899 Columbus Ave 2020-001158CUA 202012100702 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


3994/043 457 Mariposa 2019-014214PRJ 201907024973 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


3748/028 443 Folsom 2017-013745PRJ 201703131314 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0131/004 1335 Grant Street 2019-004021CUA 201905281763 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


0818/016 500 Laguna Street 2019-015062CUA 201907024948 8 BPA Approved Retail None


3570/048 2075 Mission St 2019-004451CUA 202009093749 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


4103/029 669 Mississippi Street 2019-014211PRJ 201907176109 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


4041/010 600 Indiana Street 2019-022295PRJ 201911207807 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0808/004 313 Ivy Street 2019-016523CUA 202003167120 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


0659/006 2222 Bush Street 2019-015307CUA 202002103949 8 BPA Approved Retail None


0248/014 1398 California 2019-001048CUA 201908068079 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0561/009 258 Noe Street 2018-002060CUA 201912270846 8 BPA Approved Retail Not Eligible


7324/001 61 Cambon Drive #1 2019-012580CUA 202002265487 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


0309/008 152 Geary Street 2019-014893PRJ 201907236743 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


0301/007 906 Post Street 2018-015363PRJ 201811075301 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


1247/020 1685 Haight Street 2018-014721CUA 201906274632 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


5296/020 4526 Third Street 2018-015127CUA 201906284706 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


4645/022 828 Innes Ave 2019-000186CUA 201907246782 8 BPA Approved Retail No Type C


3582/073 3989 17th Street 2019-004216CUA 201907236628 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0022/014 2627 Taylor Street 2019-012933PRJ 201906032279 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0317/010A 500 Jones Street 2019-013201PRJ 201906214145 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


3753/120 985 Folsom Street 2019-013791PRJ 201907085306 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


3987/013 165 Mississippi 2019-004681PRJ 201904026880 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


0314/006 180 O'Farrell St 2019-004673PRJ 201904026867 8 BPA Approved Retail Eligible


3549/005 36 Shotwell C BPA 9 Cancelled Non-Retail Light Manufacturing


3549/005 36 Shotwell B BPA 9 Cancelled Non-Retail Wholesale Sales


3549/005 36 Shotwell A BPA 9 Cancelled Non-Retail Non-Storefront Delivery


3776/032 595 Bryant St 2020-005352CUA 9 Cancelled Retail Includes on-site consumption


0284/007 536 Sutter Street BPA 9 Cancelled Retail


1215/014 1213 Fell Street CUA 9 Cancelled Retail


3575/030 2199 Mission 2018-014523CUA 9 Cancelled Retail


5419/023 1670 Armstrong BPA 9 Cancelled Retail


2359/010 2014 Taraval Street CUA 9 Cancelled Retail
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
Subject: FW: 2800 Geary Blvd. 2019-023105AHB
Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 8:46:22 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Michael Coholan <michael@hilltopllc.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 6:17 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>; Pollak, Josh (CPC) <josh.pollak@sfgov.org>;
Fordham, Chelsea (CPC) <chelsea.fordham@sfgov.org>; Lois Wander <loiswander@gmail.com>;
Chris Yu <christopher.s.yu@gmail.com>; Matthew Young <myoung@sfcm.edu>; Michael Coholan
<michael@hilltopllc.com>; Arlene Filippi <arlenefilippi@yahoo.com>; Dick Frisbie
<frfbeagle@gmail.com>; Liz Moore <liz@shamrocksf.com>; Jonathan Pearlman
<jonathan@elevationarchitects.com>
Subject: 2800 Geary Blvd. 2019-023105AHB
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
We live adjacent to or near the proposed development project at 2800 Geary Boulevard that is on the
Planning Commission agenda for 4/29/21. We are in agreement with the developer that the entrance
to the parking garage should be located on Geary, not Wood Street. In its response to an earlier
version of the design, SFMTA expressed concern that locating the garage entrance on Geary would
cause traffic to back up. The developer has now submitted a revised design that addresses SFMTA’s
concerns. We join with the developer in requesting that you approve this revised version of the plans
that locates the garage entrance on Geary, for the following reasons:
 
Negative impacts of locating the garage on Wood Street:
 
1. Due to design constraints of the site, locating the entrance on Wood Street means that the ramp to
the garage will be very steep and one-way. Wood Street is extremely narrow and has street parking
on both sides. If a car is waiting to get into the garage while someone exits, the street will be

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


completely blocked; 
 
2. There are two other large projects in the area that will already be increasing the volume of traffic
on Wood Street: (1) the Lucky Penny project (2670 Geary); and (2) the Sagebrook Senior Living
facility (2750 Geary) across the street from the subject site; 
 
3. Locating the entrance on Wood Street will remove five street parking spaces; 
 
4. The garage entrance on Wood Street would be directly adjacent to a residence. The code-required
loud beeping noise that will happen whenever the garage door opens will have a disproportionate
impact on that neighbor. 
 
Positive impacts of the revised design locating the garage on Geary:
 
1. The developer’s revised design includes solutions to the problems raised by SFMTA in the
following ways:
 
a.
The driveway is wider and is two ways, so no car has to wait for another car to leave before entering;
b.
The driveway is less steep, so cars entering and exiting do not have to move as slowly or cautiously;
c.
The entrance to the garage is now set back so that a car waiting for the door to open can pull off the
street and wait without blocking the sidewalk. 
 
2. Locating the garage on Geary results in the loss of only one street parking space, as opposed to
five;
 
3. There is already an existing curb cut on Geary;
 
4. The entrance will be directly adjacent to a commercial space and will not have a significant
impact on a residence. 
 
For all these reasons, we ask that you approve the revised design submitted by the developer.
 
Best Regards,
 
Lois Wander 73A Wood St.
Chris Yu 73 Wood St.
Matthew Young 61-63 Wood St.
Michael Coholan 51-53 Wood St.
Arleen Filippi 42 Wood St.
Laurel Heights Improvement Assn., Richard Frisbie VP
 
 
 
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PEOPLE 16 AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE THE COVID-19 VACCINE

IN SAN FRANCISCO
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 2:09:27 PM
Attachments: 04.13.21 Vaccine Eligibility_16 and older.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 2:06 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PEOPLE 16 AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO
RECEIVE THE COVID-19 VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
PEOPLE 16 AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE

THE COVID-19 VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO 
San Francisco to continue equity strategy to ensure residents of hardest-hit neighborhoods

receive equitable access to vaccine
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax, and
Director of the Department of Emergency Management Mary Ellen Carroll today announced
that in accordance with state and federal guidance, all people age 16 and over in San
Francisco are now eligible to receive a COVID-19 vaccine. Those newly eligible people age
16 and over should visit SF.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine
and to find links to schedule appointments at different vaccination sites.
 
Last week, San Francisco expanded eligibility to 16 and older in priority zip codes 94124,
94134, 94112, 94110, 94107, 94102, 94103, and 94130, which are communities that have
been hardest hit by the COVID-19 pandemic, and the City will continue its efforts to ensure
vaccines are administered equitably. This new expansion for all people 16 and over had
originally been scheduled for April 15. In recent days, other counties in the Bay Area have
begun to vaccinate people 16 and older, including Alameda County and Santa Clara County,
so the City is moving sooner to open up eligibility in order to ensure access for San Francisco
residents. Nearly 60% of people 16 and older in San Francisco have received at least one dose
of the vaccine and the City is currently vaccinating roughly 12,000 residents per day.
 
“As we work to get people vaccinated as quickly as possible, this expanded eligibility is
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


THE COVID-19 VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO  
San Francisco to continue equity strategy to ensure residents of hardest-hit neighborhoods 


receive equitable access to vaccine 
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax, and 
Director of the Department of Emergency Management Mary Ellen Carroll today announced that 
in accordance with state and federal guidance, all people age 16 and over in San Francisco are 
now eligible to receive a COVID-19 vaccine. Those newly eligible people age 16 and over 
should visit SF.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine and to find 
links to schedule appointments at different vaccination sites. 
 
Last week, San Francisco expanded eligibility to 16 and older in priority zip codes 94124, 94134, 
94112, 94110, 94107, 94102, 94103, and 94130, which are communities that have been hardest 
hit by the COVID-19 pandemic, and the City will continue its efforts to ensure vaccines are 
administered equitably. This new expansion for all people 16 and over had originally been 
scheduled for April 15. In recent days, other counties in the Bay Area have begun to vaccinate 
people 16 and older, including Alameda County and Santa Clara County, so the City is moving 
sooner to open up eligibility in order to ensure access for San Francisco residents. Nearly 60% of 
people 16 and older in San Francisco have received at least one dose of the vaccine and the City 
is currently vaccinating roughly 12,000 residents per day. 
 
“As we work to get people vaccinated as quickly as possible, this expanded eligibility is 
important progress in our fight against COVID-19. We’ve created a network of vaccination sites 
in our city, and San Franciscans are stepping up and getting vaccinated because we know that it’s 
our best shot to end this pandemic once and for all,” said Mayor Breed. “Even with limited 
supply, San Francisco continues to be well ahead of the national average for how many of our 
residents have been vaccinated. There’s an end to this pandemic in sight, and we’re doing 
everything we can to make that happen as soon as possible.” 
 
The goal of San Francisco’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as convenient, 
comfortable and low-barrier for as many people as possible, particularly in those neighborhoods 
disproportionately affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The City has developed a robust 
distribution infrastructure that includes high-volume vaccination sites, neighborhood sites, 
community clinics, pharmacy partnerships, and mobile vaccination teams. 
 
Across these efforts, San Francisco is averaging almost 12,000 doses a day, and nearly 60% 
percent of San Franciscans 16 and older have received at least one dose. More than 30% percent 
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of San Franciscans have been fully vaccinated. Eighty-four percent of San Franciscans 65 and 
older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and 68% percent have been fully vaccinated. 
 
“As eligibility expands citywide, we remain focused on ensuring equitable access to vaccine for 
those neighborhoods that have been most impacted by this pandemic,” said Dr. Grant 
Colfax. “We will continue to work with our community partners to ensure that vulnerable 
communities have ready access to the vaccine. With limited supply, we know that booking an 
appointment right away might be challenging, but we are expecting more vaccine towards the 
end of the month. I want to reassure everyone who is eligible that your opportunity is coming 
soon. In the meantime, please be patient, wear your masks, practice physical distancing and good 
hygiene, and choose outdoor over indoor activities. Together, we can keep our curve flat and our 
city reopening.” 
 
Despite this significant progress, insufficient vaccine supply remains the single biggest factor 
limiting the City’s vaccination effort. Because supply remains extremely limited while eligibility 
is expanding, it may take a number of weeks to find an available appointment. Eligible 
individuals should continue to be patient, should keep checking the website, and should accept 
the first vaccine that is offered, with the exception of people 16 and 17 years old, for whom 
Pfizer is currently the only approved vaccine. If San Francisco receives sufficient supply to meet 
the City’s distribution capacity, over 80% of adults could be vaccinated with first doses by mid-
May. 
 
San Francisco’s commitment to an equitable vaccination strategy has focused on reaching 
communities that have been hard-hit by the pandemic, including the Latino community and 
neighborhoods in the southeast of the city. A higher proportion of the Department of Public 
Health (DPH)-administered vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide 
vaccinations. For example, the Latino population represents 14% percent of the City’s vaccine 
eligible population and has received more than 26% of DPH’s vaccinations. The vaccine 
dashboard also shows that the top three neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-
controlled vaccines are the Bayview, Mission, and Excelsior. 
 
“Equity is a critical element of San Francisco’s vaccination program. This is why San 
Francisco’s vaccine network emphasizes distribution and outreach in communities 
disproportionately impacted by the global pandemic,” said Mary Ellen Carroll, Executive 
Director, San Francisco Department of Emergency Management. “Partnering with community 
organizations allows us to work with trusted partners that help ensure that our vaccine operations 
and our outreach and engagement are conducted in a culturally appropriate and effective 
manner.” 
 
Following today’s announcement from the CDC and FDA, San Francisco has paused the use of 
the Johnson & Johnson vaccine out of an abundance of caution until more is learned about the 
potential side effects. To date San Francisco has administered more than 33,000 doses of the 
Johnson & Johnson vaccine to residents with no known cases of blood clotting. As this adverse 
event is reported to be extremely rare with just over six reported cases nationwide, the City does 
not believe there is cause for immediate alarm. However, people who have received the Johnson 
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& Johnson vaccine should contact their primary healthcare provider if they have concerns or if 
they develop severe headache, abdominal pain, leg pain or shortness of breath within three weeks 
after vaccination. COVID-19 vaccine safety is a top priority for the City. DPH will continue to 
monitor the situation and will look forward to hearing the outcome from the CDC’s meeting of 
the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices tomorrow to better understand the 
significance of these cases. 
 
The state informed the City last week to expect a 33-35% percent decrease in the vaccine supply 
for the month of April caused by near-term supply challenges at the national level, as well as 
increasing proportions of California vaccines being delivered through the federal direct 
allocation programs to Federally Qualified Health Centers and pharmacies. Additionally, the 
City’s supply of Johnson & Johnson would decrease by upwards of 90% percent due to federal 
manufacturing issues. As the City only received 500 doses of Johnson & Johnson (out of 10,000 
doses total) this week, this pause will not have a significant impact on this week’s vaccination 
efforts. 
  
Vaccine Appointment Information  
In order to assist individuals with accessing appointments, the City has set up a call center to 
help people, especially those who are 65 and older, those with disabilities and those who are 
unable to easily access the internet or schedule an appointment through their provider. 
Individuals may call to learn about vaccine options and receive assistance in booking an 
appointment to some locations. The number is (628) 652-2700.   
 
Muni and Paratransit are free for anyone traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine appointments. 
The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency is also providing additional access to taxi 
service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be found 
at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/paratransit.  
 
Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco and is eligible for the COVID-19 vaccine can go 
to SF.gov/getvaccinated to find vaccination locations and make an appointment. The City will 
continue to provide regular updates to the public about the vaccine in San Francisco 
at SF.gov/covidvaccine.  
 


### 
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important progress in our fight against COVID-19. We’ve created a network of vaccination
sites in our city, and San Franciscans are stepping up and getting vaccinated because we know
that it’s our best shot to end this pandemic once and for all,” said Mayor Breed. “Even with
limited supply, San Francisco continues to be well ahead of the national average for how many
of our residents have been vaccinated. There’s an end to this pandemic in sight, and we’re
doing everything we can to make that happen as soon as possible.”
 
The goal of San Francisco’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as
convenient, comfortable and low-barrier for as many people as possible, particularly in those
neighborhoods disproportionately affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The City has
developed a robust distribution infrastructure that includes high-volume vaccination sites,
neighborhood sites, community clinics, pharmacy partnerships, and mobile vaccination teams.
 
Across these efforts, San Francisco is averaging almost 12,000 doses a day, and nearly 60%
percent of San Franciscans 16 and older have received at least one dose. More than 30%
percent of San Franciscans have been fully vaccinated. Eighty-four percent of San Franciscans
65 and older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and 68% percent have been fully
vaccinated.
 
“As eligibility expands citywide, we remain focused on ensuring equitable access to vaccine
for those neighborhoods that have been most impacted by this pandemic,” said Dr. Grant
Colfax. “We will continue to work with our community partners to ensure that vulnerable
communities have ready access to the vaccine. With limited supply, we know that booking an
appointment right away might be challenging, but we are expecting more vaccine towards the
end of the month. I want to reassure everyone who is eligible that your opportunity is coming
soon. In the meantime, please be patient, wear your masks, practice physical distancing and
good hygiene, and choose outdoor over indoor activities. Together, we can keep our curve flat
and our city reopening.”
 
Despite this significant progress, insufficient vaccine supply remains the single biggest factor
limiting the City’s vaccination effort. Because supply remains extremely limited while
eligibility is expanding, it may take a number of weeks to find an available appointment.
Eligible individuals should continue to be patient, should keep checking the website, and
should accept the first vaccine that is offered, with the exception of people 16 and 17
years old, for whom Pfizer is currently the only approved vaccine. If San Francisco receives
sufficient supply to meet the City’s distribution capacity, over 80% of adults could be
vaccinated with first doses by mid-May.
 
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
organizations allows us to work with trusted partners that help ensure that our vaccine
operations and our outreach and engagement are conducted in a culturally appropriate and
effective manner.”
 
Following today’s announcement from the CDC and FDA, San Francisco has paused the use
of the Johnson & Johnson vaccine out of an abundance of caution until more is learned about
the potential side effects. To date San Francisco has administered more than 33,000 doses of
the Johnson & Johnson vaccine to residents with no known cases of blood clotting. As this
adverse event is reported to be extremely rare with just over six reported cases nationwide, the
City does not believe there is cause for immediate alarm. However, people who have received
the Johnson & Johnson vaccine should contact their primary healthcare provider if they have
concerns or if they develop severe headache, abdominal pain, leg pain or shortness of breath
within three weeks after vaccination. COVID-19 vaccine safety is a top priority for the
City. DPH will continue to monitor the situation and will look forward to hearing the outcome
from the CDC’s meeting of the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices tomorrow to
better understand the significance of these cases.
 
The state informed the City last week to expect a 33-35% percent decrease in the vaccine
supply for the month of April caused by near-term supply challenges at the national level, as
well as increasing proportions of California vaccines being delivered through the federal direct
allocation programs to Federally Qualified Health Centers and pharmacies. Additionally, the
City’s supply of Johnson & Johnson would decrease by upwards of 90% percent due to federal
manufacturing issues. As the City only received 500 doses of Johnson & Johnson (out of
10,000 doses total) this week, this pause will not have a significant impact on this week’s
vaccination efforts.
 
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
 
Muni and Paratransit are free for anyone traveling to and from COVID-19 vaccine
appointments. The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency is also providing
additional access to taxi service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be
found at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/paratransit. 
 
Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco and is eligible for the COVID-19 vaccine can go
to SF.gov/getvaccinated to find vaccination locations and make an appointment. The City will
continue to provide regular updates to the public about the vaccine in San Francisco
at SF.gov/covidvaccine.
 

###
 

https://www.sfmta.com/projects/covid-19-developments-response
https://www.sfmta.com/getting-around/accessibility/paratransit
https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated-against-covid-19
https://sf.gov/covid-19-vaccine-san-francisco


From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2119 28th Street CUA #2020-008507 April 15, 2021 Consent Calendar
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 9:35:57 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Monday, April 12, 2021 4:55 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Balba, Ryan (CPC) <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel
(CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; mooreurban@aol.com; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael
(CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) <corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Tam, Tina (CPC)
<tina.tam@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC)
<scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2119 28th Street CUA #2020-008507 April 15, 2021 Consent Calendar
 
﻿
﻿Dear Mr. Ionin,
After sending the original email about this item on Saturday, I realized there were at least eight
other Noe Valley Demolitions in the past 10 plus years that I did not list beyond the thirteen
Demolitions that I did list.
I think all of these projects are within the Planning Department defined boundaries for Noe Valley.
These eight additional addresses also had either a MDR or a CUA hearing at the Commission, as did
the original thirteen.
The additional addresses are:
1409 Sanchez Street (more than 10 years ago)
448 Valley Street
468 Valley Street
1099 Dolores Street
4171 24th Street (NCD)
3822 24th Street (NCD)

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


4209 24th Street (more than 10 years ago)
268 Grand View Avenue
Also after an Enforcement Action a CUA hearing was held for:
1369-1371 Sanchez Street (revised original Demo Calcs beyond thresholds)
403 28th Street (revised original Demo Calcs beyond thresholds)
655 Alvarado Street (no original Demo Calcs according to DBI)
4118 21st Street (Eureka Valley?)
Also Demolitions without CPC hearing:
538 28th Street (emergency DBI order)
562 28th Street (ZA approval due to Soundness Report)
I think that is it, but maybe it is not conclusive?  
However there have been at least 21 approved Demolitions of sound housing in Noe Valley (not due
to Enforcement) with a Commission hearing in the past 10 plus years.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 
Sent from my iPad

On Apr 12, 2021, at 11:05 AM, Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org> wrote:

﻿
Noted. We will pull it off of Consent and have it heard at the end of the Agenda.
 
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
 
 

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>
Date: Saturday, April 10, 2021 at 4:41 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Hillis, Rich (CPC)"
<rich.hillis@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Balba, Ryan (CPC)" <ryan.balba@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>, "Chan, Deland
(CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)"
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa
Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, Corey Teague <corey.teague@sfgov.org>, Tina Tam
<tina.tam@sfgov.org>, "Winslow, David (CPC)" <david.winslow@sfgov.org>, Scott
Sanchez <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>
Subject: 2119 28th Street CUA #2020-008507 April 15, 2021 Consent Calendar

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or
attachments from untrusted sources.

 

 

Dear Mr. Ionin and Director Hillis,
I am very sorry, but I am requesting that this project
be removed from the Consent Calendar.
There have been very few real, true, "honest to
God” projects approved as Demolitions in Noe Valley
in the past 10+ years.  
Listing them, they are: 
439 Alvarado Street; 174 27th Street; 437 Duncan
Street; 168 Clipper Street; 456 27th Street; 4041 Cesar
Chavez; 4043 Cesar Chavez; 461 29th Street; 232
Clipper Street; 4211 26th Street; 4333 26th Street;
440 29th Street and 2123 Castro which is immediately
adjacent to this project. 
However, there have been many, many major
Alterations that veer into  Demolitions.  
But that is another story.
Nevertheless, all of these listed, “true” Demolitions, all
had a regular hearing before the Commission, either a
MDR or a CUA, and this proposed project at 2119
Castro Street should have a regular hearing as
well.*** 
The attached pdf is my submission on this proposed
project.



Thank you and take care.
Georgia Schuttish
 
 

***There was an Administrative Approval of a project pending at 4250
26th Street that was appraised at $2.2 million and is grandfathered in
because its application was prior to last year when the RH-1
Administrative Approval was eliminated from the Code.  But apparently
there is a DR recently filed for this project by neighbors.  653 28th Street
which was originally an Alteration but then reverted to an Administrative
Approval of the Demolition after two appraisals in 2017 had a DR hearing
at the request of two neighbors.  At the public DR hearing, the
Commission added an ADU per DRA-0551.  It is now for sale at  $6.195
million, as a SFH but the ADU is not referenced in the web ads, just “two
separate family rooms” and “a second prep-kitchen”.



 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 9:35:30 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Joseph Dowell <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 12, 2021 5:20 PM
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
needed affordable new homes to 468 Turk Street in the Tenderloin and urge you to
approve this worthy project.

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

Joseph Dowell 
joedowell2@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94109

 

mailto:joedowell2@gmail.com


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LEASE FOR DRUG SOBERING CENTER IN

SAN FRANCISCO
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 8:22:44 AM
Attachments: 04.13.21 Drug Sobering Center Lease.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 8:04 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LEASE
FOR DRUG SOBERING CENTER IN SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, April 13, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LEASE FOR DRUG

SOBERING CENTER IN SAN FRANCISCO
The City is moving forward to open San Francisco’s first drug sobering center at

1076 Howard Street in SoMa
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the City is moving forward
to open a drug sobering center for people who are experiencing the effects of fentanyl,
methamphetamine, and other substances. Today, Mayor Breed will introduce a lease for the
building at 1076 Howard Street at the Board of Supervisors. The drug sobering center pilot, a
key component of Mental Health SF, is one of several innovative efforts underway to help
people experiencing homelessness and behavioral health issues to get off the streets, into
housing, and connected with services.
 
The goals of the drug sobering center include saving lives by preventing overdose deaths,
reducing the harms of substance use in the surrounding neighborhood, and providing resources
that can give people who use drugs an alternative to hospital and jail stays and an opportunity
to begin their journey toward wellness and recovery when they are ready. The center will
provide an additional resource and a destination for people served by the growing Street Crisis
Response Team (SCRT) pilot program and other City outreach teams.
 
“The public drug use we see on our streets hurts those who are suffering from addiction as
well as the surrounding communities,” said Mayor Breed. “This location will provide a safe
place for our Street Crisis Response Team and other outreach efforts to bring people who are
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


1076 Howard Street in SoMa 
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the City is moving forward to 
open a drug sobering center for people who are experiencing the effects of fentanyl, 
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
that can give people who use drugs an alternative to hospital and jail stays and an opportunity to 
begin their journey toward wellness and recovery when they are ready. The center will provide 
an additional resource and a destination for people served by the growing Street Crisis Response 
Team (SCRT) pilot program and other City outreach teams. 
 
“The public drug use we see on our streets hurts those who are suffering from addiction as well 
as the surrounding communities,” said Mayor Breed. “This location will provide a safe place for 
our Street Crisis Response Team and other outreach efforts to bring people who are using drugs 
and should not be left to themselves. It’s a way we can intervene, address the immediate issue, 
and then also get them connected to the longer-term services and support they need.” 
 
This new sobering center will be located in a brick-and-mortar facility at 1076 Howard Street. 
The City originally planned to pilot the center at 180 Jones Street, but, due to COVID-19, that 
site has since been converted to a Safe Sleeping Site. If the lease is approved by the Board of 
Supervisors, the City will gather community input on the program, oversee building renovations, 
and implement a drug sobering center pilot program in Fall 2021. 
 
“Creating a drug sobering center will save lives,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. 
“When we welcome people who are experiencing the effects of substance use into a supportive 
place, off the street, we can create safety for them and for our neighborhoods.” 
 
The Department of Public Health (DPH) is proposing to contract with HealthRIGHT 360, which 
manages many successful healthcare and substance use treatment programs throughout the city 
and across the state, to operate the drug sobering center. Healthcare and safety workers, many 
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 
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with lived experience of substance use, will staff the program. It will be a 20-bed pilot project 
where clients may stay an average of eight to ten hours, though some may stay longer. The 
facility will initially be able to serve up to 20 individuals at a time, but over the course of a 24-
hour period, may serve up to three times that amount. Findings from this effort will inform near-
term future investments to save lives and promote safety in SoMa and throughout the city. DPH 
will evaluate the pilot program and refine the model for replication in other locations in San 
Francisco. 
 
At the center, the City will offer harm reduction services in a safe, welcoming setting with peer 
counselors and health services. People under the influence of methamphetamine, fentanyl, and 
other substances can move safely through intoxication, then have an opportunity to engage in 
conversation about wellness and recovery options available to them, and be connected to housing 
resources. 
 
Specifically, services will include one-on-one peer support; access to clothing, showers, and 
hygiene supplies; on-site security for safety monitoring; access to harm-reduction supplies and 
education; and health assessments and first aid. Additionally, the center will connect clients to 
other services including referrals to primary medical care and psychiatric services; social 
services including housing; and vocational services for job training and future employment. 
 
“Mental Health SF is an opportunity to transform behavioral health care in San Francisco, and 
it’s already well under way with efforts like the Street Crisis Response Team pilot,” said Dr. 
Hillary Kunins, DPH’s new Director of Behavioral Health Services and Mental Health SF. “The 
drug sobering center will be an important part of our expanding continuum of care for people 
experiencing homelessness, substance use disorders and mental illness.” 
 
“HealthRIGHT 360 is pleased to be partnering with the Mayor’s office, the Department of Public 
Health and our community to offer a humane, compassionate, and non-coercive space for people 
under the influence of drugs,” said Vitka Eisen, MSW, Ed.D, President and Chief Executive 
Officer of HealthRIGHT 360. “We see this program as an opportunity to prevent drug overdoses, 
and to connect people to care. Operating 24 hours per day, 7 days a week, this program is an 
integral part of a public health response to drug use and community health for San Franciscans.” 
 
Under Mayor Breed’s leadership, the City is focused on addressing homelessness, mental health, 
and substance use disorders, with a focus on three main areas: creating more places for people to 
go; expanding outreach and coordination among services and placement; and strengthening data 
and transparency tracking tools. The drug sobering center will make progress on all three areas 
by offering a new place for people to go and get connected with existing City services. The drug 
sobering center pilot will be evaluated and use of the facility with be tracked by DPH, furthering 
the City’s efforts to ensure programs are working and make adjustments to programs as needed. 
 
 


### 







using drugs and should not be left to themselves. It’s a way we can intervene, address the
immediate issue, and then also get them connected to the longer-term services and support
they need.”
 
This new sobering center will be located in a brick-and-mortar facility at 1076 Howard Street.
The City originally planned to pilot the center at 180 Jones Street, but, due to COVID-19, that
site has since been converted to a Safe Sleeping Site. If the lease is approved by the Board of
Supervisors, the City will gather community input on the program, oversee building
renovations, and implement a drug sobering center pilot program in Fall 2021.
 
“Creating a drug sobering center will save lives,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health.
“When we welcome people who are experiencing the effects of substance use into a
supportive place, off the street, we can create safety for them and for our neighborhoods.”
 
The Department of Public Health (DPH) is proposing to contract with HealthRIGHT 360,
which manages many successful healthcare and substance use treatment programs throughout
the city and across the state, to operate the drug sobering center. Healthcare and safety
workers, many with lived experience of substance use, will staff the program. It will be a 20-
bed pilot project where clients may stay an average of eight to ten hours, though some may
stay longer. The facility will initially be able to serve up to 20 individuals at a time, but over
the course of a 24-hour period, may serve up to three times that amount. Findings from this
effort will inform near-term future investments to save lives and promote safety in SoMa and
throughout the city. DPH will evaluate the pilot program and refine the model for replication
in other locations in San Francisco.
 
At the center, the City will offer harm reduction services in a safe, welcoming setting with
peer counselors and health services. People under the influence of methamphetamine,
fentanyl, and other substances can move safely through intoxication, then have an opportunity
to engage in conversation about wellness and recovery options available to them, and be
connected to housing resources.
 
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
Hillary Kunins, DPH’s new Director of Behavioral Health Services and Mental Health SF.
“The drug sobering center will be an important part of our expanding continuum of care for
people experiencing homelessness, substance use disorders and mental illness.”
 
“HealthRIGHT 360 is pleased to be partnering with the Mayor’s office, the Department of
Public Health and our community to offer a humane, compassionate, and non-coercive space
for people under the influence of drugs,” said Vitka Eisen, MSW, Ed.D, President and Chief
Executive Officer of HealthRIGHT 360. “We see this program as an opportunity to prevent
drug overdoses, and to connect people to care. Operating 24 hours per day, 7 days a week, this
program is an integral part of a public health response to drug use and community health for
San Franciscans.”



 
Under Mayor Breed’s leadership, the City is focused on addressing homelessness, mental
health, and substance use disorders, with a focus on three main areas: creating more places for
people to go; expanding outreach and coordination among services and placement; and
strengthening data and transparency tracking tools. The drug sobering center will make
progress on all three areas by offering a new place for people to go and get connected with
existing City services. The drug sobering center pilot will be evaluated and use of the facility
with be tracked by DPH, furthering the City’s efforts to ensure programs are working and
make adjustments to programs as needed.
 
 

###



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: We need new homes in SF - please support 468 Turk Street
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:27:29 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: DJ Capobianco <dj@djcap.net> 
Sent: Monday, April 05, 2021 6:42 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: We need new homes in SF - please support 468 Turk Street
 

 

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

San Francisco is is desperate need of new homes.For these and many other reasons, I
urge you to approve these well-designed, well-located, environmentally-friendly new homes
without delay.

Sincerely,

DJ Capobianco 
tw: @djcap

DJ Capobianco 
dj@djcap.net 
801 Sutter Street, Apt 607 
San Francisco, California 94109

 

mailto:dj@djcap.net


 
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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:27:01 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Jonathan Pearlman <jonathan@elevationarchitects.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:17 AM
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

Jonathan Pearlman 
jonathan@elevationarchitects.com

San Francisco, California 95448
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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:23:01 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Keaton Otake <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:19 AM
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

Keaton Otake 
keatonotake@gmail.com

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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:22:40 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: joan rost <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 9:37 AM
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

joan rost 
joanr0623@gmail.com

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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:22:12 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: aaron conner <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 10:15 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Please support bringing new homes at 468 Turk Street
 

 

Commission Secretary,

As a resident in the area...

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

aaron conner 
aaronconner86@gmail.com

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
Subject: FW: 311 Jersey Street (2020-009332PRJ)
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:21:47 AM
Attachments: 311 Jersey Objection - signed.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: mlardner (null) <mlardner@aol.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 10:40 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>
Subject: 311 Jersey Street (2020-009332PRJ)
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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:20:38 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Pamela Vaughn <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 11:27 AM
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

Pamela Vaughn 
plvaughn@gmail.com

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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Subject: FW: April 15 hearing: New 101 Unit Building at 468 Turk Street.
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:20:36 AM
Attachments: Final Brief.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 4:09 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: April 15 hearing: New 101 Unit Building at 468 Turk Street.
 
Correspondence for commissioners
 
Claudine Asbagh, Principal Planner
Northeast Quadrant/Current Planning
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7329 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: Brian de los Santos <bdelossantos@g3mh.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 4:04 PM
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>; Mark Macy
<markm@macyarchitecture.com>; cammaddern@gmail.com
Cc: M. Brett Gladstone <BGladstone@g3mh.com>
Subject: April 15 hearing: New 101 Unit Building at 468 Turk Street.
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April 07, 2021 
 
 
Joel Koppel, President 
San Francisco Planning Commission 
49 South Van Ness Ave., Suite 1400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
 
 Re: April 15 hearing: New 101 Unit Building at 468 Turk Street. 
  Our File No.: 9969-00 
 
Dear President Koppel and Commissioners:  
 
I am writing you for a second time on behalf of Turk St. LLC, which is proposing the 101-unit 
building at 468 Turk Street near the corner of Larkin.  Prior to the March 25 hearing  (in which a 
continuance was granted for additional community outreach, without testimony),  I sent you a 
lengthy letter describing the project.  Since that time, we have received questions from the 
community and your staff, and both the developer and project architect had a 5th community 
meeting (which was attended by representatives of 7 community groups).  My letter today is 
intended to address those same questions and to address additional information requested from 
your staff. 
 


Size and Habitability of the Units. 
 
Attached as Exhibit A (and on pages 15 and 16 of the full plan set at Exhibit B), you will find a 
floor plan of each unit,  with dimensions.  Exhibit A also contains photographs of  an existing full-
scale model of a unit to be built at another market rate group housing project (351 12th Street), a 
project  designed by the same architect as the project before you today, Mark Macy.  That model 
unit depicts the units your Commission approved on October 17, 2019 by a vote of 4-1 (including 
the votes  of Commissioners Moore,  Fung, Johnson and Melgar, with only Commissioner 
Richards opposed).  The 12th Street building is being  developed by Patrick Kennedy of Panoramic 
Interests and is currently going through the Building Permit approval process.  The units your  
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April 07, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
Commission approved at 351 12th Street are on average 178 square feet in size and the units before 
you for approval today on average 220 square feet (the range is 215 to 230 gsf.)1 
 
Exhibit C  contains a list of  amenities of each unit, all of which will have approximately the same 
square footage (range: 215 to 230 gsf.) 
 


Features of Unit Kitchenettes and the 1st Floor/2nd Floor Community  
Living, Kitchen & Dining Space. 


 
1. Unit Kitchenettes.  Exhibit C includes drawings of some of the kitchen appliances that 


will allow full meal preparation, including combination convection oven/microwaves large 
enough to cook and brown a turkey.  The kitchenettes will also have a plug-in two-burner 
induction cooktop that will sit on the countertops, a 5.6 cubic foot undercounter 
refrigerator/freezer,  sink  with various accessories (cutting board, colander, etc.) and ample 
cabinetry/storage.2  
  


2. Common Area Kitchen and Recreation Space.  The Project features 1305 gsf of 
Community Living, Dining & Kitchen space which exceeds the requirements of the 
Housing Code by 21% (1277 nsf provided vs. 1050 nsf required).  A floor plan of the 
Kitchen & Dining space on the 2nd Floor (“mezzanine”) can be found on Exhibit C, and a 
drawing of the double high space below can be found on page 10 of the plans at Exhibit 
B.  While the interiors of these two floors have not been designed, Macy Architecture has 
provided photos of already built residential common space with cooking (see Exhibit C).  
These photos show the “feel” that is intended for the future design of that common area 
space.  We have been asked about creating communal kitchens on each floor.  Doing so 
would eliminate too many units and the owners feel that, given the capabilities of the Unit 
Kitchenettes, these small kitchens would be unnecessary/redundant and would  not be used 
as much as a larger single kitchen as part of the 1st and 2nd floor community spaces. 


 
Rent Levels of Market Rate Units and Below Market Rate Units. 


 
The market rate units are targeted toward 110 percent of area medium income, based on unit size, 
project location and other factors.  Given this targeted AMI level, this and the 12th Street project 
you approved may be the two most “affordable by design” market rate projects this Commission 
may see.  In addition, there are 17 affordable units, and 10 of those will reach the lowest 
affordability level of any BMR units in a market rate project, which is 50% of AMI.  An 


 
1 This 12th St. model unit was built at a significant cost, and thus  a model unit was not built for the project 
before you.  A model for 468 Turk was also deemed unnecessary because the two projects are being 
designed by the same architect, Macy Architecture, and have a great deal of features in common.   
 
2 The Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Group Housing/SRO unit features (attached to my first letter 
to you) does not allow a built-in range or full oven.   
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approximately $200 per square foot affordable housing fee can help provide offsite BMR units as 
well.    
 


Zoning Which Encourages the Construction of Small Sized Units 
 
Almost 40 years ago, the City created the North of Market Special Use District in order to 
encourage the preservation of the Tenderloin as a location for very dense residential development 
with small dwellings.  In fact, when many existing residential buildings were originally built 
around a century ago, they were designed as small units affordable to working single people of all 
income levels.  The several decades old Special Use District rezoning created what is perhaps the 
densest zoning in the City, one allowing as little as 125 sf of lot area for each dwelling, and as little 
as 70 sf of lot area for each bedroom in a Group Housing setting.   
 
This 40-year-old Special Use District section of your Code states that it created this dense zoning 
“to preserve the existing scale of development” of the time of the SUD’s creation.  At the time of 
the SUD creation, the “existing scale of development” consisted of a large number of residents per 
building, in small units oriented toward single persons.  The units proposed today are consistent 
with the intent of this Special Use District (which also created a 25% BMR requirement,  well 
before City-wide percentages reached that high).   
 


Comparisons to a Group Housing Project at 450 O’Farrell Street. 
 
We understand that this O’Farrell St. project has been considered by your Commission and will 
be considered again in the near future.  Some of those who oppose the O’Farrell project believe 
that the Turk Street project is almost identical and should be subject to the substantial redesign 
being considered for the 450 O’Farrell project.  However,  we respectfully suggest that the project 
at 468 Turk is very different from the project at 450 O’ Farrell.  These differences are listed at 
Exhibit D. 
 
The consideration of these two projects have led a few community members  to tell your staff that 
this zoning is outdated, and the City should stop these two projects and study a change to require 
family sized units.  This would not be fair to a project that has been in the pipeline as long as this 
project,   and a project which has never been approved with larger sized units.  But most important,    
due to the enactment of SB 330 last year, the City cannot legally apply new zoning rules to a 
project after the time the application for project approval is deemed complete by a City.  
 


Absence of Retail Space. 
 
Some community members have asked why there is no proposed retail space.  The owners have 
tried and failed for two years to find  true retail tenants.  A huge number of retail spaces around 
the City are vacant, even in the fanciest neighborhoods, due to the weakness of the industry 
nationwide but also because of the overbuilding of retail spaces in the City.  We believe that 
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providing a gathering and cooking space for residents, which will be visible from the street at the 
ground level, will activate the ground level better than a retail space which has continual vacancy. 
 


CONCLUSION. 
 
Your Department’s Housing Inventory for the year 2019-20 indicates that of the 2944 residential 
units you have approved during the analyzed year, only 1456 have been built.  The numbers for 
2020-21 are expected to be  much worse.  That reflects the large gap between rental levels (and 
condo prices) on the one hand, and the cost of land and construction on the other hand, in what 
newspapers report to be most expensive city in the nation for building.  This project is more 
economically feasible and likely to be providing housing in the near future, for several reasons.  
Construction is less expensive because units are stacked and have same design; the design is so 
efficient that a larger number of units can be built using the Housing Density Bonus; this high 
density allows for enough rental income to justify the high construction costs and land purchased 
at the height of the market in 2018; the building does not contain the high-end amenities which are 
so costly to build;  and the units will be affordable to a wider number of single persons than most 
new dwellings and thus there will be no lack of demand.     
 
We respectfully request approval of this project at your April 15th hearing. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 


 
Brett Gladstone 
CC: Claudine Asbagh, planner 
 Rich Hillis 
 Clients 
 Architect Mark Macy 
 







EXHIBIT 
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PROJECT ENTITLEMENT APPLICATION (CU)


468 TURK STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, C A 94102
(BLOCK 0366 LOT 006)   


315 Linden Street San Francisco CA 94102     Tel  415 551 7630    www.macyarchitecture.com © 2021 Macy Architecture


All Rights Reserved.
The ideas represented 


are the proprietary 
intellectual property
of Macy Architecture.
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


04/07/2021GROUP HOUSING UNIT PRECEDENT 04/07/2021


• THESE ARE PHOTOGRAPHS OF A FULL-SIZED MOCK-UP OF 
A TYPICAL GROUP HOUSING UNIT FOR “351 12TH STREET”.


• “351 12TH STREET” IS A GROUP HOUSING PROJECT 
       APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON 
       OCTOBER 17, 2019.


• “468 TURK STREET” IS DESIGNED BY MACY ARCHITECTURE, 
THE SAME ARCHITECT THAT DESIGNED “351 12TH STREET”.


• “351 12TH STREET” AVERAGE UNIT SIZE:               = +178 GSF
             
• “468 TURK STREET” AVERAGE UNIT SIZE:              = +220 GSF


VIEW TOWARDS LIVING AREA


WAREDROBE / STORAGE


VIEW TOWARDS LIVING AREA


ENTRY


VIEW TOWARDS ENTRY


SHOWER / WATERCLOSET


FLIP-UP TABLE WITH CHAIRS
-SHOWING SOFA-WALL-BED -SHOWING SOFA-WALL-BED DEPLOYED


- SHOWING SHOWER / WATERCLOSET 
  ON THE RIGHT


-


-
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04/07/2021COMMUNITY K ITCHEN AND DINING AREA 04/07/2021


SOME “LOOK AND FEEL” REFERENCE IMAGES FOR THE 
PROPOSED COMMUNITY KITCHEN AND DINING AREA


D


COMMUNITY KITCHEN & DINING AREA


NOTE:   SEE “1ST FLOOR /
  STREET LEVEL” 
  PLAN ON PAGE 10
  FOR LAYOUT OF 
  COMMUNITY LIVING 
  ROOM BELOW


NOTE:  SEE “1ST FLOOR /
 STREET LEVEL”
 PLAN ON PAGE 10
 FOR LAYOUT OF 
 COMMUNITY LIVING 
 ROOM BELOW


P A N T RY / 
S T O R A G E


C O M B I N A B L E  TA B L E S , 
T Y P.


L A R G E
R E F R I G E R AT O R


I N D U C T I O N 
R A N G E  W / 
C O N V E C T I O N 
O V E N


W O R K  S U R F A C E


D I S H W A S H E R


L A R G E
 S I N K


C O N V E N I E N C E  S TA I R 
T O  C O M M U N I T Y 
L I V I N G  R O O M  B E L O W


- O V E R L O O K I N G  D O U B L E - H E I G H T 
C O M M U N I T Y  L I V I N G  R O O M







EXHIBIT 
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468 TURK STREET
RENTAL GROUP HOUSING DEVELOPMENT


PROJECT ENTITLEMENT APPLICATION (CONDITIONAL USE)
FOR AN INDIVIDUALLY-REQUESTED STATE DENSITY BONUS PROJECT


THE "BASE DENSITY" 
Per Planning Director Bulletin 6 (July 2019), and the State Density 
Bonus Law (SDBL), the Base Density is (67) Group Housing Units
( 4,667 SF / 70 SF/Units = 66.67;  round up to 67)


THE "BONUS PROJECT" (SEE P. 6)
The Bonus Project proposes (101) Group Housing Units. 


Per the SDBL (AB-2345 effective 01/01/2021), 15% of the Base 
Density Units are provided at 50% AMI, then a Bonus Density of 
50% is allowed.
(67 Base Units x 1.5 = 100.5; round up to 101 per the SDBL)


THE ARCHITECTURE  (SEE P. 18 & 19)
Per the “Urban Design Guidelines” the street façade has a clearly 
defined BASE, MIDDLE and TOP. The proposed materiality is drawn 
from the best examples within the surrounding Historic District 
and neighboring buildings.


The BASE has a double-height expression and is comprised of 
pilasters with rough composite stone pedestals, and smooth 
composite stone shafts These pilasters are topped with a trabeated 
belt course in composite stone running the full width of the 
building.


PROPOSAL FOR CONCESSIONS, INCENTIVES, AND WAIVERS (SEE P.  7)
Under the State Density Bonus Law, the Project Sponsor is entitled 
to 2 Concessions/Incentives as well as an unlimited number of 
Waivers of any Development Standard that would physically 
preclude construction of the project at the density proposed. The 
following Waivers are required to achieve the density bonus:


1. HEIGHT LIMIT: Waive the building height limit per Sec. 250 (from 
80’-0” to 86’-0”) because compliance with the height limit would 
preclude the development of a 50% increase in Unit density.


OVERVIEW
The Site is composed of a single 4,667 sf parcel (Block 0336 
Lot 006.) It is located in the RC-4 “High Density Residential- 
Commercial” Zoning District, 80-T Height/Bulk District, “North of 
Market Special Use District-Subarea 1” and “Uptown Tenderloin 
Historic District”. It contains an existing 2-story 8,730 sf 
commercial building with no residential units and of no historic 
value (Survey Rating: 6X.)


Turk Street LLC, the Project Sponsor, proposes to demolish the 
existing structure and redevelop the property per the State’s 
Density Bonus Law (California Government Code Sections 
65915-65918) into a rental group housing project. The project will 
consist of (101) Units with a street-level Community Room 
containing shared living facilities.


The proposed project is the “Bonus Project”, which includes the density 
to which the Project Sponsor is entitled per California State Law.


This is an application pursuant to the Mayor's Executive Directive 17-02, 
which mandates expedited approval and permitting of the Project. This is also 
an application of a development permit pursuant to the Permit and 
Streamlining Act (Section 65920 et seq. of the California Government Code) 
and Section 15101 of the CEQA Guidelines. State Law requires the City to 
determine whether the application is complete within 30 days from submittal. 
If no written determination is made within 30 days, the application is deemed 
complete by operation of the Law on the 30th day.


The MIDDLE is proposed in a smooth acrylic-coat stucco finish and 
generously-sized, high-performance windows.


The TOP consists of a substantial metal lintel & cornice with a solid 
parapet/guardrail enclosing the roof deck set back around the 
perimeter. Overall, the design constitutes a contemporary 
interpretation of features shared by the older buildings along the 
surrounding block face.


TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. TABLE OF CONTENTS & PROJECT DESCRIPTION
2. GREEN BUILDING CHECKLIST
3. SITE PHOTOS
4. VICINITY MAP
5. SURVEY
6. BONUS PROJECT TITLE PAGE
7. DENSITY BONUS WAVIER & CONCESSION DIAGRAMS
8. BONUS PROJECT DESCRIPTION & DATA
9. SITE PLAN
10. BONUS PROJECT PLAN DIAGRAMS
11. BONUS PROJECT PLAN DIAGRAMS
12. BONUS PROJECT ELEVATIONS
13. BONUS PROJECT ELEVATIONS
14. BONUS PROJECT SECTIONS
15. TYPICAL UNIT
16. GROUP HOUSING UNIT - PRECEDENT
17. COMMUNITY KITCHEN AND DINING ROOM
18. TURK STREET FACADE & MATERIAL PALETTE
19. STREET VIEW


PROJECT DESCRIPTION


2. UPPER STORY SETBACK:  Waive potential setback/height limitations 
above 50’-0” per Sec. 132.2 because compliance with these limitations 
would preclude the development of a 50% increase in Unit density.


3. REAR YARD: Waive rear yard requirements per Sec. 134 and Table 
209.3 because providing a Code-compliant rear yard that is 25% the 
depth of the Lot would preclude the development of a 50% increase in 
Unit density.


The building is 9 stories over 1 basement level with a height of 
86’-0”.


The average Unit size is 220 gsf. The building has a (Residential) 
Gross Floor Area (GFA) of 32,722 sf. (45) Class I and (6) Class II 
bicycle parking spaces are provided. There is no automobile parking.
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30


30


PROJECT INFO


PROJECT NAME


BLOCK/LOT


ADDRESS


PRIMARY OCCUPANCY


GROSS BUILDING AREA


DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
or PERMIT APPLICANT
(sign & date)


 
NEW CONSTRUCTION ALTERATIONS + ADDITIONS


LOW-RISE 
RESIDENTIAL


HIGH-RISE 
RESIDENTIAL


LARGE NON-
RESIDENTIAL


OTHER NON-
RESIDENTIAL


RESIDENTIAL 
MAJOR


ALTERATIONS 
+ ADDITIONS


OTHER 
RESIDENTIAL 
ALTERATIONS 
+ ADDITIONS


NON-RESIDENTIAL 
MAJOR


ALTERATIONS
+ ADDITIONS


FIRST-TIME 
NON-RESIDENTIAL


INTERIORS


OTHER NON-
RESIDENTIAL 
INTERIORS, 


ALTERATIONS 
+ ADDITIONS


R
1-3 Floors


R
4+ Floors


A,B,E,I,M
25,000 sq.ft. 


or greater


F,H,L,S,U
or


A,B,E,I,M less
than 25,000 sq.ft.


R
25,000 sq.ft. 


or greater


R
adds any amount of 


conditioned area


B,M
25,000 sq.ft. 


or greater


A,B,I,M
25,000 sq.ft. 


or greater


A,B,E,F,H,L,I,M,S,U
more than 1,000 sq.ft. 


or $200,000


LE
ED


/G
PR Required LEED or 


GPR Certification Level


SFGBC 4.103.1.1, 


4.103.2.1, 4.103.3.1, 


5.103.1.1, 5.103.3.1 


& 5.103.4.1


Project is required to achieve sustainability certification listed at right. LEED SILVER (50+) 
or GPR (75+)
CERTIFIED


LEED SILVER (50+) 
or GPR (75+)
CERTIFIED


LEED GOLD (60+)
CERTIFIED n/r  LEED GOLD (60+) 


or GPR (75+)
CERTIFIED


n/r LEED GOLD (60+)
CERTIFIED


LEED GOLD (60+)
CERTIFIED n/r


LEED/GPR Point Adjustment for 
Retention/Demolition of Historic 


Features/Building
SFGBC 4.104, 4.105, 


5.104 & 5.105
Enter any applicable point adjustments in box at right.


______ ______ ______
n/r


______
n/r


______ ______
n/r


M
AT


ER
IA


LS


LOW-EMITTING MATERIALS
CALGreen 4.504.2.1-5 


& 5.504.4.1-6, SFGBC 


4.103.3.2,  5.103.1.9,  


5.103.3.2 & 5.103.4.2


Use products that comply with the emission limit requirements of 4.504.2.1-5, 5.504.4.1-6 for adhesives, sealants, paints, coatings, carpet systems including cushions 
and adhesives, resilient flooring (80% of area), and composite wood products.
Major alterations to existing residential buildings must use low-emitting coatings, adhesives and sealants, and carpet systems that meet the requirements for GPR 
measures K2, K3 and L2 or LEED EQc2, as applicable. 


New large non-residential interiors and major alterations to existing residential and non-residential buildings must also use interior paints, coatings, sealants, and 
adhesives when applied on-site, flooring and composite wood that meet the requirements of LEED credit Low-Emitting Materials (EQc2).   


4.504.2.1-5 4.504.2.1-5 LEED EQc2 5.504.4.1-6 LEED EQc2 or
GPR K2, K3 & L2 4.504.2.1-5 LEED EQc2 LEED EQc2 5.504.4.1-6


W
AT


ER


INDOOR WATER USE 
REDUCTION


CALGreen 4.303.1 


& 5.303.3, 


SFGBC 5.103.1.2, 


SF Housing Code 


sec.12A10, 


SF Building Code ch.13A


Meet flush/flow requirements for: toilets (1.28gpf); urinals (0.125gpf wall, 0.5gpf floor); showerheads (2.0gpm); lavatories (1.2gpm private, 0.5gpm public/common); 
kitchen faucets (1.8gpm); wash fountains (1.8gpm); metering faucets (0.2gpc); food waste disposers (1gpm/8gpm).
Residential projects must upgrade all non-compliant fixtures per SF Housing Code sec.12A10. Large non-residential interiors, alterations & additions must upgrade all 
non-compliant fixtures per SF Building Code ch.13A.
New large non-residential buildings must also achieve minimum 30% indoor potable water use reduction as calculated to meet LEED credit Indoor Water Use Reduction 
(WEc2).


● ● LEED WEc2 
(2 pts) ● ● ● ● ● ● 


NON-POTABLE WATER REUSE Health Code art.12C  
New buildings ≥ 40,000 sq.ft. must calculate a water budget. New buildings ≥250,000 sq.ft. must treat and use available rainwater, graywater, and foundation drainage 
and use in toilet and urinal flushing and irrigation. See www.sfwater.org for details. n/r ● ● n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r


WATER-EFFICIENT 
IRRIGATION Administrative Code ch.63  


New construction projects with aggregated landscape area ≥500 sq.ft., or existing projects with modified landscape area ≥1,000 sq.ft. shall use low water use plants or 
climate appropriate plants, restrict turf areas and comply with Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance restrictions by calculated ETAF (.55 for residential, .45 for 
non-residential or less) or by prescriptive compliance for projects with ≤2,500 sq.ft. of landscape area. See www.sfwater.org for details.


● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


WATER METERING CALGreen 5.303.1 Provide submeters for spaces projected to consume >1,000gal/day (or >100gal/day in buildings >50,000 sq.ft.). n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r ● ● ● 


EN
ER


G
Y


ENERGY EFFICIENCY CA Energy Code Comply with all provisions of the CA Title 24 Part 6 Energy Standards. ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


BETTER ROOFS SFGBC 4.201.1 


& 5.201.1.2 


New non-residential buildings >2,000 sq.ft. and ≤10 occupied floors, and new residential buildings of any size and ≤10 occupied floors, must designate 15% of roof 
Solar Ready, per Title 24 rules. Install photovoltaics or solar hot water systems in this area. With Planning Department approval, projects subject to SFPUC Stormwater 
Requirements may substitute living roof for solar energy systems.


● ≤10 floors  ● ● n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r


RENEWABLE ENERGY SFGBC 5.201.1.3
Non-residential buildings with ≥11 floors must acquire at least 1% of energy from on-site renewable sources, purchase green energy credits, or achieve 5 points under 
LEED credit Optimize Energy Performance (EAc2). n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r


COMMISSIONING (Cx) CALGreen 


5.410.2 - 5.410.4.5.1


For projects ≥10,000 sq.ft, include OPR, BOD, and commissioning plan in design & construction. Commission to comply. Alterations & additions with new HVAC 
equipment must test and adjust all equipment.  n/r n/r LEED EAc1


opt. 1 ● n/r n/r ● ● ● 


PA
R


K
IN


G


BICYCLE PARKING CALGreen 5.106.4, 


Planning Code 155.1-2  
Provide short- and long-term bike parking equal to 5% of motorized vehicle parking, or meet SF Planning Code sec.155.1-2, whichever is greater. SF Planning 


Code sec.155.1-2  
SF Planning 


Code sec.155.1-2 ● ●
 if applicable 
SF Planning 


Code sec.155.1-2


if applicable 
SF Planning 


Code sec.155.1-2
● ● if >10  


stalls added


DESIGNATED PARKING CALGreen 5.106.5.2 Mark 8% of total parking stalls for low-emitting, fuel efficient, and carpool/van pool vehicles. n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r ● ● if >10  
stalls added


WIRING FOR EV CHARGERS SFGBC 4.106.4 


& 5.106.5.3 


Permit application January 2018 or after: Construct all new off-street parking spaces for passenger vehicles and trucks with dimensions capable of installing EVSE. 
Install service capacity and panelboards sufficient to provide ≥40A 208 or 240V to EV chargers at 20% of spaces. Install ≥40A 208 or 240V branch circuits to ≥10% of 
spaces, terminating close to the proposed EV charger location. Installation of chargers is not required. Projects with zero off-street parking exempt. See SFGBC 4.106.4 
or SFGBC 5.106.5.3 for details. 
Permit applications prior to January 2018 only: Install infrastructure to provide electricity for EV chargers at 6% of spaces for non-residential (CalGreen 5.106.5.3), 3% of 
spaces for multifamily with ≥17 units (CalGreen 4.106.4.2), and each space in 1-2 unit dwellings (CalGreen 4.106.4.1). Installation of chargers is not required.


● ● ● ●
applicable for 


permit application 
January 2018 


or after
n/r


applicable for 
permit application 


January 2018 
or after


n/r n/r


W
A


ST
E 


D
IV


ER
SI


O
N RECYCLING BY OCCUPANTS SF Building Code  


AB-088
Provide adequate space and equal access for storage, collection and loading of compostable, recyclable and landfill materials. ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


CONSTRUCTION & 
DEMOLITION (C&D) 


WASTE MANAGEMENT


SFGBC 4.103.2.3 


& 5.103.1.3.1, 


Environment Code ch.14, 


SF Building Code ch.13B  


For 100% of mixed C&D debris use registered transporters and registered processing facilities with a minimum of 65% diversion rate. Divert a minimum of 75% of total 
C&D debris if noted. ● 75% diversion 75% diversion ● ● ● ● 75% diversion ●


H
VA


C


HVAC INSTALLER QUALS CALGreen 4.702.1 Installers must be trained and certified in best practices. ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r n/r


HVAC DESIGN CALGreen 4.507.2 HVAC shall be designed to ACCA Manual J, D, and S. ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r n/r


REFRIGERANT MANAGEMENT CALGreen 5.508.1 Use no halons or CFCs in HVAC. n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r ● ● ●


G
O


O
D


 
N


EI
G


H
B


O
R


LIGHT POLLUTION 
REDUCTION


CA Energy Code, 


CALGreen 5.106.8  
Comply with CA Energy Code for Lighting Zones 1-4. Comply with 5.106.8 for Backlight/Uplight/Glare. n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r ● ● ●


BIRD-SAFE BUILDINGS Planning Code  


sec.139
Glass facades and bird hazards facing and/or near Urban Bird Refuges may need to treat their glass for opacity. ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


TOBACCO SMOKE CONTROL CALGreen 5.504.7,  


Health Code art.19F


For non-residential projects, prohibit smoking within 25 feet of building entries, air intakes, and operable windows.
For residential projects, prohibit smoking within 10 feet of building entries, air intakes, and operable windows and enclosed common areas.


● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


PO
LL


U
TI


O
N


 
PR


EV
EN


TI
O


N STORMWATER 
CONTROL PLAN


Public Works Code  


art.4.2 sec.147


Projects disturbing ≥5,000 sq.ft. in combined or separate sewer areas, or replacing ≥2,500 impervious sq.ft. in separate sewer area, must implement a Stormwater 
Control Plan meeting SFPUC Stormwater Management Requirements. See www.sfwater.org for details. ● ● ● ● if project extends 


outside envelope
if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


CONSTRUCTION 
SITE RUNOFF CONTROLS


Public Works Code 


art.4.2 sec.146  
Provide a construction site Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and implement SFPUC Best Management Practices. See www.sfwater.org for details. if disturbing 


≥5,000 sq.ft. ● if disturbing 
≥5,000 sq.ft.


if disturbing 
≥5,000 sq.ft.


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


if project extends 
outside envelope


IN
D


O
O


R
 


EN
VI


R
O


N
M


EN
TA


L 
Q


U
A


LI
TY


ACOUSTICAL CONTROL
CALGreen 5.507.4.1-3,


SF Building Code  


sec.1207


Non-residential projects must comply with sound transmission limits (STC-50 exteriors near freeways/airports; STC-45 exteriors if 65db Leq at any time; STC-40 interior 
walls/floor-ceilings between tenants). 
New residential projects’ interior noise due to exterior sources shall not exceed 45dB. 


 ● ● ● ● n/r n/r ● ● ● 


AIR FILTRATION 
(CONSTRUCTION)


CALGreen 4.504.1-3 


& 5.504.1-3
Seal permanent HVAC ducts/equipment stored onsite before installation. ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● 


AIR FILTRATION 
(OPERATIONS)


CALGreen 5.504.5.3, 


SF Health Code art.38  


Non-residential projects must provide MERV-8 filters on HVAC for regularly occupied, actively ventilated spaces. 
Residential new construction and major alteration & addition projects in Air Pollutant Exposure Zones per SF Health Code art.38 must provide MERV-13 filters on HVAC.  


if applicable if applicable ● ● if applicable n/r ● ● ●


CONSTRUCTION IAQ 
MANAGEMENT PLAN SFGBC 5.103.1.8 During construction, meet SMACNA IAQ guidelines; provide MERV-8 filters on all HVAC. n/r n/r LEED EQc3 n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r n/r


R
ES


ID
EN


TI
A


L


GRADING & PAVING CALGreen 4.106.3 Show how surface drainage (grading, swales, drains, retention areas) will keep surface water from entering the building. ● ● n/r n/r if applicable if applicable  n/r  n/r  n/r 


RODENT PROOFING CALGreen 4.406.1 Seal around pipe, cable, conduit, and other openings in exterior walls with cement mortar or DBI-approved similar method. ● ● n/r n/r ● ●  n/r  n/r  n/r 


FIREPLACES & 
WOODSTOVES CALGreen 4.503.1 Install only direct-vent or sealed-combustion, EPA Phase II-compliant appliances. ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r n/r  n/r 


CAPILLARY BREAK, 
SLAB ON GRADE CALGreen 4.505.2


Slab on grade foundation requiring vapor retarder also requires a capillary break such as: 4 inches of base 1/2-inch aggregate under retarder; slab design specified by 
licensed professional. ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r  n/r  n/r 


MOISTURE CONTENT CALGreen 4.505.3 Wall and floor wood framing must have <19% moisture content before enclosure. ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r  n/r  n/r 


BATHROOM EXHAUST CALGreen 4.506.1
Must be ENERGY STAR compliant, ducted to building exterior, and its humidistat shall be capable of adjusting between <50% to >80% (humidistat may be separate 
component). ● ● n/r n/r ● ● n/r  n/r n/r


                                     
CHECK THE ONE COLUMN


THAT BEST DESCRIBES YOUR PROJECT


INSTRUCTIONS:
1. Select one (1) column to identify requirements for the project. For addition and alteration projects, 
applicability of specific requirements may depend upon project scope.  
2. Provide the Project Information in the box at the right. 
3. A LEED or GreenPoint Rated Scorecard is not required with the site permit application, but using such tools 
as early as possible is recommended.
4. To ensure legibility of DBI archives, submittal must be a minimum of 24” x 36”. 


SOURCE OF
REQUIREMENTTITLE DESCRIPTION OF REQUIREMENT


Attachment GS2, GS3, GS4, GS5 or GS6 will be due with the applicable addendum. A separate “FINAL COMPLIANCE 
VERIFICATION” form will be required prior to Certificate of Completion. For details, see Administrative Bulletin 93. 
For Municipal projects, additional Environment Code Chapter 7 requirements may apply; see GS6. 


GS1: San Francisco Green Building Site Permit Submittal Form
Form version: February 1, 2018 (For permit applications January 2017 - December 2019)


X 468 TURK ST.


0336-006


468 TURK ST.


R-2


36,838 GSF


01/28/2020







 


PAGE 3   OF  19


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


04/07/2021S ITE  PHOTOS


1 2







 


PAGE 4   OF  19


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


04/07/2021V ICINITY MAP1”  =  75 ’ -0”


225'0' 150'75'25' 50' PROJECT NORTH


S


W E


LEGEND


FIRE HYDRANT


PHOTO


TRANSIT STOP


LOADING ZONE


BIKE LANE


150' SITE ENVELOPE


#


H


H


H


H


H


HH


H
1 2


TURK STREET
(R.O.W. = 68'-9")


150'-0"  TYP.


LA
RK


IN
 S


TR
EE


T
(R


.O
.W


. =
 7


5'
-6


")


SITE







 


PAGE 5  OF 19


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


11/13/2020SURVEY1”  =  30 ’ -0”


90'0' 60'30' PROJECT NORTH


S


W E


30


30







 


PAGE 6   OF  19


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


04/07/2021


PROPOSED BONUS PROJECT







 


PAGE 7   OF  19


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


04/07/2021DENSITY BONUS WAIVER & CONCESS ION DIAGRAMS


BUILDING HEIGHT REQUIREMENT
WOULD PHYSICALLY PRECLUDE


BONUS UNITS


WAIVE BUILDING HEIGHT
REQUIREMENTS PER S.F.P.C. SEC. 250


1WAIVER


20'-0" (25%) WOULD BE NEEDED
TO ACHIEVE "REAR YARD" REQUIREMENT


15'-0" (18.8%) "REAR YARD" PROPOSED


SETBACK REQUIREMENT
WOULD PHYSICALLY PRECLUDE


BONUS UNITS


WAIVE UPPER STORY SETBACK
 PER S.F.P.C. SEC. 132.2


REAR YARD REQUIREMENT
WOULD PHYSICALLY PRECLUDE


BONUS UNITS


WAIVE REAR YARD
REQUIREMENT PER S.F.P.C. SEC. 134 & TABLE 209.3


3WAIVER


NOTE: THE PROJECT IS STILL PROVIDING A
15'-0" (18.8%) REAR YARD SETBACK.


WAIVER


50
'-0


"


BASE STUDY = 21'-11 1/2"
( ≥ 20'-0")


80
'-0


"


86
'-0


"


2
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04/07/2021BONUS PROJECT DESCRIPT ION & DATA


DESCRIPTION


A STATE DENSITY BONUS LAW (SDBL) PROJECT CONSISTING OF RENTAL GROUP HOUSING.


PLANNING DATA


ASSESSOR PARCEL: BLOCK 0336 / LOT 006
ZONING: RC-4


HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL-COMMERCIAL


HEIGHT & BULK DISTRICT: 80-T
LOT AREA: 4,667 +/- SF (0.107 AC)


NOTE: SFPUC STORMWATER "SMALL PROJECT"


SPECIAL USE DISTRICT: NORTH OF MARKET RESIDENTIAL
HISTORIC DISTRICT UPTOWN TENDERLOIN HISTORIC DISTRICT


GROSS SQUARE FEET OF CONSTRUCTION: 36,860 SF
GROSS FLOOR AREA: 35,090 SF


"RESIDENTIAL" GROSS FLOOR AREA: 32,722 SF
(PER PLANNING DIRECTOR BULLETIN 6, JULY 2019)


UNITS: 101
- MAX. TOTAL BEDS = 202


USABLE OPEN SPACE: 2,230 SF
- (101) COMMON @ 48/3 SF = 1,616 SF REQ'D


BICYCLE PARKING: 45 CLASS I SPACES
  (45 REQ'D.)
- PLUS (6) CLASS II PROVIDED
  (4 REQ'D.)


AUTOMOBILE PARKING: 0 SPACES
-NONE REQUIRED


BUILDING DATA


STORIES: 9 + BASEMENT
CONSTRUCTION TYPE: IB


-FULLY SPRINKLERED


BUILDING HEIGHT: 86'-0"
- TOP MOST OCCUPIED STORY I.E., 9TH FLOOR,
  @ 74'-6" (<+75'-0") THEREFORE, NOT A HIGHRISE


BUILDING USE: CONGREGATE RESIDENCE
- 100% PRIVATELY FUNDED
- SUBJECT TO S.F.B.C. CHAPTER 11A


OCCUPANCY TYPE: R2


AREA SUMMARY


  LEVEL B 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 R GSF GSF% GFA*


  RESIDENTIAL 1,089 1,319 1,319 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 0 22,186 60% 22,186


 RESIDENTIAL SHARED LIVING SPACES 431 854 785 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 0 3,197 9% 3,197


  BICYCLE PARKING 386 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 386 1% 0


  UTILITY 823 352 95 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 228 1,939 5% 888


  CIRCULATION 842 1,126 789 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 333 9,152 25% 8,819


  TOTAL 3,571 3,651 2,988 3,727 3,727 3,727 3,727 3,727 3,727 3,727 561 36,860 100% 35,090


 *   GFA per San Francisco Planning Code Sec. 102 


UNIT SUMMARY


  LEVEL B 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 R GSF QTY% GFA*


  UNIT TYPE AVG. SF


  BD 220
QTY 5 6 6 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 0 101


100% 22,186
SF 1,089 1,319 1,319 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 0 22,186


  TOTAL 220
QTY 5 6 6 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 0 101


100% 22,186
SF 1,089 1,319 1,319 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 2,637 0 22,186


 *   GFA per San Francisco Planning Code Sec. 102 


OPEN SPACE AREA SUMMARY


  LEVEL B 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 R GSF


  USABLE OPEN SPACE 860 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,370 2,230


(944 BDRM/AC)


PROVIDED


SUBAREA 1


(PER SFPC SEC. 102)
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04/07/2021S ITE  PLAN1”  =  30 ’ -0”


90'0' 60'30' PROJECT NORTH


S


W E


80
.0


0


58.33


80
.0


0


58.33


INDICATES OUTLINE OF
(E) STRUCTURE TO BE
REMOVED


TURK STREET
(R.O.W. = 68'-9")


(E) LOADING (E) PARKING(E) BUS STOP


500-514 LARKIN
BLOCK 0336/LOT 008


6 STORIES


430-440 TURK
BLOCK 0336/LOT 030-032


2 TO 9 STORIES


528-532 LARKIN
BLOCK 0336/LOT 011


6 STORIES


(E) TREE, TYP.TREE, TYP.


AVG. SLOPE: 1.08%
BU


IL
DI


NG
 L


EN
GT


H
= 


65
'-0


"


BUILDING WIDTH
= 57'-4"


BUILDING DIAGONAL
= 86'- 8"
(≤ 125'-0")


NOTE: AVG. DOWNWARD SLOPE
OF SITE IS 1.08 %


FROM WEST TO EAST


PROPOSED
STRUCTURE


9 STORIES


(≤ 110'-0")


(≤
 11


0'
-0


")
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04/07/2021BONUS PROJECT PLAN DIAGRAMS1”  =  20 ’ -0”


60'0' 40'20'5' 10' PROJECT NORTH


S


W E


BD
(230 SF)


80
.0


0


80
.0


0


58.33


EL.= +0'-0"


TRC
(TRASH, 
RECYCLING & 
COMPOST)
(309 SF)


EL.= -0'-4" EL.= +0'-0"
(HEIGHT DATUM)


EL.= 104.44 PER SURVEY


EL.= +0'-4"


EL.= -0'-1 1/2" 
EL.= +0'-3 1/2"


SERVICE
ENTRY


MAIN RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY


MAIL/PARCEL COMMUNITY LIVING ROOM
- SHARED LIVING


(E) STREET PARKING
TO REMAIN, TYP.


BIKE RACK, TYP.
(6 CLASS-II SPACES)


TOTAL
- "CIRCULAR" RACK


(SQUARE TUBING) IN COMPLIANCE
W/ 2.A. BULLETIN #9)


U
LOBBY


INDEPENDENT ENTRY TO
COMMUNITY ROOM


(E) LOADING
ZONE


TO REMAIN


X-FORMER VAULT
BELOW SIDEWALK


(N) STREET TREE, TYP.
- MATCH SPECIES


OF (E) NEIGHBORING TREE


OPEN TO
"REAR YARD"


BELOW


A A


B


B


(E) NEIGHBORING
STREET TREE


BD
(230 SF)


28
'-0


"


M
IN


. 2
5'


-0
" 


RE
Q'


D
PE


R 
SF


PC
 S


EC
. 1


45
(c


)(3
)


3'
-0


"
25


'-0
"


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BATH


ELEV


U D


D U


BASEMENT LEVEL 1ST FLOOR / STREET LEVEL 2ND FLOOR


80
.0


0


58.33


OPEN TO
BELOW


COMMUNITY KITCHEN
- SHARED FOOD PREP & DINING


OPEN TO
BELOW


BD
(230 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(230 SF)


58.33


D


PROPERTY MGMT.
- OVERLOOKING LOBBY ENTRY &
  COMMUNITY ROOM BELOW


EL.= +9'-3 3/4"


ELEV


A A


B


B


CONVENIENCE
(SPIRAL) STAIR


- NOT REQ'D


TYPICAL UNIT


VIEW


VIEW


VIEW


BATH


SHAFT, TYP.


U D


D U


80
.0


0


K


(SEE P. 17)


EL.= -9'-4" EL.= +0'-0" EL.= +9'-3 3/4"


SERVICE
(771 SF)


80
.0


0


80
.0


0


58.33


58.33


EL.= -9'-4"


REAR YARD
(COMMON USABLE OPEN SPACE)


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
(860 SF)


EL.= -9'-4"


58'-4"


57'-4"6" GAP 6" GAP


80
'-0


"


65
'-0


"
15


'-0
"


(18
.8


 %
)


3'
-0


"PL
.


PL
.


PL. PL.


THICK CONC. PAD FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CRANE
- TO REMAIN IN FINISHED PROJECT 
TO SERVE AS PATIO SPACE


A A


B


B


X-FORMER
VAULT


12


6'-0" MIN. CLR., TYP.


BD
(230 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


BD
(215 SF)


12


12


BATH


SHAFT, TYP.


COMMUNITY
LAUNDRY


U


U


BIKE PARKING
(45) CLASS I SPACES


-HIGH DENSITY "DERO DECKER"
SYSTEM OR APPROVED EQUAL


9
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


23
'-0


"
15


'-0
"


(18
.8


 %
)


PL
.


PL.


19
'-0


"
23


'-0
"


PL
.


PL.


58'-4"


57'-4"6" GAP 6" GAP


10'-0" 9'-4" 9'-4" 9'-4" 9'-4" 10'-0"


58.33


• SOFA-WALL BED
• SHOWER-TOILET COMPARTMENT W/ EXHAUST FAN
• LIMITED COOKING FACILITIES (PER Z.A. INTERPRETATION 209.2(a))


- SINK
- UNDERCOUNTER REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER
- CONVECTION MICROWAVE W/ EXHAUST FAN
- PLUG-IN 2-BURNER INDUCTION COOKTOP
- STORAGE CABINETS


• WARDROBE
• DINING/WORKTABLE W/ 2-CHAIRS


TYPICAL UNIT


A


B


B


A


BATH


D=86'-8"


DA=61'-9 1/4"


D=68'-4 7/8"


35'-0">DA/3


24'-2">DB/3


U D


D U


SHAFT, TYP.


80
.0


0


(SEE P. 15 & 16)


BATH


80
.0


0


58.33


D


ELEV


58.33


BBQ


COMMUNITY
TABLE


A VARIETY OF SEATING
/LOUNGING OPTIONS


(OPTIONAL)
NORTH ROOF DECK
- EL=+86'-0"


SOUTH ROOF DECK
COMMON USABLE OPEN SPACE


(1,370 SF)
EL=+86'-0"


(HEIGHT DATUM)


MECH.


D=83'-0 1/8"


17'-9"


A


B


B


A
76'-8">/=D/3


SERVICE


EL=+86'-0"


D
SHAFT, TYP.


80
.0


0


GLASS ENCLOSURE
PER ELEVATOR


MANUFACTURER
WARRANTY


REQUIREMENTS


3RD FLOOR (4TH,5TH,6TH,7TH, 8TH & 9TH SIM.)


EL.= +18'-7 1/2"/+27'-11  1/4"/+37'-3"/+46'-6  3/4"/+55'-10 1/2"/+65'-2 1/4"/+74'-6"


LOWER ROOF LEVEL


EL.= +86'-0"


ELEVATOR PENTHOUSE
EL = +102'-0"


T.O. PARAPET
EL = +102'-0"
- SCREEN CONCEALING 
ROOFTOP MECH. EQUIPMENT
& SOLAR PANELS


T.O. STAIR/MECH. PENTHOUSE
EL = +96'-0"
(HEIGHT DATUM)


21
'-6


"
20


'-0
"


21
'-6


"


SOLAR SUNSHADE
MIN. 15% OF TOTAL ROOF AREA
(559 SF MIN.)
EL=+96'-O"


A


B


B


A


80
.0


0


80
.0


0


58.33


58.33


3'
-0


"
3'


-0
"


CAGED MAINTENANCE
ACCESS LADDER


MECH UNIT, TYP.


UPPER ROOF LEVEL


EL.= +96'-0"/+102'-0"
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04/07/2021BONUS PROJECT ELEVATIONS1”  =  20 ’ -0”


60'0' 40'20'5' 10'
TYPICAL RECESSED WINDOW


HIGH-PERFORMANCE
WINDOW SYSTEM


4"≈
MIN.


FACE OF FINISH @
EXTERIOR WALLTRC/


SERVICE


1ST FLOOR
+0'-0"


2ND FLOOR
+9' 3 3/4"


3RD FLOOR
+18'-7 1/2"


4TH FLOOR
+27'-11 1/4"


5TH FLOOR
+37'-3"


T.O. STAIR/ MECH. PENTHOUSE/
SOLAR SUNSHADE


+96'-0"


T.O. MECH. SCREEN
+100'-0"


T.O. PARAPET
+90'-0"


6TH FLOOR
+46'-6 3/4"


7TH FLOOR
+55'-10 1/2"


8TH FLOOR
+65'-2 1/4"


9TH FLOOR
+74'-6"


PROPERTY LINE, TYP.


ROOF
+86'-0"


BASEMENT/REAR YARD
-9'-4"


+0'-0"
EL.= 104.44
PER SURVEY


MAIN RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY


10'-8"46'-8"


4'-6" 14'-0" 3'-8" 14'-0" 3'-8" 14'-0" 4'-6"


WEST P.L.
+0'-4"


EAST P.L.
-0'-4"


SERVICE
ENTRY


(E) NEIGHBORING BUILDING
(500-514 LARKIN)


(E) NEIGHBORING PODIUM
(430-440 TURK)


HIGH-PERFORMANCE WINDOW, TYP.
(RECESSED 4" MIN. FROM FACE OF WALL)


PILASTER, TYP.
- SMOOTH COMPOSITE STONE


BULKHEAD
- (18-INCH HIGH)


- ROUGH COMPOSITE STONE


ACRYLIC-COAT STUCCO FINISH, TYP.
- ALTERNATE: FIBER-CEMENT


VE
RT


IC
AL


 F
AC


AD
E 


M
OD


UL
AT


IO
N


BA
SE


M
ID


DL
E


(V
ER


TI
CA


L 
EM


PH
AS


IS
)


TO
P


B


B


LOBBY & COMMUNITY ROOM
(ACTIVE USE)


(33'-4" / 46'-8" = 71% TRANSPARENCY)


B


B


NO UNINTERRUPTED GLAZING
SEGMENTS 24 SF OR LARGER, TYP.


"DATUM"
(HEIGHT DATUM)


(HEIGHT DATUM)


BELT COURSE, TYP.
- METAL CHANNEL


HIGH-QUALITY MOLDED
ALUMINUM VENT-CAP, TYP.


PROJECTING CORNICE
- METAL


SOLAR SUNSHADE
- SOLAR PANELS


(PHOTOVOLTAIC AND/OR SOLAR HOT-WATER)
- MIN. 15% OF TOTAL ROOF AREA


METAL CHANNEL


PROJECTING CANOPY
AT RESIDENTIAL ENTRY


T.O. ELEV. PENTHOUSE
+102'-0"


PROJECTING WATER TABLE


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


CAGED ACCESS LADDER


T.O. MECH. SCREEN
+100'-0"


T.O. ELEV. PENTHOUSE
+102'-0"


SOUTH ELEVATION
(TURK STREET)


NORTH ELEVATION
(REAR YARD)
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


ACRYLIC-COAT STUCCO, TYP.
- ALTERNATE: FIBER-CEMENT


SOLAR SUNSHADESHEETMETAL COPING, TYP.


FIRE-RATED PROPERTY
LINE WINDOW, TYP.


- OPTIONAL


GUARDRAIL PER CODE


(E) NEIGHBORING BUILDING BEYOND
(430-440 TURK)


(E) NEIGHBORING
BUILDING


(528-532 LARKIN)


A


A


(HEIGHT DATUM)


3'-0"
MAX.


3'-0"
MAX.


T.O. STAIR/ MECH. PENTHOUSE/
SOLAR SUNSHADE


+96'-0"


T.O. PARAPET
+90'-0"


ROOF
+86'-0"


(HEIGHT DATUM)


PROJECTING CANOPY
AT RESIDENTIAL ENTRY6'-0"


MAX.


T.O. MECH. SCREEN
+100'-0"


T.O. ELEV. PENTHOUSE
+102'-0"


PROJECTING WATER TABLE


2'-0" 4"


METAL CHANNEL


SMOOTH COMPOSITE STONE


ROUGH COMPOSITE STONE


2'-0"


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


SHEETMETAL COPING, TYP.


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


4'-0"
MAX.


T.O. MECH. SCREEN
+100'-0"


T.O. ELEV. PENTHOUSE
+102'-0"


PROJECTING WATER TABLE


2'-0"4"


WEST ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION
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04/07/2021BONUS PROJECT SECTIONS1”  =  20 ’ -0”


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


BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BD BD BD BD BD BD


BICYCLE
PARKING SERVICE


COMMUNITY ROOM


COMMUNITY
KITCHEN


PROP.
MGMT.


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


ELEVATOR PENTHOUSE/OVERTRAVEL


SOLAR SUNSHADE


SERVICE


COMMUNITY
ROOM


CIRCULATION, TYP.


X-FORMER VAULT


GUARDRAIL
PER CODE


(E) NEIGHBORING BUILDING
(528-532 LARKIN)


A


A


(HEIGHT DATUM)


(HEIGHT DATUM)3'-0"
MAX.


3'-0"
MAX. (E) NEIGHBORING BUILDING BEYOND


(500-514 LARKIN)


PROJECTING CANOPY
AT RESIDENTIAL ENTRY


4'-0"
MAX.


T.O. MECH. SCREEN
+100'-0"


T.O. ELEV. PENTHOUSE
+102'-0"


PROJECTING WATER TABLE


4"


SECTION "A-A" SECTION "B-B"
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ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION APPLICATION (EEA) & STATE DENSITY BONUS APPLICATION
468 TURK STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102


BLOCK 0336 LOT 006


04/02/21


PAGE  SKA-019  OF XX


Typ. Unit 15 of 18


1 SOFA-WALL-BED 


WARDROBE / STORAGE 


SHOWER / WATERCLOSET


FLIP-UP TABLE W/ CHAIRS


KITCHENETTE 


HEAT, COOLING & AIR-FILTERING UNIT


UNIT SIZE = 220 GSF


NOTE: 	 SEE COMMENTS ON THESE PHOTOS; NEXT PAGE (P.16)


2 3


4 5 6


- QUEEN - ”LIMITED COOKING FACILITIES”
  PER ZA INTERPRETATION SEC. 209.2 (A)


2


1


4


5


6
4


3
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04/07/2021GROUP HOUSING UNIT PRECEDENT 04/07/2021


•	 THESE ARE PHOTOGRAPHS OF A FULL-SIZED MOCK-UP OF 
A TYPICAL GROUP HOUSING UNIT FOR “351 12TH STREET”.


•	 “351 12TH STREET” IS A GROUP HOUSING PROJECT 
       APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON 
       OCTOBER 17, 2019.


•	 “468 TURK STREET” IS DESIGNED BY MACY ARCHITECTURE, 
THE SAME ARCHITECT THAT DESIGNED “351 12TH STREET”.


•	 “351 12TH STREET” AVERAGE UNIT SIZE:               = +178 GSF
						             
•	 “468 TURK STREET” AVERAGE UNIT SIZE:              = +220 GSF


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


NOTE: 		  SEE “1ST FLOOR /
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
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04/07/2021TURK STREET FAC ADE & MATERIAL  PALETTE


ACRYLIC COAT STUCCO 
FINISH


- INTEGRALLY-COLORED


ALUMINUM  VENT CAP
- AIR INTAKE & EXHAUST


SMOOTH COMPOSITE STONE


METAL


ROUGH COMPOSITE STONE


WINDOW SYSTEM
- HIGH PERFORMANCE
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EXHIBIT 







Cuisinart ICT-60 Double Induction Cooktop, 
One Size, Black  
Style Name: Cuisinart Induction Cooktop  
Brand  Cuisinart 


Material  Glass  


Color  Black  


Item Dimensions LxWxH 5.25 x 26.75 x 17 inches 


Item Weight  11.6 Pounds 


Heating Elements  2  


Controls Type  Touch  


 


About this item  
 Induction technology for fast heat-up and consistent heat throughout cooking. Must use 


with induction-ready cookware  
 Dual heat settings: 8 settings on the left burner, 5 settings on the right burner. 


Dimensions: LWH: 14.25" x 23.5" x 2.5"  
 Individual 150-minute timers and ON/OFF switches for each burner  
 Throws off less heat so kitchens stay cooler.MC Cubic Feet: 3.29  
 Heat turns off 30 seconds after pot or pan is removed.UC Cubic Feet: 1.38  


   







 


   







 


 


1. WINDOW SYSTEM  


‐ HIGH‐PERFORMANCE THERMAL ALUMINUM  


‐ DARK BRONZE ANODIZED  


 


2. MECHANICAL SOFFIT  


‐ ENERGY RECOVERY VENTILATOR  


‐ MERV 13 FILTRATION  


‐ FIRE SPRINKLER PIPING  


‐ SUB‐METERING OF ALL UTILITIES  


 
3. TV / SCREEN CABINET  


‐ UPPER SHELVES  


‐ SCREEN‐HIDING PANELS  


‐ FOLD‐DOWN TABLE/DESK  


 
4. SLIDING DOOR  


‐ WITH INSET MIRROR  


 
5. SINK / STORAGE CABINET  


‐ UPPER CABINET W/ ETCHED MIRROR SLIDING DOORS & OPEN‐BOTTOMED DISH‐DRYING/ STORAGE SHELF  


‐ CUSTOM S.S. SINK W/ INTEGRAL DRAIN BOARD & SLIDING, FLUSH CUTTING BOARD  


 
6. WARDROBE / STORAGE CABINET  


‐ WARDROBE/STORAGE CABINET W/ BI‐PASSING SOLID‐SURFACE DOOR PANELS  


 
7. 2‐HOUR FIRE‐RATED SHAFT  


‐ 90‐MINUTE FIRE‐RATE DOOR  


‐ FLOOR‐TO‐CEILING FOR MAXIMUM ACCESS  


 
8. TOILET / SHOWER COMPARTMENT  


‐ WALL‐HUNG TOILET W/ IN‐WALL TANK  


‐ SEMI‐RECESSED STORAGE CABINET & WALL NICHE  


‐ ADJUSTABLE‐HEIGHT SHOWER HEAD  


‐ GRAB/TOWEL/TOILETRIES BAR  


‐ REMOVEABLE S.S. QUICK‐DRY FLOOR GRATE OVER CUSTOM S.S. SHOWER PAN & FLOOR DRAIN  


 
9. FIXED & SLIDING PANELS  


‐ ACID‐ETCHED FINGERPRINT FREE OBSCURE GLASS  


 
10. PANTRY  


‐ UPPER STORAGE CABINET  


‐ MICROWAVE/CONVECTION WITH BUILT‐IN LIGHT & EXHAUST FAN  


‐ COUNTERTOP (+ PLUG‐IN PORTABLE INDUCTION COOKTOP)  


‐ UNDER‐COUNTER REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER  


 
11. DRESSER / STORAGE CABINET  


‐ UPPER SHELVES OVER DRAWERS  


 
12. CLERESTORY MIRRORS  







‐ VISUAL EXPANSION OF SPACE  


 
13. DIMMABLE LED INDIRECT LIGHT FIXTURE WITHIN COVE  


‐ UPLIGHTING MAKING THE ENTIRE CEILING A REFLECTOR  


 
14. MECHANICAL VENT CAP  


‐ ANODIZED ALUMINUM  


 
15. FOLD‐DOWN SOFA / WALL‐BED  


‐ WITH UPPER STORAGE CABINET  


 
16. 20‐MINUTE FIRE‐RATED ENTRY DOOR  


‐ WITH ADA‐COMPLIANT “DOORSCOPE” VIEWER  


 
17. SLIMTECH CERAMIC FLOORING  


‐ SUPER‐DURABLE (FLOOD PROOF)  


‐ LIGHTWEIGHT, LOW/NO MAINTENANCE  


 
18. BIG WINDOW  


‐ INCREASE SENSE OF SPACIOUSNESS & CONNECTION TO OUTDOORS  


‐ MAXIMIZE NATURAL LIGHT  


‐ MODULATE PRIVACY WITH  
TOP/DOWN ‐ BOTTOM/UP SHADE 


 


 







EXHIBIT 


 







DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 468 TURK STREET PROJECT AND 450 
O’FARRELL PROJECT:   


1. O'Farrell's site is about 5 times the size of Turk's very small site (4667 
square feet), and its gross floor area is about 6 times that of Turk Street. The 
O’Farrell building will be 130-feet tall and as such, a high-rise; whereas 
Turk is not, and will be built on one of the smallest lots on its block. 
 


2. O'Farrell was approved last year with family-sized dwellings. 
 


3. O’Farrell has a better location than Turk and thus one expects it will receive 
higher rents, thus making O’Farrell more able to afford larger units. 
 


4. O'Farrell requires a conditional use permit because of its enormous size. 
 


5. O'Farrell is tearing down a listed historic resource (the church) and triggers 
an EIR. Turk Street is CEQA exempt as a "Type 3 - Clean Construction 
Project", subject to Priority Processing.  
 


6. O'Farrell is demolishing 5 existing non-SRO dwelling units and is proposing 
to replace them with group housing units. Turk Street will not require the 
demolition of any dwelling units. 
 


7. O'Farrell is "grandfathered in" at a (low) 13.5% Inclusionary Rate and is not 
paying an Affordable Housing Fee in addition to its BMR units. Turk Street 
is not only providing a full 25% of its base density as on-site Inclusionary 
Units but is also paying a large enough Affordable Housing Fee (over $200 
per square feet) that an organization such as TNDC could (by leveraging 
loans, grants etc.) build several units off-site.  
 


8. The O'Farrell is not getting the protections of state law SB-330 since it did 
not file its applications under that law. That law limits the number of 
hearings a project can be subject to, and thus the O’Farrell project does not 
get the expedited approval procedure of SB-330. 











Dear Claudine, Mark & Cameron:  please find our Final Brief for the Planning Commission Hearing on

April 15th, 2021 attached above.
 
Best,
 
 
Brian Hession de los Santos, Paralegal
 
Goldstein, Gellman, Melbostad, Harris & McSparran, llp
1388 Sutter Street, #1000 (10th Flr.)
San Francisco, CA 94109-5494
Tel: 415/673-5600, ext. 245
Fax: 415/673-5606
Email: bdelossantos@g3mh.com
 
NOTICE TO RECIPIENT:    THIS E-MAIL IS MEANT FOR ONLY THE INTENDED RECIPIENT OF THE
TRANSMISSION, AND MAY BE A COMMUNICATION PRIVILEGED BY LAW.  IF YOU RECEIVED THIS
E-MAIL IN ERROR, ANY REVIEW, USE, DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPYING OF THIS E-
MAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY OF THE ERROR BY RETURN E-
MAIL AND PLEASE DELETE THIS MESSAGE FROM YOUR SYSTEM.  THANK YOU IN ADVANCE FOR
YOUR COOPERATION.
 
 
 

mailto:bdelossantos@g3mh.com


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Changed Letter and Exhibits
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:19:06 AM
Attachments: Final Brief 4-9.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)" <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 at 8:46 AM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: "M. Brett Gladstone" <BGladstone@g3mh.com>
Subject: FW: Changed Letter and Exhibits
 
Could you please distribute? Thank you.
 
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
 

From: M. Brett Gladstone <BGladstone@g3mh.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 9, 2021 12:09 PM
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Subject: Changed Letter and Exhibits
 

 

Hi Claudine.  It was pointed out to me that my letter to the
Commission that is now posted on the web had mistakes.  

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
floor plan of each unit, with dimensions.  Exhibit A also contains photographs of  an existing full-
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


 
1. Unit Kitchenettes.  Exhibit A includes photographs of some of the kitchen appliances that 


will allow full meal preparation, including combination convection oven/microwaves large 
enough to cook and brown a turkey.  The kitchenettes will also have a plug-in two-burner 
induction cooktop that will sit on the countertops (see Exhibit C, pages 1 and 2), a 5.6 
cubic foot undercounter refrigerator/freezer, and sink with various accessories (cutting 
board, colander, etc.) and ample cabinetry/storage.[1]  
  


2. Common Area Kitchen and Recreation Space.  The Project features 1305 gsf of 
Community Living, Dining & Kitchen space, which exceeds the requirements of the 
Housing Code by 21% (1277 nsf provided vs. 1050 nsf required).  A floor plan of the 
Kitchen & Dining space on the 2nd Floor (“mezzanine”) can be found on Exhibit A page 
3,  and a drawing of the double high space below can be found  in the middle of page 10 
of Exhibit B.  While the interiors of these two floors have not been designed, Macy 
Architecture has provided photos of already built residential common space with cooking 
(see Exhibit A, page 3).  These photos show the “feel” that is intended for the future design 
of that common area space.  We have been asked about creating communal kitchens on 
each floor.  Doing so would eliminate too many units and the owners feel that given 
the good capabilities of the Unit Kitchenettes, these small kitchens would be 
unnecessary/redundant and would not be used as much as a larger single kitchen as part of 
the 1st and 2nd floor community spaces. 


 
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


 
1 This 12th St. model unit was built at a significant cost, and thus  a model unit was not built for the 
project before you.  A model for 468 Turk was also deemed unnecessary because the two projects are 
being designed by the same architect, Macy Architecture, and have a great deal of features in 
common.   
 
[1] The Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Group Housing/SRO unit features (attached to my first 
letter to you) does not allow a built-in range or full oven.   
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
project, and a project which has never been approved with larger sized units.  But most important,    
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
 
 
EXHIBIT E 
 petition of 58 signatures 
from persons who live or work in the 
Tenderloin/Lower Nob Hill neighborhood. 
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
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04/07/2021GREEN BUILDING CHECKLIST


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
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12'0’ 8'4'1’ 2’


TYPIC AL UNIT 04/07/2021
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4


5


1


2


3


 9'- 4", TYP.


 
23


'- 
0"


 , 
TY


P.


4
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315 Linden Street San Francisco, CA 94102 Tel 415 551 7630 www.macyarchitecture.com Copyright by Macy Architecture.


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
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Attached is the correct one.    Would you please substitute the
attached for what is on the website?   If that is a problem,  let
me know.   415 601 3178   Thanks.
 
Best, 
M. Brett Gladstone 

M. Brett Gladstone, Attorney Of Counsel
Goldstein, Gellman, Melbostad, Harris & McSparran, LLP
1388 Sutter Street, Suite 1000
San Francisco CA 94109-5494
Voice: 415/673-5600
Fax: 415/673-5606
Email: BGladstone@g3mh.com
 

NOTICE TO RECIPIENT:  THIS E-MAIL IS MEANT FOR ONLY THE INTENDED
RECIPIENT OF THE TRANSMISSION AND MAY BE A COMMUNICATION
PRIVILEGED BY LAW.  IF YOU RECEIVED THIS E-MAIL IN ERROR, ANY REVIEW,
USE, DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPYING OF THIS E-MAIL IS STRICTLY
PROHIBITED.  PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY OF THE ERROR BY RETURN E-
MAIL AND PLEASE DELETE THIS MESSAGE FROM YOUR SYSTEM.  THANK YOU IN
ADVANCE FOR YOUR COOPERATION.

mailto:BGladstone@g3mh.com


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Residents of 314 Jersey St: Opposition to 311 Jersey St Remodel Plans
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:18:35 AM
Attachments: Macdonald_Fragner to SF Planning Commission - oposing 311 Jersy St remodel plan.pdf

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: Roger Macdonald IMAP <grs@well.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 07, 2021 4:20 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>; Robin Fragner
<robin.fragner@gmail.com>
Subject: Residents of 314 Jersey St: Opposition to 311 Jersey St Remodel Plans
 

 

Roger Macdonald and Robin Fragner
314 Jersey Street
San Francisco, CA 94114

April 7, 2021

Commissioners and Commission Secretary
Planning Division, San Francisco Government
Commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
 Cc: Cathleen Campbell, Planner
  Southwest Team, Planning Division
  cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org

Dear San Francisco Planning Commissioners,

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
mailto:Commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org



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
  Cc: Cathleen Campbell, Planner 
  Southwest Team, Planning Division 
  cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org 
 
Dear San Francisco Planning Commissioners, 
 
We live directly across the street from 311 Jersey Street in San Francisco.  Robin has owned our 
house since 1989 and raised  
our family here. 
 
While both respecting and appreciating the interests of our neighbor’s desire to expand the 
living space of their home at 311 Jersey St, we have serious concerns about their plan for an 
upper roof deck.  We sincerely believe the deck, as planned, is incongruent with the character 
of neighboring houses and the neighborhood.  Further, we have major privacy concerns that 
those standing on the planned deck upper will have direct and unobstructed line of sight views 
into the entirety of our front bedroom. 
 
We urge the Commission to not approve the planned upper deck. 
 
We have reviewed Christine Boudreau’s DR application and support her concerns. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 


       
 
Roger Macdonald               Robin Fragner 
 
 
 
 
 







 







We live directly across the street from 311 Jersey Street in San Francisco.  Robin has owned our
house since 1989 and raised our family here.

While both respecting and appreciating the interests of our neighbor’s desire to expand
the living space of their home at 311 Jersey St, we have serious concerns about their plan for an
upper roof deck.  We sincerely believe the deck, as planned, is incongruent with the character of
neighboring houses and the neighborhood.  Further, we have major privacy concerns that those
standing on the planned deck upper will have direct and unobstructed line of sight views into the
entirety of our front bedroom.

We urge the Commission to not approve the planned upper deck.

 We have reviewed Christine Boudreau’s DR application and support her concerns.

 Sincerely yours,

      

Roger Macdonald                                     Robin Fragner
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 
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
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:16:44 AM

 
 
 
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
 
 

From: tomas janik <info@email.actionnetwork.org> 
Sent: Thursday, April 08, 2021 8:42 AM
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
mailto:Claudine.Asbagh@sfgov.org
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

tomas janik 
tomasjaniksf@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94109

 

mailto:tomasjaniksf@gmail.com


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEARLY $2 MILLION IN GRANTS FOR SAN

FRANCISCO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
Date: Monday, April 12, 2021 11:04:06 AM

 
 
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
Date: Saturday, April 10, 2021 at 8:22 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEARLY
$2 MILLION IN GRANTS FOR SAN FRANCISCO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Saturday, April 10, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEARLY

$2 MILLION IN GRANTS FOR SAN FRANCISCO NONPROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS

Eleven organizations awarded to protect and expand essential services for people
experiencing mental health challenges and homelessness, support for low-income and first-
generation college students, and culturally-responsive music, dance and arts access at an

affordable housing site in the Mission
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development (OEWD), the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, the
San Francisco Arts Commission, and Community Vision today announced $1.96 million in
transformative awards for San Francisco nonprofit organizations.
 
The space acquisition and lease stabilization grants are part of San Francisco’s Nonprofit
Sustainability Initiative (NSI), which helps stabilize nonprofits that provide services and
support to residents as part of the response to COVID-19 and beyond. With these awards, the
NSI surpasses a milestone, seeding the acquisition of more than 150,000 square feet of newly
nonprofit-owned space for organizations that serve low-income residents and are deeply
rooted in historically underserved communities and communities of color. All eleven of this
year’s NSI grantees provide vital services and resources to low-income residents. Eight of the
organizations have Black, Latino, Asian, LGBTQ or immigrant leadership.
 
“This past year has shown us just how important it is that our local San Francisco nonprofit

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org


organizations have the tools and resources they need to provide essential services,” said Mayor
Breed. “The Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative has supported the acquisition of critical
community spaces throughout San Francisco. This round of funding will help strengthen
organizations that are trusted and deeply rooted in their communities so they can recover and
emerge even stronger than before the pandemic.”
 
These funds are especially critical for ensuring San Francisco’s nonprofit organizations are
able to recover from the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to provide critical services and
resources for San Franciscans. For example, in 2019, NSI funds supported the purchase of the
property at 701 Alabama, which was quickly activated last year by the Latino Task Force to
distribute food and COVID-19-related assistance to some of San Francisco’s most vulnerable
residents.
 
This round of NSI awards includes $1 million for the Bayview Hunters Point Foundation to
acquire permanent space that will be shared with organizations doing complementary work for
people experiencing homelessness or seeking mental health and substance abuse services.
Three past NSI awardees, La Cocina, Planned Parenthood and Mission Kids, opened new
facilities this week. A fourth awardee, Community Youth Center of San Francisco, plans to
break ground later this spring.
 
San Francisco has nearly 7,000 nonprofits that often work in partnership with the City to
address complex challenges and the needs of its residents. Administered by OEWD, the NSI
continues San Francisco’s groundbreaking support of nonprofit space and sustainability, and
investments in resilience that assist nonprofits and prevent displacement. On average, for
every NSI dollar awarded, nonprofits leverage $7.60 in donations, grants, and other financing.
 
“San Francisco’s nonprofit organizations are a vital component to an equitable and sustainable
economic recovery across our City,” said Anne Taupier, Acting Director of the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development. “These grants stabilize the cost of rent and assist our
minority nonprofit businesses to acquire permanent space for their operations and build equity
to ensure longevity. These investments help create the security that our trusted community
partners can thrive for years to come.”
 
The underlying objective of all NSI programs is to ensure access to quality of life resources as
well as education, health and human services for residents of San Francisco, and real estate
assistance is a cornerstone of the program. Since the program announced its first awards four
years ago in May 2017, partners have invested $14.1 million to acquire 156,929 square feet of
permanent, newly nonprofit-owned space, helping community-focused organizations build
equity and preventing them from being priced out. An additional 273,272 square feet of leased
space has been secured for an average lease term of about 8 years.
 
2021 Nonprofit Sustainability Awardees
 
Bayview Hunters Point Foundation will use its $1 million award to catalyze a capital
campaign and purchase space at 5815 3rd Street in the Bayview. The 20,470 square foot space
will include shared space for organizations offering complementary services, making it easier
for clients and their families to access support.
 
“Bayview Hunters Point Foundation has provided support and empowerment for San
Francisco's most vulnerable and disenfranchised residents since 1971,” said Bayview Hunters



Point Foundation Board President Susan Watson. “The Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative
acquisition grant will serve as the lead gift for our 50th Anniversary Capital Campaign,
making it possible for us to purchase the building we’ve long called home. From this stable
base of operations, we will continue to serve those most in need—for the next 50 years and
beyond.”
 
Cultura y Arte Nativa de las Américas was awarded $250,000 to cover renovation costs and
$75,000 to pay for architectural and engineering services in support of its new community arts
space in the Mission District. 681 Florida Street will be CANA’s first permanent home and
will used for dance rehearsals/performances, recording studio/beat making lessons, music
lessons, marketplace activities and community events and meetings.
 
“Funding for our future, permanent art space in the Mission District will bring long-term
stability for CANA-Carnaval San Francisco and hundreds of artists, positively impacting our
ability to focus on programming and development. This support will help preserve our
community and city’s vibrant artistic culture for generations to come,” said Roberto
Hernandez, Artistic Director and Executive Producer.
 
Japanese Community Youth Council received an award of $83,500 to support the repair and
replacement of items required by the relocation of its college access programs to 1710 Octavia
Street. The new site will be used to offer academic support and college advising for low-
income, first generation college students. While services are offered onsite at schools
throughout San Francisco, the 1710 Octavia site will be used for afterschool, evening,
weekend and summer activities.
 
“JCYC is extremely pleased to be awarded a relocation grant from the San
Francisco Nonprofit Sustainability Initiative which will make it possible for our organization
to move into a new, long-term program space.  We are grateful for the opportunity to utilize
these resources to create the most welcoming and safest environment for the children and
youth we serve,” said Jon Osaki, Executive Director of Japanese Community Youth Council.
 
Other 2021 awardees include Bay Area Video Coalition, Charity Cultural Services Center,
Children’s Book Project, Chinese Historical Society of America, Kultivate Labs, Larkin Street
Youth Services, The Healing WELL, and Youth Art Exchange.
 
Grants are administered by Community Vision, which will announce the next request for
acquisition proposals in June 2021 and offer several workshops with more information.
Should funding be approved by the Board of Supervisors, the next round of applications for
relocation and renovation grants will open in late 2021. Past program guidelines are available
at communityvisionca.org/sfsustainability. Information about past NSI awardees and current
resources can be found at oewd.org/nonprofits.
 
 

###
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN

(CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for April 15, 2021
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 3:07:46 PM
Attachments: 20210415_cal.docx
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Advance Calendar - 20210415.xlsx
CPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for April 15, 2021.
 
Enjoy the weekend,
 
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
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Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Remote Hearing

via video and teleconferencing



Thursday, April 15, 2021

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department

[bookmark: _Hlk63346625]49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400

San Francisco, CA 94103





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://sfgovtv.org/planning 

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

[bookmark: _Hlk63346654] commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.




Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





Remote Access to Information and Participation 



In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 



Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code: 187 744 4056



The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.




ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

			Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2019-019822DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

4079 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – between Noe and Sanchez Streets; Lot  029 in Assessor’s Block 6580 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application no. 2019.1010.4179 to construct a vertical addition and horizontal front and rear additions to an existing 2,227 square foot, two-story, two-family residence. The project also includes extensive remodeling of the interior and the front façade. The project would add 1,590 gross square feet to the existing building which will result in a 2,277 square foot unit and a 1,548 square foot unit with no on-site parking within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

(Proposed for Continuance to April 29, 2021)



2.	2020-008474CUA	(S. YOUNG: (628) 652-7349)

3519 CALIFORNIA STREET – south side between Laurel and Spruce Streets; Lots 001 in Assessor's Block 1035 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 713 to establish a Formula Retail Use within a NC-S (Neighborhood Commercial Shopping Center) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The project is to convert a vacant ground floor commercial space with approximately 1,141 square feet of floor area (previously occupied by a limited restaurant formula retail use d.b.a. Noah’s New York Bagels) to another limited restaurant formula retail use d.b.a. Panda Express. The project will involve storefront and tenant improvements to the ground floor commercial tenant space which is located within the Laurel Village Shopping Center. There is no expansion of the existing building envelope proposed. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to May 13, 2021)



3.	2020-003223CUA	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314)

249 TEXAS STREET – east side of Texas Street between 18th and Mariposa Streets: Lot 17A in Assessors Block 4001 (District 10) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 303 and 317 to demolish an existing three-story single-family dwelling with an unauthorized dwelling unit and construct a new three-story building containing two-dwelling units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The new development would measure approximately 4,378 square feet. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on April 1, 2021)

Note: On March 4, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to April 1, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On April 1, 2021, without hearing, continued to April 15, 2021 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Continuance to May 13, 2021)



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



4.	2020-011809CUA	(G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)

300 WEST PORTAL AVE – between 14th and 15th Avenues and Wawona Street; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 2483 (District 7) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 729 for the establishment and expansion of an existing Formula Retail Use (DBA “C2 Education”) into an approximately 1,199 square foot adjacent tenant space (formerly DBA “Thriveability” ) for a total use size of approximately 2,478 square feet located at the ground floor of an existing one-story, commercial building within the West Portal Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 26-X Height and Bulk District. Minor interior alterations are proposed to the subject tenant spaces. The Conditional Use Authorization constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



5.	2020-009545CUA	(G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)

2084 CHESTNUT STREET – north side between Steiner and Pierce Streets; Lot 013 in Assessor's Block 0486A (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 711 to establish a 2,272 square foot Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. Madewell) in the vacant ground floor space of an existing two-story commercial building within a NC-2 (Neighborhood Commercial, Small Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. There is no expansion of the existing building envelope proposed. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



6.	2020-008507CUA	(R. BALBA: (628) 652-7331)

2119 CASTRO STREET – east side of Castro Street between 28th and Valley Street, Lot 028 of Assessor’s Block 6612  (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing two-story, single-family residence and construct a new four-story, two-family dwelling with two off-street parking spaces, and two Class 1 bicycle parking spaces within a RH-2 (Residential – House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

	Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



7.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for March 25, 2021

· Draft Minutes for April 1, 2021



8.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



9.	Director’s Announcements



10.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



[bookmark: _Hlk61434236]11.	2013.1535CUA-02	(C. GROB: (628) 652-7532)

[bookmark: _Hlk61507717]450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET – on the block bounded by Geary Street to the north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street to the west (Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011) (District 6) – Request to amend Conditions of Approval of Planning Commission Motion No. 20281, adopted September 13, 2018. A revised project scope still includes demolition of the three buildings, construction of a 13-story mixed-use building with similar massing, ground floor commercial and a new church, but now proposes up to 302 group housing rooms instead of up to 176 residential units and no longer proposes residential off-street parking. At minimum, Conditions of Approval Nos. 24, 25, 26, 32, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 304, 415, 166, and 155, are to be amended to reflect the project revision and status, for a project located in a RC-4 (Residential- Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, North of Market Residential Special Use District and 80-130-T Height and Bulk District. This project has undergone environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code. The Planning Commission certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the project on September 13, 2018 (Motion No. 20279). On December 21, 2020, the Planning Department published an addendum to Final EIR for the Project. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve Amendments

(Continued from Regular hearing on April 1, 2021)



12.	2019-020740CUA	(C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329)

468 TURK STREET – north side of Turk Street between Larkin and Hyde Streets; Lot 006 of Assessor’s Block 0336 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.3, 253 and 303, to allow construction of a residential base project exceeding 50 feet in height at the street frontage for a project that would construct a new nine-story, 86-ft tall, residential building (approximately 35,090 square feet) with 101 group housing units, and making findings of eligibility for the individually requested State Density Bonus. The project would utilize the State Density Bonus law (California Government Code Sections 65915-65918) and receive waivers for: height limit (Planning Code Sec. 260) upper story setback (Planning Code Sec. 132.2), and rear yard (Planning Code Sec. 134) requirements of the planning code. The project site is located within a RC-4 (Residential – Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, North of Market Special Use District Subarea 1, Uptown Tenderloin Historic District, and 80-T Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on March 25, 2021)



13.	2018-011249CUA-02	(A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430)

1567 CALIFORNIA STREET – southeast corner at the intersection of California and Polk Streets; Lots 014, 014A and 015 in Assessor’s Block 0645 (District 3) – Request for a Waiver from Height (Section 260) pursuant to the Individually-Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a density bonus. On February 13, 2020, under Motion No. 20657, the Planning Commission granted a request for conditional use authorization, as well as four waivers and an incentive pursuant to the individually requested State Density Bonus Program to approve the proposed project at 1567 California Street. The approved Project would demolish the existing two-story commercial building and associated surface parking lot, and would construct an eight-story over-basement, approximately 80-foot tall mixed-use building including approximately 9,823 square feet of ground floor commercial space and 100 dwelling units. At the time of project approval, the Height and Bulk Map incorrectly identified approximately 22 parcels, including the subject property, as having a height limit of 80 feet. The correct height limit for these approximately 22 parcels, including the subject property, is 65 feet; therefore, an additional height waiver is required to allow the project to proceed. The design of the Project remains unchanged from the version previously approved by the Planning Commission. No other changes are proposed to the Project or its prior approvals.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



14a.	2020-007798CUA	(L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320)

48 STOCKTON STREET – southeast corner of Stockton and O’Farrell Streets; Lots 003 and 004 in Assessor’s Block 0328 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303 to establish a 37,402 square foot non-retail sales and service use (general office) on floors three through six of an existing building in a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



14b.	2020-007798OFA	(L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320)

48 STOCKTON STREET – southeast corner of Stockton and O’Farrell Streets; Lots 003 and 004 in Assessor’s Block 0328 (District 3) – Request for Office Development Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 to authorize 37,402 gross square feet of office space from the Office Development Annual Limit. The subject property is located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



15.	2019-023090CUA	(S. YOUNG: (628) 652-7349)

1428-1434 IRVING STREET – north side between 15th and 16th Avenues; Lots 021 and 023 in Assessor's Block 1735 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 730 and 303 to allow a use size over 2,500 square feet of floor area. The project will involve merging an approximately 2,732 square foot vacant commercial space located on the first and partial second floor of a two-story mixed-use building (previously occupied by a retail store d.b.a. The Vitamin Shoppe) at 1428 Irving Street with an approximately 3,081 square foot commercial space of a two-story commercial building occupied by an existing animal hospital d.b.a. Irving Pet Hospital at 1434 Irving Street. The combined commercial spaces will consist of approximately 5,813 square feet of floor area. The project site is located within the Inner Sunset NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



16.	2020-001578DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

17 REED STREET – between Washington and Clay Streets; Lot 012A in Assessor’s Block 0215 (District 3) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application no. 2020.0117.2255 to construct a 505 square foot vertical addition to create a new second floor on an existing one-story over basement, two-bedroom, two-bath, single-family home which will result in a four-bedroom, three and half bath, 1,866 square foot single-family home with no off-street parking within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78 
Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26 


 


 
 


Disability and language accommodations available upon request to: 
 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance. 


  



http://www.sfplanning.org/

https://sfgovtv.org/planning

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org





 


Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement  
The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants 
of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone  ha ve ne ve r 
ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their tradi ti onal  ter r itory.  As 
guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by a cknow le dging the  
Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples. 
 
Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other a gencie s of the  
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violati on of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724;  fa x ( 415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Pr ivacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and i ts 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be ma de 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these s ubmis si ons. T hi s 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submi t  
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that member s of the  publ i c  ma y 
inspect or copy. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Ci vi c Ce nter  or  Van Ne s s 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible servi ces,  
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Ar ts Par ki ng 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print  age ndas  or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretar y@sfgov. or g at  l e ast  72 hours  i n 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or  
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or  r el ate d 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
S PANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un a par ato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
FILIPINO:  Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или  за  вспомогательным  слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум  за  48  
часов до начала слушания.  



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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Re mote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In a ccordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-pla ce -  a nd t he 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders a nd supplemental directions -  a ggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down a nd reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was a uthorized to resume their hearing schedule t hrough 
the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meet ings wi ll be 
held via videoconferencing and a llow for r emote p ublic comment. T he Commission strongly 
encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, i n a dva nce of t he hea ring t o 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to str ea m 
the live meetings or watch on a local television station.  
 
Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code: 187 744 4056 
 
The public comment call-in line number  will a lso be p rovided on t he Depa rtment’s webpa ge 
www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission. 


  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

https://sfgovtv.org/planning

http://www.sfplanning.org/
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Joel Koppel 


 Vice-President: Kathrin Moore 
  Commissioners:                 Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, 
   Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner  
 
A. CO NSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 


 
1. 2019-019822DRP (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335) 


4079 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – between Noe and Sanchez Streets; Lot  029 in Assessor’s 
Block 6580 (District 8) – Request for Discre tionary Re vie w of Building Permit Application 
no. 2019.1010.4179 to construct a vertical addition and horizontal front and rear additions 
to an existing 2,227 square foot, two-story, two-family residence. The project also includes 
extensive remodeling of the interior and the front façade. The project would add 1,590 
gross square feet to the existing building which will result in a 2,277 square foot unit and a 
1,548 square foot unit with no on-site parking within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-
Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the 
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 
(Proposed for Continuance to April 29, 2021) 


 
2. 2020-008474CUA (S. YOUNG: (628) 652-7349) 


3519 CALIFORNIA STREET – south side between Laurel and Spruce Streets; Lots 001 in 
Assessor's Block 1035 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 713 to establish a Formula Retail Use within a NC-S 
(Neighborhood Commercial Shopping Center) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk 
District. The project is to convert a vacant ground floor commercial space with 
approximately 1,141 square feet of floor area (previously occupied by a limited restaurant 
formula retail use d.b.a. Noah’s New York Bagels) to another limited restaurant formula 
retail use d.b.a. Panda Express. The project will involve storefront and tenant 
improvements to the ground floor commercial tenant space which is located within the 
Laurel Village Shopping Center. There is no expansion of the existing building envelope 
proposed. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed for Continuance to May 13, 2021) 


 
3. 2020-003223CUA (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314) 


249 TEXAS STREET – east side of Texas Street between 18th and Mariposa Streets: Lot 17A 
in Assessors Block 4001 (District 10) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant 
to Planning Code 303 and 317 to demolish an existing three-story single-family dwelling 
with an unauthorized dwelling unit and construct a new three-story building containing 
two-dwelling units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X 
Height and Bulk District. The new development would measure approximately 4,378 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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square feet. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on April 1, 2021) 
Note: On March 4, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to Apr il 1 , 
2021 by a vote of +7 -0. On April 1, 2021, without hearing, continued to April 15, 2021 by a 
vote of +7 -0. 
(Proposed for Continuance to May 13, 2021) 
 


B. CO NSENT CALENDAR  
 
All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the 
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or 
staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing 


 
4. 2020-011809CUA (G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380) 


300 WEST PORTAL AVE – between 14th and 15th Avenues and Wawona Street; Lot 002 in 
Assessor’s Block 2483 (District 7) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 729 for the establishment and expansion of an 
existing Formula Retail Use (DBA “C2 Education”) into an approximately 1,199 square foot 
adjacent tenant space (formerly DBA “Thriveability” ) for a total use size of approximately 
2,478 square feet located at the ground floor of an existing one-story, commercial building 
within the West Portal Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District 
and 26-X Height and Bulk District. Minor interior alterations are proposed to the subject 
tenant spaces. The Conditional Use Authorization constitutes the Approval Action for the 
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 
31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 


5. 2020-009545CUA (G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607) 
2084 CHESTNUT STREET – north side between Steiner and Pierce Streets; Lot 013 in 
Assessor's Block 0486A (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 711 to establish a 2,272 square foot Formula Retail 
Use (d.b.a. Madewell) in the vacant ground floor space of an existing two-story commercial 
building within a NC-2 (Neighborhood Commercial, Small Scale) Zoning District and 40-X 
Height and Bulk District. There is no expansion of the existing building envelope proposed. 
This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, 
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
6. 2020-008507CUA (R. BALBA: (628) 652-7331) 


2119 CASTRO STREET – east side of Castro Street between 28th and Valley Street, Lot 028 of 
Assessor’s Block 6612  (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing two-story, single-family 
residence and construct a new four-story, two-family dwelling with two off-street parking 
spaces, and two Class 1 bicycle parking spaces within a RH-2 (Residential – House, Two 
Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the 



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/?o=1

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-011809CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-009545CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-008507CUA.pdf
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Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 


 Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 
C. CO MMISSION MATTERS  
 


7. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for March 25, 2021 
• Draft Minutes for April 1, 2021 


 
8. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Planning Commission. 


 
D. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
9. Director’s Announcements 
 
10. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  


E. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment 
may be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
F. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that 
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 
 
11. 2013.1535CUA-02 (C. GROB: (628) 652-7532) 


450-474 O'FARRELL STREET AND 532 JONES STREET – on the block bounded by Geary 
Street to the north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street 
to the west (Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011) (District 6) – Request 
to amend Conditions of Approval of Planning Commission Motion No. 20281, adopted 
September 13, 2018. A revised project scope still includes demolition of the three 
buildings, construction of a 13-story mixed-use building with similar massing, ground floor 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20210325_cal_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20210401_cal_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/Director%27s%20Report_Section%20415.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2013.1535CUA-02c2.pdf





San Francisco Planning Commission  Thursday, April 15, 2021 


 


Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda        Page 7 of 13 
 


commercial and a new church, but now proposes up to 302 group housing rooms instead 
of up to 176 residential units and no longer proposes residential off-street parking. At 
minimum, Conditions of Approval Nos. 24, 25, 26, 32, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 
303, 304, 415, 166, and 155, are to be amended to reflect the project revision and status, 
for a project located in a RC-4 (Residential- Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, 
North of Market Residential Special Use District and 80-130-T Height and Bulk District. This 
project has undergone environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code. The Planning 
Commission certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the project on 
September 13, 2018 (Motion No. 20279). On December 21, 2020, the Planning Departme nt 
published an addendum to Final EIR for the Project.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve Amendments 
(Continued from Regular hearing on April 1, 2021) 
 


12. 2019-020740CUA (C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329) 
468 TURK STREET – north side of Turk Street between Larkin and Hyde Streets; Lot 006 of 
Assessor’s Block 0336 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 209.3, 253 and 303, to allow construction of a residential base 
project exceeding 50 feet in height at the street frontage for a project that would construct 
a new nine-story, 86-ft tall, residential building (approximately 35,090 square feet) with 
101 group housing units, and making findings of eligibility for the individually requested 
State Density Bonus. The project would utilize the State Density Bonus law (California 
Government Code Sections 65915-65918) and receive waivers for: height limit (Planning 
Code Sec. 260) upper story setback (Planning Code Sec. 132.2), and rear yard (Planning 
Code Sec. 134) requirements of the planning code. The project site is located within a RC-4 
(Residential – Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, North of Market Special Use 
District Subarea 1, Uptown Tenderloin Historic District, and 80-T Height and Bulk District. 
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


 
13. 2018-011249CUA-02 (A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430) 


1567 CALIFORNIA STREET – southeast corner at the intersection of California and Polk 
Streets; Lots 014, 014A and 015 in Assessor’s Block 0645 (District 3) – Request for a Waive r 
from He ight (Section 260) pursuant to the Individually-Requested State Density Bonus 
Program to achieve a density bonus. On February 13, 2020, under Motion No. 20657, the 
Planning Commission granted a request for conditional use authorization, as well as four 
waivers and an incentive pursuant to the individually requested State Density Bonus 
Program to approve the proposed project at 1567 California Street. The approved Project 
would demolish the existing two-story commercial building and associated surface 
parking lot, and would construct an eight-story over-basement, approximately 80-foot tall 
mixed-use building including approximately 9,823 square feet of ground floor commercial 
space and 100 dwelling units. At the time of project approval, the Height and Bulk Map 
incorrectly identified approximately 22 parcels, including the subject property, as having a 
height limit of 80 feet. The correct height limit for these approximately 22 parcels, 
including the subject property, is 65 feet; therefore, an additional height waiver is required 
to allow the project to proceed. The design of the Project remains unchanged from the 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-020740CUAc1.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-011249CUA-02.pdf
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version previously approved by the Planning Commission. No other changes are proposed 
to the Project or its prior approvals. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
14a. 2020-007798CUA (L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320) 


48 STOCKTON STREET – southeast corner of Stockton and O’Farrell Streets; Lots 003 and 
004 in Assessor’s Block 0328 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Authorization, pursuant 
to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303 to establish a 37,402 square foot non-retail sales 
and service use (general office) on floors three through six of an existing building in a C-3-R 
(Downtown-Retail) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action 
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San 
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 


14b. 2020-007798OFA (L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320) 
48 STOCKTON STREET – southeast corner of Stockton and O’Farrell Streets; Lots 003 and 
004 in Assessor’s Block 0328 (District 3) – Request for O ffice Development Aut horiz at ion, 
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 to authorize 37,402 gross square feet of 
office space from the Office Development Annual Limit. The subject property is located 
within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
15. 2019-023090CUA (S. YOUNG: (628) 652-7349) 


1428-1434 IRVING STREET – north side between 15th and 16th Avenues; Lots 021 and 023 in 
Assessor's Block 1735 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 730 and 303 to allow a use size over 2,500 square feet of floor area. 
The project will involve merging an approximately 2,732 square foot vacant commercial 
space located on the first and partial second floor of a two-story mixed-use building 
(previously occupied by a retail store d.b.a. The Vitamin Shoppe) at 1428 Irving Street with 
an approximately 3,081 square foot commercial space of a two-story commercial building 
occupied by an existing animal hospital d.b.a. Irving Pet Hospital at 1434 Irving Street. The 
combined commercial spaces will consist of approximately 5,813 square feet of floor 
area. The project site is located within the Inner Sunset NCD (Neighborhood Commercial 
District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the 
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR   
 


The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; 
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed 
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be 
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or 
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
16. 2020-001578DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335) 


17 REED STREET – between Washington and Clay Streets; Lot 012A in Assessor’s Block 0215 
(District 3) – Request for Discre tionary Re vie w of Building Permit Application no. 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-007798CUA_OFA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-007798CUA_OFA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-023090CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-001578DRP-02.pdf
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2020.0117.2255 to construct a 505 square foot vertical addition to create a new second 
floor on an existing one-story over basement, two-bedroom, two-bath, single-family home 
which will result in a four-bedroom, three and half bath, 1,866 square foot single-family 
home with no off-street parking within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two-Family) Zoning 
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for 
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve  
 


ADJOURNMENT  



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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He aring Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the  cal enda r  yea r 
and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much t i me r e mai ns.   


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  T he  se cond l oude r 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the 
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, archite cts , 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written reque st  
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the 
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a 
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the 
organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized 
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written 
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a  pe ri od not  to excee d thr ee  (3) 
minutes. 


5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for  a  pe r iod not  to e xce ed thr ee  ( 3)  
minutes. 


6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing. 
7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it. 
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exce ed thr ee  


(3) minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may othe rwi se  


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be  opene d 


by the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion i s a dopte d. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, e ngi nee rs , 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects , e ngi neer s,  


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not  
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 



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
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may othe rwi se  


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
He aring Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, mate ri al s m ust  be  
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submiss ion pa ckage s mus t be  
delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy m us t be  
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a  he ar ing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fa shi on 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Pl anni ng Com mis si on,  49 
South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior 
to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Pl anni ng Commi ssi on 
hearing. 
 


Ca se Type Ca se Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Uni t  
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 d ays o f 
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issua nce o f t he d ec isi on 
letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Superviso rs i f t he pro jec t 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An a ppeal  of a n 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For m ore  
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the  Boar d of 
S upervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of S e cti ons 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. 
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housi ng 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further  i nfor mati on a bout  
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the publ i c  he ar ing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CE QA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Admini stra ti ve  Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in suppor t of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 
31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed 
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to 
CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. 
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review 
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepar e d 
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court  chal l enge , a  
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in wri tte n corr es pondence 
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or 
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Pr otest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in 
accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development 
referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the  fe e  
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or  e xact ion a s 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Le tter  wi l l 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
 
Pr oposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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S a n Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be requi r ed by the  
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to regis te r a nd r epor t  
lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
 


 



http://www.sfgov.org/ethics
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				April 15, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-019822DRP		4079 Cesar Chavez Street				to: 4/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-003223CUA		249 Texas St				fr: 2/4; 3/4; 4/1		Westhoff

						demolition of single-family and construction two dwelling units		to: 5/13

		2020-008474CUA		3519 California Street				CONSENT		Young

						Panda Express		to: 5/13

		2020-009545CUA 		2084 Chestnut Street 				CONSENT		Gunther

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. Madewell) 

		2020-008507CUA		2119 Castro St				CONSENT		Balba

						demolition of a single-family home and the construction of 2 units

		2020-011809CUA		300 West Portal Ave				CONSENT		Pantoja

						Formula Retail Institutional Service (d.b.a. C2 Education)

		2013.1535CUA-02		450-474 O'Farrell, 532 Jones				fr: 1/7; 1/21; 2/4; 3/11; 4/1		Grob

						CUA - Amends original project

		2019-020740CUA		468 Turk Street				fr: 2/25; 3/25		Asbagh

						SDB project to construct 101 SRO Units

		2018-011249CUA-02		1567 California Street						Perry

						height waiver as part of their SDB approval

		2019-023090CUA		1428 - 1434 Irving Street						Young

						merging commercial spaces with a two-story animal hospital (d.b.a. Irving Pet Hospital)

		2020-007798CUAOFA		48 Stockton Street						Hoagland

						Change of Use and small cap office allocation

		2020-001578DRP-02		17 Reed Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 22, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-022661CUA		628 Shotwell Street				fr: 11/19; 1/21; 3/18		Feeney

						Residential Care Facility to residential		to: 5/20

				Housing Inventory, Housing Balance Report and the RHNA Annual Report						Littlefield

						Informational Update

				Housing Element 2022 Update						Haddadan

						Informational Update

		2021-003010PRJ		Transitioning the Shared Spaces to a Permanent City Program						Abad

						Informational

		2021-002933PCA		Small Business Recovery Act						Nickolopoulos

						Planning Code Amendment

		2013.0614ENX-02		600 South Van Ness				fr: 2/25; 4/1		Christensen

						Change in Section 415 compliance from on-site to fee

		2019-006114PRJ 		300 5th Street						Christensen

						Design review of 160’ tall, 130-unit residential building under Housing Sustainability District

		2020-003042AHB		4712 3rd Street				fr: 3/4; 3/18		Feeney

						4-story 21-unit building (including 4 BMRs) that will participate in the HOME-SF program

		2018-007267OFA-02		865 Market Street						Vimr

						extension of an office development authorization

		2020-010729CUA		1215 29th Ave						Page

						DUR for 2 UDUs

		2019-006114PCRV		300 5th Street						Christensen

						Adoption of findings for eligibility for State Density Bonus

		2020-009148CUA		353 Divisadero Street						Christensen

						change of use to Cannabis Retail with no smoking/vaporizing

		2020-006525DRP		1990 Lombard Street				fr: 3/4		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-002333DRP		2814 Clay Street				fr: 3/25		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 29, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2016-016100ENV		SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project 						Johnston

						Certification

		2016-012135CUA		2214 Cayuga Ave				fr: 2/25		Pantoja

						demolition of existing SFH and construction of four new residential buildings, 7 dus

		2021-000485CUA		3910 24th Street						Cisneros

						massage accessory use in an existing day spa

		2014.1058CUAVAR		6424 3rd St/188 Key Avenue						Jardines

						4-story mixed-use building with 17 dwelling units

		2019-023105AHB		2800 Geary Boulevard						Dito

						Demolish existing auto retail use and construct six-story, 42-unit mixed use building via HOME-SF program

		2020-009424CUA		231-235 Wilde Avenue						Wu

						Demolition of existing single family dwelling unit and construction of two single family dwelling units

		2020-005255ENXOFASHD		474 Bryant St 						Liang

						small-cap office development

		2020-006576ENXOFASHD		77 Stillman St						Liang

						small-cap office development

		2020-006045CUAVAR		292 Eureka Street						Cisneros

						Tantamount to demo per PC 317 & Rear Yard and Open Space Variances

		2013.0846DRP		140-142 Jasper Place				fr: 12/17; 2/18; 3/4		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-000389DRP		366-368 Collingwood Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				May 6, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-009640OTH		Racial & Social Equity Plan						Flores

						Informational Update

		2015-009955ENV		1525 Pine Street				fr: 3/18		Li

						PMND Appeal

		2015-009955CUA		1525 Pine Street				fr: 3/18		Updegrave

						Demo and new construction of an 8-story mixed-use building

		2021-000186CUA		2675 Geary Blvd						May

						Bank of America formula retail

		2021-001979CUA		141 Leland Avenue						Horn

						Residential Care Conversion to group housing/State Density Bonus

		2021-002277CUAVAR		220 Dolores Street						Horn

						Residential Care Conversion to group housing

		2021-002277CUAVAR		146 Hyde Street						Horn

						Residential Care Conversion to group housing

		2019-019373DRP		217 Hugo Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-002508DRP-04		4250 26th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				May 13, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-008474CUA		3519 California Street				CONSENT		Young

						Panda Express		fr: 4/15

		2019-021247CUA		1537 Mission Street						Foster

						 CUA for extension of temporary parking lot

		2021-002990PCA		Temporary Closure of Liquor Stores in Polk Street Neighborhood Commercial District						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2021-003184PCAMAP		2500-2530 18th Street Affordable Housing Special Use District						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-021884ENV		Potrero Yard Informational						Snyder

						Informational

		2020-003223CUA		249 Texas St				fr: 2/4; 3/4; 4/1; 4/15		Westhoff

						demolition of single-family and construction two dwelling units

		2020-000886CUA		575 Vermont Street						Christensen

						Demo single family home and construct new duplex plus ADU

		2021-000603CUA		5 Leland Avenue						Christensen

						new Cannabis Retailer

		2020-007734DRP-04		3441 Washington Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				May 20, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-022661CUA		628 Shotwell Street				fr: 11/19; 1/21; 3/18; 4/22		Feeney

						Residential Care Facility to residential

		2019-016244DRP		239 Broad Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				May 27, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2018-013451PRJ		2135 Market Street						Horn

						State Density Bonus new construction of 9-story, 36 unit mixed use building

		2019-019901CUA		1068 Florida Street						Christensen

						legalize demo and rebuild of duplex

		2020-008058DRP		1950 Franklin Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-017985DRP-04		25 Toledo Way						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				June 3, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-006578SHD		2455 Harrison Street						Westhoff

						demolition of existing industrial building and construction of a four-story over basement, mixed-use building

		2016-015987PCA		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						Buddhist Cultural Center from the 3:1 residential-to-non-residential ratio exemption

		2016-015987CUAVAR		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						institutional use in the RC-4 District, a use size greater than 6,000 square feet, a building greater than 50 feet

		2020-011603CUA		2424 Polk Street						Feeney

						Cannabis Retail use with on-site consumption lounge

		2019-006578DRP		2455 Harrison Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				June 10, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				June 17, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2021-001791PCA		Review of Large Residence Developments						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

				June 24, 2021 - Joint w/RecPark

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-017481SHD		530 Sansome Street						Hicks

						Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

				June 24, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-017481DNXCUA		530 Sansome Street						Foster

		OFASHDVAR				Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

		2020-002678CUA		2335 Golden Gate Ave						Woods

						Construction of a new basketball training facility on the USF campus

				July 1, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				July 8, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2018-014727AHB		921 O'Farrell Street 						Updegrave

						AHB / HOME-SF 14-story (140 feet) tower with 50 dwelling units and ground-level retail

				July 15, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				July 22, 2021

		Case No.								Planner



				July 29, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2018-013597ENV		Portsmouth Square Improvement						Calpin

						Draft EIR

		2019-012676DNXCUA		159 Fell Street						Updegrave

						Demolition, New Construction 7-story building with ground-floor retail and 20 residential units
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To:           Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:           Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20888

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 745

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



   April 1, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-000302DRP

		460 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20881

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Diamond recused)



		M-20882

		2020-011265CUA

		1550 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20883

		2018-013692CUA

		2285 Jerrold Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 18, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20884

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20885

		2020-007565CUA

		1336 Chestnut Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended such that the roof deck railing be pulled in three-feet and the privacy planters placed outbound of the railing.

		+7 -0



		M-20886

		2017-011827CUA

		26 Hamilton Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20887

		2019-017356CUA

		1861 Union Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-744

		2019-015785DRP

		2375 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR, Approved with Staff modifications and conditioned no roof deck and transom windows on the north side.

		+7 -0







   March 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 11, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20877

		2021-001410CRV

		42 Otis Street

		Jardines

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20878

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20879

		2020-007383CUA

		666 Hamilton Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20880

		2020-006747CUA

		3109 Fillmore Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		DRA-742

		2020-010532DRP

		1801 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Took DR and Approved; adding conditions directing the Sponsor to conduct community outreach related to:

1. Multi-lingual menus;

2. Local hire employment opportunites (acknowledging previous employees will have first-right-of-refusal); and

3. Cultural art and other interior amenities.

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-743

		2020-001414DRP

		308 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and denied the BPA.

		+5 -1 (Tanner against; Koppel absent)







   March 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-017356CUA

		1861 Union Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Updegrave

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20876

		2012.0506CUA-02

		950 Gough Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021 with direction to add a second unit.

		+7 -0



		DRA-741

		2019-017673DRP

		46 Racine Lane

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the roof deck be pulled in five feet from all sides.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+7 -0







   March 11, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014461CUA

		1324-1326 Powell Street

		Updegrave

		Continued Indefinitely 

		+7 -0



		M-20870

		2020-005471CUA

		3741 Buchanan Street

		Botn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-738

		2019-000969DRP-02

		4822 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000969VAR

		4822 19th Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20871

		2021-001805CRV

		Amendments to the TDM Program Standards

		Perry

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		M-20872

		2018-016721CUA

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a memo with detailed plans related to landscaping, increased permeability and lighting be submitted to the CPC within two weeks.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016721VAR

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20873

		2020-008651CUA

		801 38th Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as proposed, with no requirement for a second dwelling unit.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20874

		2020-005251CUA

		1271 46th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-20875

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Adopted as amended to include the finding related to open space as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-739

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with modifications and a condition that the roof-deck be increased to 750 sq ft and appropriate window materials as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-740

		2020-002743DRP-02

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		No DR, adding a finding to recommend SFMTA extend the red zone for improved visibility.

		+7 -0







   March 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511CUA

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20866

		2020-010157CUA

		1100 Van Ness Avenue

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2009.3461CWP

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		+7 -0



		R-20867

		2021-000317CRV

		TMASF Connects

		Kran

		Adopted a Resolution Authorizing brokerage services

		+7 -0



		M-20868

		2019-012820AHB

		4742 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a design presentation to the CPC related to open space, roof deck, railings and perimeter wall treatment.

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20869

		2017-015988CUA

		501 Crescent Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0





 

  February 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2019-015785DRP

		2375 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued to April 29, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Kirby

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2018-006863DRP

		1263-1265 Clay Street

		Winslow

		WITHDRAWN

		



		M-20859

		2020-008305CUA

		2853 Mission Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20860

		2018-012222CUA

		1385 Carroll Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		R-20861

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Tanner absent)



		R-20862

		2021-000541PCA

		CEQA Appeals [BF 201284]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20863

		2016-008515CUA

		1049 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20864

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20865

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Incorporating changes provided by the Sponsor;

2. Pursue additional roof-top open space;

3. Explore two-bdrm units on the ground floor; and

4. Return to the CPC for final design review; 

Adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to assert Attorney-Client privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Announced no action and Adopted a Motion to not disclose.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 28, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20854

		2020-011581PCA

		Chinatown Mixed-Used Districts [BF 201326]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20855

		2019-020938CUA

		1 Montgomery Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff; and the Commission to include a provision for a commercial/retail use under the Public Access condition.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2021-001452PCA

		Expanded Compliance Control and Consumer Protections Where History of Significant Violations (BF 210015)

		Starr

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20856

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Approved with Conditinos as amended to include a min. of 15 bicycle parking spaces, of which 10 may be vertical.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20857

		2020-008388CUA

		235 Clement Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20858

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions; adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-737

		2019-021383DRP-02

		1615-1617 Mason Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0





 

   February 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20850

		2020-007346CUA

		2284-2286 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 21, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20851

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		

Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2017-015181CUA

		412 Broadway

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		DRA-735

		2020-001229DRP

		73 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20852

		2020-001286CUA

		576 27th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20853

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions as amended, omitting references to “locally owned businesses.”

		+7 -0



		DRA-736

		2018-011022DRP

		2651-2653 Octavia Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 28, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009054PCA

		Temporary Use of HotelS and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing [BF 201218]

		Flores

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010373DRP

		330 Rutledge Street

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 14, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20841

		2016-013312DVA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20842

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20843

		2016-013312DNX-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20844

		2016-013312CUA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20845

		2016-013312OFA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20846

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20847

		2020-006234CUA

		653-656 Fell Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20848

		2020-007075CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20849

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-734

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 21, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010342DRP

		3543 Pierce Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-021369DRP

		468 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-733

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3929 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20835

		2020-010132CUA

		150 7th Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes For January 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election Of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President;

Moore – Vice

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20836

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after February 11, 2021.

		+7 -0



		M-20837

		2016-008743CUA

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2016-008743VAR

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement

		



		M-20838

		2018-015786CUA

		2750 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a community liaison thru construction and operation of the facility.

		+7 -0



		M-20839

		2019-018013CUA

		2027 20th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20840

		2020-006575CUA

		560 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a one-year report-back update hearing with specific attention to the CBA agreement.

		+7 -0







  January 14, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to January 28, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP

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



		M-20829

		2020-009361CUA

		801 Phelps Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Housing Recovery

		Nelson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20830

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Mckellar

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20831

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20832

		2017-004557CUA

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557VAR

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		ZA Closed the PH and Granted the requested Variances

		



		M-20833

		2018-015815AHB

		1055 Texas Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20834

		2019-006959CUA

		656 Andover Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-732

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+6 -1 (Moore Against)







   January 7, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to January 21, 2021

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



		M-20826

		2020-005945CUA

		2265 McKinnon Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 10, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-002347CWP

		UCSF Parnassus MOU

		Switzky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20827

		2020-007461CUA

		1057 Howard Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20828

		2020-007488CUA

		1095 Columbus Avenue

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

From: M. Brett Gladstone
To: Watty, Elizabeth (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: 468 Turk Street Hearing This Thursday
Date: Friday, April 09, 2021 12:22:23 PM
Attachments: Final Brief 4-9.pdf

 

Dear Liz and Jonas.  See below email to Claudine.   She appears
to be out today.    Because of that,    I wonder if you or
someone there can put the attached on the Commission
website.    I am about to email it to all Commissioners.    I
understand  from Liz that the letter  on the website that had
some issues,  corrected by the attached,    did not get into the
Commission packet.
 
The issues involved a missing Exhibit E,  and a reference in the
letter to the wrong exhibits.   415  601 3178.
 
Thanks.
 
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
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
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


04/07/20211 /4”  =  1 ’ -0”


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


NOTE:  SEE COMMENTS ON THESE PHOTOS; NEXT PAGE (P.16)
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
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04/07/2021T ITLE  PAGE & TABLE  OF CONTENTS


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
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04/07/2021STREET V IEW







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
Subject: FW: Opposition to the Project at 4250 26th Street
Date: Monday, April 05, 2021 9:02:43 AM
Attachments: 4250 26th Street - NNC Opposition in Support of DR.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Ozzie Rohm <ozzierohm@sbcglobal.net>
Date: Sunday, April 4, 2021 at 12:50 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland
(CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "Diamond,
Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Winslow, David (CPC)" <david.winslow@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, Noe Neighborhood Council <info@noeneighborhoodcouncil.com>
Subject: Opposition to the Project at 4250 26th Street
 

 

President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission,
 
Please see the attached letter from Noe Neighborhood Council in opposition to the proposed
project at 4250 26th Street.
 
Sincerely,
 
Ozzie Rohm
For the 300+ members of Noe Neighborhood Council
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/



NOE NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCIL 
Fair Planning for Noe Valley 


 
 


 
April 4, 2021 


President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission: 


On behalf of Noe Neighborhood Council (NNC), I am writing to express our opposition to the proposed 


project at 4250 26th Street.  Our reasons are as follows: 


• The proposed project’s mass and scale is not compatible with the existing buildings on the block. 


 


• Pushing the expansion to reduce the rear yard to only 25% of the lot is a gross anomaly on a block 


that enjoys a strong mid-block open space.  The mid-block open space is a community amenity that is 


shared by neighbors on both 26th and Clipper Streets.  The homes on both sides of this mid-block 


open space respect this community amenity.  No new development has expanded into the rear yard as 


deep as this project intends to do.  Even recent developments such as 4276 26th Street that involved 


massive rebuilding of a single-family home only reached 2,395 square feet. 


 


• A four-story building does not respect the topography and the rooflines that step down with the slope of 


the street.  On a block that is mostly made up of two to three story buildings, the proposed project will 


stick out like a sore thumb.  Furthermore, on a steep street such as this one, the fourth floor is clearly 


visible from the public right of way, which is another reason that it will make this building an outlier. 


 


• Above all, the proposed project is an insult given our affordability crisis and the current economic 


downturn.  To demolish an “affordable by design” home to build a luxury single-family home of 6000+ 


square feet demonstrates utter insensitivity to the affordability crisis we’re faced with. 


 
That is why we stand in support of the DR applicants and the community in opposition to this project.  We 


urge you to take DR and require the project sponsor to modify this project to address the above issues. 


Sincerely, 


Ozzie Rohm  


For the 300+ members of Noe Neighborhood Council 


 







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; YANG, AUSTIN (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN

(CAT); STACY, KATE (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars of April 8, 2021 - Cancellation
Date: Friday, April 02, 2021 1:49:11 PM
Attachments: 20210408_can.docx

20210408_can.pdf
CPC Hearing Results 2021.docx
Advance Calendar - 20210408.xlsx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for the Canceled April 8, 2021 hearing.
 
Enjoy the Spring Break!
 
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
mailto:CPC.SeniorManagers@sfgov.org
mailto:Austin.Yang@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/







SAN FRANCISCO

PLANNING COMMISSION 

[image: ]



NOTICE

OF 

CANCELLATION











Thursday, 

April 8, 2021



Regular Meeting



NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thursday, April 8, 2021 San Francisco Planning Commission Regular Meeting has been canceled. The next Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission is scheduled for Thursday, April 15, 2021.



Commissioners:

[bookmark: _Hlk56756133]Joel Koppel, President

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

49 South Van Ness, Ste 1400

San Francisco, CA 94103







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thursday, April 8, 2021 San Francisco Planning Commission Regular 
Meeting has been canceled. The next Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission is scheduled for 
Thursday, April 15, 2021. 


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



				April 1, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-003223CUA		249 Texas St				fr: 2/4; 3/4		Westhoff

						demolition of single-family and construction two dwelling units		to: 4/15

		2013.0614ENX-02		600 South Van Ness				fr: 2/25		Christensen

						Change in Section 415 compliance from on-site to fee		to: 4/22

		2013.1535CUA-02		450-474 O'Farrell, 532 Jones				fr: 1/7; 1/21; 2/4; 3/11		Grob

						CUA - Amends original project		to: 4/15

		2020-006303CUA		2201 Powell Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Macro Wireless facility		fr: 3/25

		2020-011265CUA		1550 Wallace Avenue 				CONSENT		Christensen

						8,000 sq ft Industrial Agriculture (cannabis cultivation) use

		2018-013692CUA		2285 Jerrold Ave				CONSENT		Feeney

						320,000 square foot building that has both commercial and self storage uses in the PDR-2 zoning district

		2017-011827CUA		26 Hamilton Street						Durandet

						CUA

		2020-007565CUA		1336 Chestnut St						May

						demolition of an existing single-family dwelling, construction of a new 4-story, 3-unit building

		2021-000342CUA 		403 28th Street				fr: 3/18		Hoagland

						Tantamount to Demo

		2019-017356CUA		1861 Union Street				fr: 3/18		Feeney

						Formula Retail Cannabis Retail Dispensary

		2019-015785DRP		2375 Funston Avenue				fr: 2/25		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-000302DRP		460 Vallejo Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				April 8, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				April 15, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-008474CUA		3519 California Street				CONSENT		Young

						Panda Express

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

		2020-011809CUA		300 West Portal Ave						Pantoja

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

		2019-019822DRP		4079 Cesar Chavez Street						Winslow

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

				Transitioning the Shared Spaces to a Permanent City Program						Abad

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

		2020-007734DRP-02		3441 Washington Street						Winslow

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
Subject: FW: Please Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
Date: Friday, April 02, 2021 9:09:33 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Drew Wenzel <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "drew.wenzel@gmail.com" <drew.wenzel@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 at 10:59 AM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Please Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
 

 

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

Drew Wenzel 
drew.wenzel@gmail.com 
236 Hartford St 
San Francisco, California 94114

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
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Date: Friday, April 02, 2021 9:09:02 AM
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

		Rogelio Foronda

		To

		Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

		Recipients

		jonas.ionin@sfgov.org



 	This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Jonas Ionin,



As a 10+ year resident of and renter in Twin Peaks, I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley, Diamond Heights and Glen Park).



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



For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help your district become a place where more residents can call home. Looking forward to seeing new faces at the Diamond Heights Safeway!



Rogelio Foronda 
itsrogelio@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94131





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Valerie Balcom

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
vcom206@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94110





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Jessica Driscoll

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
jessicaldriscoll@yahoo.com



San Francisco, California 94127





 





From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PEOPLE AGE FIFTY AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE THE COVID

VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO
Date: Thursday, April 01, 2021 2:14:37 PM
Attachments: 04.01.21 Vaccine Eligibility.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, April 1, 2021 at 12:50 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** PEOPLE AGE FIFTY AND OLDER ARE NOW
ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE THE COVID VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, April 1, 2021
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
PEOPLE AGE FIFTY AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO

RECEIVE THE COVID VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO 
Expansion in eligibility comes as nearly 50% of the adult population of San

Francisco has received at least one dose of the COVID-19 vaccine
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the Department of Public
Health (DPH), announced today that in accordance with state and federal guidance, all people
age 50 and over are now eligible to receive a COVID-19 vaccine. This significant expansion
in vaccine eligibility comes as the
City approaches an important milestone in its unprecedented vaccination effort: nearly half of
people in San Francisco age 16 and over have now received at least one dose of the
vaccine. The vaccine is not yet approved by the FDA for children under 16.  
 
In addition to providing the vaccine to nearly half of the adult population, San Francisco has
made significant progress in providing the vaccine to its older population. 82% percent of San
Franciscans 65 and older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and 62% have been
fully vaccinated. These high vaccination rates in the 65 and older population is especially
important because older individuals are most at risk of hospitalization and death from COVID-
19.
 
“This is another big step in our fight against COVID-19. San Francisco has followed the
science throughout this pandemic, whether that meant taking early action last year as the virus
began circulating, or taking precautions like wearing a mask. Now San Franciscans are

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


PEOPLE AGE FIFTY AND OLDER ARE NOW ELIGIBLE TO 


RECEIVE THE COVID VACCINE IN SAN FRANCISCO  
Expansion in eligibility comes as nearly 50% of the adult population of San 


Francisco has received at least one dose of the COVID-19 vaccine 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the Department of Public 


Health (DPH), announced today that in accordance with state and federal guidance, all people 


age 50 and over are now eligible to receive a COVID-19 vaccine. This significant expansion in 


vaccine eligibility comes as the City approaches an important milestone in its unprecedented 


vaccination effort: nearly half of people in San Francisco age 16 and over have now received at 


least one dose of the vaccine. The vaccine is not yet approved by the FDA for children under 


16.   


 


In addition to providing the vaccine to nearly half of the adult population, San Francisco has 


made significant progress in providing the vaccine to its older population. 82% percent of San 


Franciscans 65 and older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and 62% have been fully 


vaccinated. These high vaccination rates in the 65 and older population is especially important 


because older individuals are most at risk of hospitalization and death from COVID-19. 


 


“This is another big step in our fight against COVID-19. San Francisco has followed the science 


throughout this pandemic, whether that meant taking early action last year as the virus began 


circulating, or taking precautions like wearing a mask. Now San Franciscans are stepping up and 


getting vaccinated because we know that it’s our best shot to end this pandemic once and for all,” 


said Mayor Breed. “That’s why San Francisco is well ahead of the national average for how 


many of our residents have been vaccinated, and this weekend we will reach another important 


milestone with 50% of our residents having received a vaccine. There’s an end to this pandemic 


in sight, and we’re doing everything we can to make that happen as soon as possible.”  


 


Despite this significant progress, insufficient vaccine supply remains the single biggest factor 


limiting the City’s vaccination effort. Those newly eligible people age 50 and over should visit 


sf.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine and to find links to book 


appointments at different vaccination sites. Because supply remains extremely limited while 


eligibility is expanding, it may take a number of weeks to find an available appointment. Eligible 


individuals should continue to be patient, should keep checking the website, and should accept 


the first vaccine that is offered. If San Francisco receives sufficient supply to meet the City’s 


distribution capacity, over 80% of adults could be vaccinated with first doses by mid-May. 


 


On March 15th, in accordance with State guidelines, the City expanded eligibility to people with 


disabilities and severe underlying conditions, people living in congregate settings like jails and 
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shelters, and people experiencing homelessness. Also eligible are people 65 and older, people 


who work in the healthcare, food and agriculture, education and childcare, and emergency 


services sectors. The state government has announced that on April 15, all Californians over the 


age of 16 will be eligible to receive the vaccine.   


 


“Expanding eligibility to people age 50 and over is an important step in our larger goal of fully 


vaccinating San Francisco. But even as eligibility grows broader, we must remain focused on 


providing the vaccine to the individuals and communities most at risk and hardest to reach,” said 


Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Public Health. “Through a comprehensive and equitable 


vaccination effort, we can protect our City and end this pandemic. This urgency is reinforced by 


rapidly climbing case rates in other parts of the country as well as increasing cases locally.”  


 


The goal of the City’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as convenient and 


comfortable for as many people as possible, particularly in neighborhoods disproportionately 


affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The City has developed a robust distribution infrastructure 


that includes high-volume vaccination sites, neighborhood sites, community clinics, pharmacy 


partnerships, and mobile vaccination teams. 


  


Recently the City’s vaccination infrastructure has expanded to include new sites and new 


methods for distributing the vaccine. In partnership with communities that have been most 


impacted by COVID-19, the City is on track to open two additional neighborhood vaccine sites 


in the next two weeks. In addition to new sites, mobile vaccination teams have scaled up across 


the City to bring the vaccine directly to communities that cannot easily access high volume 


vaccination sites. This includes a visit by the mobile vaccination team on Saturday, March 27 to 


Treasure Island, which will see regular appearances from mobile teams in the coming weeks. 


Mobile vaccination teams are also active in senior housing sites, shelter in place hotels, and 


senior centers around the City.   


 


San Francisco’s commitment to an equitable vaccination strategy, has focused on reaching 


communities that have been hard-hit by the pandemic, including the Latino community and 


neighborhoods in the Southeast of the city. A higher proportion of the DPH-administered 


vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide vaccinations. For example, the 


Latino population represents 14% of the City’s overall population and has received more than 


26% of DPH’s vaccinations, compared with 12% citywide. The vaccine dashboard also shows 


that the top three neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-controlled vaccines are the 


Bayview, Mission and Excelsior.  


 


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
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service for those using the Essential Trip Card. Information can be found at sfmta.com/COVID 


and sfmta.com/paratransit. 


 


The distribution of a national vaccine during a pandemic is an unprecedented event, and DPH is 


partnering with healthcare providers to have as many people vaccinated as fast as possible, while 


following the federal and state guidelines for prioritization. In the meantime, it is critical that all 


San Franciscans continue to follow all public health recommendations to wear a mask when not 


in your home, cough into your elbow, wash your hands, keep six feet from others whenever you 


must be in public places, and help your local health department collect information to inform 


people of possible infection. These steps will help protect you and those around you while 


COVID-19 is circulating, and, along with the vaccine, will be essential to ending the pandemic.  


 


Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco can sign up for a notification when they are eligible 


for vaccination at SF.gov/vaccinenotify. The City will continue to provide regular updates to the 


public about the vaccine in San Francisco at SF.gov/covidvaccine.  


 


 


### 
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stepping up and getting vaccinated because we know that it’s our best shot to end this
pandemic once and for all,” said Mayor Breed. “That’s why San Francisco is well ahead of the
national average for how many of our residents have been vaccinated, and this weekend we
will reach another important milestone with 50% of our residents having received a vaccine.
There’s an end to this pandemic in sight, and we’re doing everything we can to make that
happen as soon as possible.”
 
Despite this significant progress, insufficient vaccine supply remains the single biggest factor
limiting the City’s vaccination effort. Those newly eligible people age 50 and over should visit
sf.gov/getvaccinated to learn about options for receiving the vaccine and to find links to book
appointments at different vaccination sites. Because supply remains extremely limited while
eligibility is expanding, it may take a number of weeks to find an available
appointment. Eligible individuals should continue to be patient, should keep checking the
website, and should accept the first vaccine that is offered. If San Francisco receives sufficient
supply to meet the City’s distribution capacity, over 80% of adults could be vaccinated with
first doses by mid-May.
 
On March 15th, in accordance with State guidelines, the City expanded eligibility to people
with disabilities and severe underlying conditions, people living in congregate settings like
jails and shelters, and people experiencing homelessness. Also eligible are people 65 and
older, people who work in the healthcare, food and agriculture, education and childcare, and
emergency services sectors. The state government has announced that on April 15, all
Californians over the age of 16 will be eligible to receive the vaccine.  
 
“Expanding eligibility to people age 50 and over is an important step in our larger goal of fully
vaccinating San Francisco. But even as eligibility grows broader, we must remain focused on
providing the vaccine to the individuals and communities most at risk and hardest to
reach,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Public Health. “Through a comprehensive and
equitable vaccination effort, we can protect our City and end this pandemic. This urgency is
reinforced by rapidly climbing case rates in other parts of the country as well as increasing
cases locally.” 
 
The goal of the City’s vaccination strategy is to make receiving the vaccine as convenient and
comfortable for as many people as possible, particularly in neighborhoods disproportionately
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The City has developed a robust distribution
infrastructure that includes high-volume vaccination sites, neighborhood sites, community
clinics, pharmacy partnerships, and mobile vaccination teams.
Recently the City’s vaccination infrastructure has expanded to include new sites and new
methods for distributing the vaccine. In partnership with communities that have been most
impacted by COVID-19, the City is on track to open two additional neighborhood vaccine
sites in the next two weeks. In addition to new sites, mobile vaccination teams have scaled up
across the City to bring the vaccine directly to communities that cannot easily access high
volume vaccination sites. This includes a visit by the mobile vaccination team on Saturday,
March 27 to Treasure Island, which will see regular appearances from mobile teams in the
coming weeks. Mobile vaccination teams are also active in senior housing sites, shelter
in place hotels, and senior centers around the City.  
 
San Francisco’s commitment to an equitable vaccination strategy, has focused on reaching
communities that have been hard-hit by the pandemic, including the Latino community and
neighborhoods in the Southeast of the city. A higher proportion of the DPH-administered

https://sf.gov/get-vaccinated-against-covid-19


vaccinations have gone to people of color than the total citywide vaccinations. For example,
the Latino population represents 14% of the City’s overall population and has received more
than 26% of DPH’s vaccinations, compared with 12% citywide. The vaccine dashboard also
shows that the top three neighborhoods receiving the largest amount of DPH-controlled
vaccines are the Bayview, Mission and Excelsior. 
 
In order to assist individuals with accessing appointments, the City has set up a call center to
help people, especially those who are 65 and older, those with disabilities and those who are
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
found at sfmta.com/COVID and sfmta.com/paratransit.
 
The distribution of a national vaccine during a pandemic is an unprecedented event, and
DPH is partnering with healthcare providers to have as many people vaccinated as fast as
possible, while following the federal and state guidelines for prioritization. In the meantime, it
is critical that all San Franciscans continue to follow all public health recommendations to
wear a mask when not in your home, cough into your elbow, wash your hands, keep six feet
from others whenever you must be in public places, and help your local health department
collect information to inform people of possible infection. These steps will help protect you
and those around you while COVID-19 is circulating, and, along with the vaccine, will be
essential to ending the pandemic. 
 
Anyone who works or lives in San Francisco can sign up for a notification when they are
eligible for vaccination at SF.gov/vaccinenotify. The City will continue to provide regular
updates to the public about the vaccine in San Francisco at SF.gov/covidvaccine. 
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
Date: Thursday, April 01, 2021 2:14:05 PM

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
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From: Stephen Zerfas <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "stephen.zerfas@gmail.com" <stephen.zerfas@gmail.com>
Date: Thursday, April 1, 2021 at 1:57 PM
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

Stephen Zerfas 
stephen.zerfas@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94110
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